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| A Le’tter from the Chairman

A “Vision for the Future” is an appropriate theme for North Carolina’s two municipal power agencies as we
end 2004 and look forward to 2005. We are focused on the future and individual cities have undertaken
initiatives that will provide for a prosperous future. This year’s report features a few of our cities and how
they have implemented plans and projects that will poise them for electric load growth and develop their
communities for the well-being of their citizens and businesses.

For almost 40 years ElectriCities has served our municipal power agencies and our cities with innovative,
cost-saving services that benefit our communities and ensure reliable electricity. And, I am pleased to report
‘that with the excellent leadership of our CEO, his senior management team and a dedicated staff, both
power agencies experienced outstanding years in 2004. Management staff continued to work to find
innovative solutions, achieve cost savings and implement new programs. Our cities engaged in active
grassroots and advertising efforts to increase political strength in the state legislature as well as in Congress
in efforts to better influence positive outcomes on critical issues.

The ElectriCities Board of Directors approved a comprehensive power supply proposal with a number of
companies for North Carolina Municipal Power Agency Number 1 (NCMPA1) that will deliver a five-year net
present value savings of over $30 million. And in 2003, the Board of Directors took action to increase our
capacity to conduct transactions, from 400MW to 832MW, resulting in an elimination of reserve capacity
and energy purchases, together saving NCMPA1 approximately $6.5 million for the year.

The NCMPA1 Board of Commissioners and the Board of Directors authorized refunding bond issues in
December 2004 with expected savings over the transactions of $19.5 million in net present value of debt
service over the life of the bonds. The bonds were to be issued at various times, with the first being
" completed in January 2005. Two credit rating agencies responded to the actions and trends and upgraded
NCMPA1’s credit rating in December 2004. This action s critical as it leads to lower interest rates paid on
new debt issued and demonstrates financial stability.

In the North Carolina Eastern Municipal Power Agency (NCEMPA), the focus was on keeping rates as low
as possible. A new procedure to review contracts and the development of a mutually beneficial partnership
with Progress Energy Carolinas combined to make 2004 an excellent year. Overall, NCEMPA achieved cost
savings of $55 million during 2004. Demand-side management savings for the year were $33 million,
savings that proved critical to maintaining NCEMPA participant rates. A bond issue in June 2004 for
refunding resulted in $21.1 million of net present value savings over the life of the bonds. This refunding
was accomplished in part as a result of MBIA approval for insurance capacity received in 2003, the first
new capacity for NCEMPA in a number of years.

‘A new process was developed to monitor and review coal costs for NCEMPA's coal plants. These new
procedures will enable staff to monitor and anticipate changes to the cost of coal as conditions change in
the world and national markets.

NCEMPA continues to work very closely with Progress Energy Carolinas, as a business partner in the
“operation of the generating facilities and with supplemental power supply contracts. The relationship
between NCEMPA and Progtess Energy Carolinas has proven to be mutually beneficial to both parties and
to our member cities. Constant communications improves the flow of information which effectively reduces
NCEMPA's operating costs. :

Target marketing, advertising and the pursuit of economic development leads led to a number of announce-
ments for business and industry this year. NCMPA1 added over $90 million in investment, 812 new jobs
and 8MW of new electric load, while NCEMPA achieved more than $75 million in investment, the addition
of 1,017 jobs and 13MW of electric load.

Operations in both NCMPA1 and NCEMPA-owned generation were outstanding in 2004, The plants had
a productive year in 2004, keeping power agency costs as low as possible.

In October 2004, Progress Energy Carolinas submitted a license renewal application to the Nuclear
Regulatory Commission requesting a 20-year operating license renewal for the Brunswick Nuclear Plant.
The current 40-year operating license for Brunswick Unit 1 expires September 8, 2016 and Unit 2 expires
December 27, 2014. An extension of the lifetime for operations will provide substantial additional value to
our member cities and our citizens. Nuclear plants continue to provide clean, reliable and affordable energy.

Financially, the health of our power agencies and ElectriCities is good. We continue to make annual pay-
ments toward our debt. Our rates will not include debt payments after 2019 for NCMPA1 and 2025 for
NCEMPA.

Our staff continues to engage in a number of strategic communications and advertising programs to help
cities communicate with citizens; maintain a focus on safety and training programs; and, further develop
a legislative and grassroots program that has grown as more and more cities engaged on state and federal
legislative issues. '

All of the elements of a bright and prosperou's future are within our grasp. The path for the next 40 years
will be set by our actions today and your continued support and cooperation. .

<
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Jesse C. Tilton, I

Eastern Municipal Power Agency (NCEMPA). Our 51 cities, together and individually, are on the cutting edge of

‘Both power agencies had outstanding years in 2004. Management staff, working with the Board of Directors, the
“ power agency Boards of Commissioners and the cities, implemented programs, services and generated cost savings

- Since 2001, the power agencies’ economic development efforts contributed to the state economy, providing more

ing upgrades. In NCEMPA, the focus was on efforts to keep rates as low as possible. Demand-side management sav-

" Hlectric load growth in our cities remains a top priority for the present and the future, and as the economy in the

“partnership with our cities reinforces our messages in our communities and across the state.

A Letter from the CEO

Tam pleased to present this report to the cities and the citizens in the cities that comprise North Carolina’s two
municipal power agencies, North Carolina Municipal Power Agency Number 1 (NCMPA1) and the North Carolina

programs and plans that will ensure their success in the future. This report captures that spirit by highlighting
examples of six of our cities and in the results of a year of success.

that will have a positive and lasting effect on the cities well into the future.

than $1 billion in investments through new and expanded business and industry and providing more than 10,000
jobs in our member cities. This year, many NCMPAI cities celebrated economic development successes with more
than $90 million in investment, 812 new jobs and 8MW of new electric load. In NCEMPA, the agency cities
achieved more than §75 mil!idn in investment, the addition of 1,017 jobs and 13MW of electric load.

Over the past six years, the power agencies have reduced the debt associated with their plant ownership percentages
by almost $1 billion. Refinancings over the past five years yielded more than $150 million in savings over the life of
the refinanced bonds, net present value savings for NCEMPA of $73.6 million and for NCMPA1, $96.5 million.

This past year, in NCMPM comprehensive power supply contracts and increased transaction capacity of 432MW
resulted in significant savings. These cost-saving actions, a positive outlook and positive trends resulted in credit rat-

ings in addition to other cost-savings initiatives, helped hold down rate increases. These savings proved critical to
maintaining NCEMPA participant rates. New contract procedures and communications enacted will significantly
affect accuracy in contract billing and result in cost-savings. In both agencies, bond refundings led to long term
savings.

state continues to improve, challenges remain, We continue to work to help our cities target business and industry
that is compatible with their area. We continue to look for and find the most cost effective ways to provide electric-
ity to our citizens and businesses while ensuring a high quality of service and reliability.

Without the enactment of a comprehensive energy bill in Congress last year, we again actively participated in the
legislative process as part of a coordinated effort with other organizations actoss the country. Our primary interest
remains increased reliability, decreased congestion and increased stability of the electric grid. We worked to support
national energy provisions that increase reliability and are fair to all entities that use the grid. - And, at the NC
General Assembly, our efforts continue to ensure that no legislation is enacted that will negatively affect electric
load growth in our cities. Over the past year, we have significantly increased our political strength in partnership
with Mayors, Council, Commission members and city staff. Strategic advertising focusing on our key messages in

During 2004, North Carolina's major electric load-serving entities, including Duke Power, FlectriCities of NC,
North Carolina Electric Membership Corporation and Progress Energy Carolinas, Inc., developed a collaborative
transmission planning process. In April 2004, the North Carolina Utilities Commission (NCUC) initiated a public
meeting to hear the concerns regarding transmission issues in North Carolina. The NCUC requested that we work
together to address the issues raised. In response, the aforementioned organizations and companies began meeting
to develop a long-term comprehensive transmission planning process for North Carolina, facilitated by an
independent third party with input from other market participants and designed to preserve reliability as well

as enhancing access to a variety of generation resources.

In December 2003, we were excited to announce a license renewal for NCMPA1's co-owned nuclear plant, Catawba.
In October 2004, Progress Energy Carolinas submitted a license renewal application to the Nuclear Regulatory
Commission requesting a 20-year operating license renewal for the Brunswick Nuclear Plant. Now, NCEMPA has
the potential to be the beneficiary of substantial additional value to its member cities through clean, reliable and
affordable nuclear energy, well into the future.

Safety remains a top priority of our cities. Member cities are implementing several new enhancements to increase
the overall effectiveness of city safety programs. Our safety and training program received the NC Labor
Commissioner's Special Recognition Award for outstanding contributions in the development and support of
public power's statewide apprenticeship program.

Together with the ElectriCities Board of Directors, the NCMPA1 and NCEMPA Boards of Commissioners and the
leadership actoss the state in our cities, our staff remains committed to providing the highest level of customer
service, reliable and cost-effective electricity, Our strength is our unity whether it is regulatory matters, issues in
the state legislature and Congress or economic development, safety and training, purchasing and any of the other
services we provide. Our future has been improved by the vision and accomplishments of this and recent years.
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ELECTRICITIES MEMBERSHIP

City Established Customers

Abbeville, SC 1905 3,584
Albemarle -1910 11,496
Apex 1917 10475

. Ayden 1916 3,695
Bamberg, SC 1905 1,028
Bedford, VA 1899 6,647
Belhaven 1920 1,116
Bennettsville, SC 1903 4,775
Benson 1913 1,802

Bostic 1920 185

Camden, SC 1902 9,219
Cherryville 1906 2,926
Clayton 1913 4,227
Clinton, SC 1907 4,110
Concord 1904 24,573
Cornelius 1916 2,309
Dallas 1925 3,000

. Danville, VA 1886 41,910
Drexel 1926 1,183
Easley, SC 1911 12,541

East Carolina University NA University
Edenton 1908 3,940
Elizabeth City 1926 10,058

Elizabeth City State Univ NA  University -
Enfield Priorto 1940 1,448
Farmville 1910 2,949
Fayetteville 1905 70,219
Forest City 1910 4,182
Fountain 1903 M
Fremont 1918 862
Gaffney, SC 1907 7461
Gastonia 1900 25,200
Granite Falls 1916 2,354
Greenville 1905 53,002
Greer, SC 1914 14,340
Hamilton 1922 254
Hertford 1915 1,231

High Point 1893 37,207
Hobgood 1922 319
Hookerton 1907 431
Huntersville 1916 3,531
Kings Mountain 1935 4,271
Kinston 1897 12,295

La Grange 1917 1,538
Landis 1919 2,607

City Established Customers .
Laurens, SC 1922 5216
Laurinburg 1925 5,681
Lexington 1903 18,224
Lincolnton 1900 2,819
Louisburg 1906 1,939
Lucama 1889 1,151
Lumberton 1903 9,567
Macclesfield 1928 293
Maiden 1920 1,034
Martinsville, VA 1904 8,067
Monroe 1900 9,741
Morganton 1899 7,898
Murphy 1953 4,463
New Bern 1901 18,169
New River Light & Power 1915 7,436
Newberry, SC 1923 4,850
Newton 1896 4,266
Pikeville 1918 527
Pinetops 1925 725
Pineville 1939 2,452
Red Springs 1910 1,699
Richlands, VA 1922 2,590
Robersonyi lle 1919 1,068
Rock Hill, SC 1911 29,312
Rocky Mount 1902 30,477
Scotland Neck 1903 1,731
Selma 1913 2,736
Sharpsburg 1920 1,516
Shelby 1912 7,990
Smithfield 1912 4,432
Southport 1916 2,239
Stantonsburg 1920 1,117
Statesville 1889 12,659
Tarboro 1897 5,942

UNC-Chapel Hill NA  cammey o o s

UNC-Greensboro NA University
Union, SC 1896 7,046
Wake Forest 1909 5,950
Walstonburg 1922 132
Washington 1905 12,692
Waynesville 1923 3,164
Western Carolina University NA University
Westminster, SC 1921 1,644
Wilson 1892 32,904
Windsor 1920 2,006
Winterville 1900 2,165
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Town of Tarboro

ElectriCities’ Political Action and Communications
staff monitors state and federal government executive and
legislative activities to maintain a fair and equitable busi-
ness environment. Whenever a threat or opportunity arises
or is perceived, immediate action is taken to protect the
interests of public power and its customers. This effort is
most successful when it includes strong support at the local
level from member governmental officials, local media and
involved citizens. The Town of Tarboro has sought to
mobilize its grassroots resources to respond quickly and
effectively when needed.

As issues arose in the western part of the state between
public power cities and rural electric cooperatives, it seemed
likely that there would be state legislation. Town officials in
Tarboro recognized that it was in their best interests to help
strengthen and support any FlectriCities’ response to the
NC General Assembly. Tarboro began to organize and
prepare a comprehensive and coordinated grassroots effort.

Mayor Donald Morris, Town Manager Sam Noble and
members of the Town Council discussed the issues and pre-
pared to meet with their local legislative representatives
whenever and wherever necessary to keep them informed
of the potential consequences of proposed legislation. |
They developed a strong association with the local newspa-
per, The Daily Southerner, to ensure that their citizens were
informed. They agreed to act promptly and forcetfully in
the event of a threat or opportunity. Tarboro town officials
recognized the need to contribute to the ElectriCities Public
Power Political Action Committee in efforts to support pub-
lic power champions in the legislature.

And throughout the year, as debate continued in
Washington, DC on the Federal Energy Bill, Tarboro offi-
cials participated in National League of City and North
Carolina League of Municipality events with the North
Carolina Congressional Delegation to ensure that public
power interests are well-represented in Washington.

As Town Manager Noble emphasized, “Member cities
should not underestimate the power of a strong grassroots
initiative in building political strength.”

Roland Clark, City Council member,
Mayor Pro-tem David Smoot and
Mayor Donald Morris
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Keeping industrial customers competitive is a primary goal
for Wilson Energy. With today’s world economy, industrial
managers are under increasing pressure to lower costs in the
United States. At Wilson Energy, large business and industrial
customers enjoy individual attention. They pride themselves
in knowing their local industries personally and doing all that
they can to give them reliable service and competitive rates.

One of Wilson's most effective tools is peak-shaving gener-
ation. With the assistance of Wilson Energy, industrial and
large commercial managers can use generators to reduce their
load during peak demand times. “Generators are one of our
most important tools in these days of higher energy costs,”
said Wilson Director of Public Utilities Fred Horne. “By lower-
ing their peak demand, our industrial customers are able to
improve their electrical costs significantly.”

Using generators and other load-management programs
reduces demand cost for Wilson Energy by reducing its system
load during Progress Energy’s system peak hour, on which
Wilson Energy pays its demand charge. The reduced costs
are then passed on to participating customers through coinci-
dental peak rates or load management credits. The generators
typically have a three-to four-year payback period.

Currently, Wilson Energy has 29 customer-owned
generators totaling 34 MW as well as 16 City-owned generators
totaling 16 MW. Wilson Energy uses its SCADA system to turn
on the generators remotely and performs courtesy inspections
of all generators after every load management period. It also
responds to any of these generators if there’s an operational
problem, in an effort to have them all running during the
system peak hour. :

One company benefiting from the program is Wilson’s
Saint Gobain Containers, a manufacturer of glass beverage
bottles. Saint Gobain has five generators on-site to manage
peak-load demand and reduce power costs. Plant Manager
Ross Houser was pleased with the support provided to his
company by Wilson Energy in installing and implementing
the program. “I was pleased with the level of cooperation,”
he commented. “Installation was accomplished with a
minimum of down-time.”

Fred Horne, Director of Public Utilities
and Ross Houser, Plant Manager,
Saint Gobain Containers

City of Wilson
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City of Gastonia

A recent Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy
(CEDS) for Gaston and Cleveland Counties gave Gastonia lead-
ers the opportunity to actively participate in reshaping their
economy for the 21st century. In addition to the restructuring
of growth in all sectors of Gastonia’s development: residential,
commercial and industrial, the CEDS also stirred additional
interest in and momentum for revitalizing the downtown area.
Boosted by local government investment in renovated and
expanded office buildings, an increasing number of retailers
and other small businesses are further enlivening the down-
town.

The city and surrounding areas of the county had lost a
large number of textile industry jobs, but a wide diversity of
: new industry had located or expanded in the community.

; With close proximity to the rapidly growing Charlotte area and
its busy international airport, attention was given to attracting
a greater share of regional growth through careful planning
and progressive leadership. One key element in the revitaliza-

i tion effort was the establishment of Gastonia Technology Park.

Gastonia Technology Park is a showcase for both the City
of Gastonia and Gaston County, demonstrating the communi-
ty’s proactive orientation to economic development. Even
before the completion of the CEDS strategy, the Gaston
County Economic Development Commission could see that
the continuing losses of textile jobs required a first-class effort
i to attract more technology-oriented companies and jobs with
staying power. Thus the site for Gastonia Technology Park was
. selected just south of Gaston College, a highly-rated communi-
| ty college, that offers a wide variety of technology education
;, programs and training adaptable to any businesses’ needs.

i
¢
i
i
}
]
f
f
!

Heavy electrical and fiber optic service lines were installed
underground and beautiful landscaping, winding roads,
: sidewalks and seating areas create a pedestrian-friendly,
| aesthetically pleasing campus-like environment. o
; Ortronics located a major 155,000 square-foot state-of-the-
art manufacturing plant there, making a wide range of electri-
? cal components and connectors. More than a dozen other sites
: are available within the park’s 350 acres, conveniently located
along U.S. 321, which connects I-85 in Gastonia with I-40 in
nearby Hickory.

Walter “Dub” Dickson, ElectriCities
Board of Directors and
Mayor Jennifer Stultz
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Letter to the Stakeholders

From the Chairman

North Carolina Municipal Power Agency Number 1 (NCMPA1) experienced an outstanding
year in 2004. NCMPA1 staff assembled a resource team that met throughout the year to
evaluate solutions for power supply services, including purchases of peaking capacity,
reserves, load-following services and hourly desk functions. The team ultimately recom-
mended a comprehensive power supply proposal to the ElectriCities Board of Directors
{Board). The Board approved contracts with Duke Power, Southern Company, Dynergy,
Progress Ventures (a subsidiary of Progress Energy Carolinas) and ACES, part of the compre-
hensive program that delivered a five-year net present value savings of over $30 million.
This arrangement enables NCMPAL staff to conduct all day-ahead, short, mid and long-term
marketing. The telemetry system, continuously operated and maintained by NCMPA1 staff,
achieved over 99 percent reliability to support NCMPA1’s dynamic scheduling of power sup-
ply resources.

In addition to the savings realized from the new power supply arrangement, savings were
also realized in 2004 from the 2003 Board action to increase transaction capacity from
400MW to 832MW, resulting in an elimination of reserve capacity and energy purchases,
together saving NCMPA1 approximately $6.5 million for the year. Additional savings are
expected from refundings approved by the Board. As a result of these cost savings measures
and a general positive outlook for the future, two credit rating agencies upgraded NCMPA1’s
credit rating in December 2004, which leads to lower interest rates paid on new debt issued.

Operations in NCMPA1-owned generation were outstanding in 2004. Catawba Unit 2
completed a record continuous run of 531 days, the longest ever for any nuclear unit on
the Duke Power system. And, economic development and electric load growth in NCMPA1
cities continues to be a priority. In 2004, an innovative new solution in industrial park
development was created with the Prime Power Patk™. The Prime Power Park™ will feature
a redundant power supply system, using backup generation to supply power to park tenants
in an emergency. The first Prime Power Park™ will be located in the City of Albemarle.
The industrial park is designed specifically to attract new industrial customers with mission-
critical power needs. The city signed onto the project this year and construction began at
the site. Target marketing plans were completed for ten NCMPA1 cities. Economic develop-
ment websites have been created for almost all of the NCMPAL cities.

While many NCMPA1 cities celebrated economic development successes this year as the
Agency added over $90 million in investment, 812 new jobs and SMW of new electric Ioad,
a few key announcements included ZF Lemforder in Newton, Getrag Gears in Maiden and
Kao Specialists in High Point.

Distributed generation continues to provide reserves that enable NCMPA1 to avoid reserve
capacity purchases, leading to a savings of almost $700,000 in 2004. All 10 units operated
at near 100 percent reliability in 2004, Additionally, NCMPA1 placed under contract an
additional 25 MW of distributed generation, which will be coordinated through the
NCMPAL control center. This year, NCMPA1 implemented new “economic dispatch”
principles for distributed generation, providing NCMPA1 with more direct control of the
units to increase the benefits of distributed generation to the Agency’s power supply
program. The new policy will allow a reduction in the operating hours for distributed
generation on-peak periods, reduce off-system reserve purchases and reduce diesel fuel
consumption by distributed generation owners.

Electric load management strategy in 2004 focused on forecasting accuracy, which reduces
the number of load management control hours. As a result of load management, $6.5
million in savings was passed along to customers of NCMPA1's member cities. Also,
NCMPA1 operated load management an average of six hours per month, which was 40
percent less than the hours operated in 2003.

This year resulted in success worthy of celebrating, yet more importantly, several measures
implemented, such as the load management principles and power supply contracts, will
poise NCMPAL1 for future growth and efficient operations. As we look to the future with

a vision for our cities and the life our citizens enjoy, let’s enjoy the accomplishments and
cooperation and work together for continued success.
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TALESTERS,
(S

Jay C. Stowe John T. Walser, Jr. Jack F. Neel
: Secretary-Treasurer Vice Chairman Chairman
Shelby Lexington Albemarle

? 2004 NCMPA1 Board of Commissioners

Alternate commissioners’ names appear in italics

. Albemarle

i
'
1
l
i
‘
1
i
'

Mr. Raymond I. Allen
Mr. Jack F. Neel

Bostic
Commisioner Vacant
First Alternate Vacant

Cherryville
Mr. Ron Hovis
Ms. Gert K. Fisher

Cornelius
Mayor Gary T. Knox
Mr. James R. Bensman

Drexel
Mr. Matt Settlemyer
First Alternate Vacant

Gastonia
Mr. Franz F. Holscher
Mr. W. F. “Butch” Adams

Granite Falls
Mes. Linda K. Story
Dr. Caryl B. Burns

High Point
Mayor Rebecca R. Smothers
Mr. Stribling P. Boynton

Huntersville
Mr. Jeff Pugliese
Mr. Jerry E. Cox

Landis
Mr. Bobby O. Wood
First Alternate Vacant

Lexington
Mayor Richard L. Thomas
Mr. John T. Walser, Jr. - -

Lincolnton
Mr. Stephen H. Peeler
Mr. Jeff B. Emory

Maiden
Mr. Kevin C. Sanders
Mr. Todd Clark

Monroe
Mr. Donald D. Mitchell
Mr. Robert J. Smith

Morganton
Mr. Dan Brown
Ms. Sally W. Sandy

Newton
Mr. Edward F. Burchins
Mr. Martin D. Wilson

Pineville
Mayor George Fowler
Ms. Mary Ann Creech

Shelby
Mr. Kevin K. Allen
Mr. Jay C. Stowe

Statesville
Mr. Arthur E. Peterson
Mr. Herbert *Jim” Lawton
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NCMPAT ELECTRIC SYSTEM PARTICIPANTS

City Year Revenues Customers % Ownership

Albemarle 2004 $24,906,718 11,496 7.604%
2003 $24,949,517

Bostic 2004 not available 185 0.087%
2003 $303,982

Cherryville 2004 $4,731,803 2,926 1.579%
2003 $4,055,417

Cornelius 2004 $4,071,292 2,309 0.362%
2003 $3,187,456

Drexel 2004 $1,578,202 1,183 0.507%
2003 $1,804,394

Gastonia 2004 $54,741,137 25,200 17.121%
2003 $54,499,868

Granite Falls 2004 $4,029,175 2,354 0.912%
2003 $4,077,630

High Point 2004 $90,431,510 37,207 18.960%
2003 $85,029,325

Huntersville 2004 $6,008,172 3,531 0.623%
2003 $5,719,111

Landis 2004 $3,769,437 2,607 1.130%
2003 $4,169,012

Lexington 2004 $42,413,871 18,224 12.934%
2003 $43,471,149

Lincolnton 2004 $5,663,797 2,819 1.608%
2003 $5,632,490

Maiden 2004 $4,604,873 1,034 1.289%
2003 $5.014,582

Monroe 2004 $33,438,080 9,741 10.038%
2003 $33,925,723

Morganton 2004 $21,281,479 7,898 6.735%
2003 $22,214,145

Newton 2004 $8,742,343 4,266 2.115%
2003 $8,561,552

Pineville 2004 $9,019,723 2,452 0.536%
2003 $9,089,225

Shelby 2004 $14,470,116 7,990 5.996%
2003 $14,632,334

Statesville 2004 $31,905,469 12,659 9.864%
2003 $32,672,918
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NCMPA1T OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

Plant Information

| McGuire Unit 2 _

- Catavba Unit2
- McGuire Unit 1

* These numbers are reported by Duke Energy to the Nuclear
Regulatory Commission in the units’ December 2004 Operating
Data Report.

Catawba Unit 1 began a refueling outage on November 8, 2003
that ended on December 31. The 54 day refueling outage was
longer than recent outages due to the Rewind project on the
Main Generator. The next refueling outage for Unit 1 is
scheduled to begin in May 2005.

Catawba Unit 2 began a refueling outage on September 11,
2004 that ended on October 24. The unit completed a record
continuous run of 531 days - the longest for any nuclear unit
on the Duke Power system. The next refueling outage is
scheduled for March 2006.

McGuire Unit 1 began a refueling outage on March 6, 2004 that
ended on April 12. The unit completed a continuous run of 512
days. The next refueling outage is scheduled for September 2005.

McGuire Unit 2 is scheduled to begin a refueling outage on
March 1, 2005 that is scheduled to end on April 21. The unit
completed a continuous run of 506 days.

Catawba and McGuire License Extensions

Duke requested License Extensions from the Nuclear
Regulatory Commission (NRC) for both the McGuire and
Catawba Stations in June 2001. The NRC issued new operating
licenses for the McGuire and Catawba Units on December 5,
2003. The operating licenses are extended as follows:

Supplemental and Transmission Agreements

NCMPAL1 continues to purchase power through bilateral
agreements with other utilities and merchant generators for

its energy and capacity requirements above its Catawba Project
Entitlements. In 2004, these additional power needs came
from the following suppliers:

NCMPAT1 has a five-year agreement with Georgia Power
Company purchasing 125 MW that began on January 1,
2001.

NCMPA1 purchased S0 MW of capacity from Dynegy
Power Marketing, Inc. from their Rockingham County
North Carolina Units 1 through 4.

NCMPAT1 has the right to schedule and receive 60 MW
of power from the Southeastern Power Administration.

NCMPAT’s two-year agreement with Southern Company
expired in 2004. Southern provided resource management
services including scheduling energy deliveries from
INCMPAL1’s resources to meet NCMPA1's native load
requirements and surplus sales commitments.

In 2004, NCMPAL entered into an Instantaneous Capacity
and Energy Services Agreement for 75 MW and a Backstand
Capacity and Energy Agreement for up to 432 MW with Duke
Power for the years 2005 through 2007. NCMPA1 also entered
into a marketing services agreement with ACES Power
Marketing for 200S. Beginning on January 1, 2005, the
combination of these agreements enables NCMPA1 to perform
all intra-day energy services through ACES while conducting
its day-ahead, short-, mid- and long-term marketing through
internal resources.

NCMPAL1 purchases transmission for its native load require-
ments from Duke Electric Transmission in accordance with
Duke’s Open Access Transmission Tariff, All the required
agreements have been filed and approved by the Federal
Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC).

Distributed Generaﬁon

NCMPA1 owns 10 1,825 kW generators located at city delivery
points. These units, totaling 18.25 MW, were installed in 2002
and are operated on short notice during periods of high
demand and high market prices. Also under remote control
operation are city generators totaling 35 MW. This combina-
tion of over 50 MW of remote operation, fast start units pro-
vides great operational flexibility for NCMPA1’s power supply
program.

2004 Annual Report
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NCMPA1 OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

NCMPA1 has been successful in placing under contract an addi-

tional 25 MW of generation owned by cities and retail customers

for local operations under NCMPA1’s power supply program.
These operations are coordinated through NCMPA1's control
center, maintaining availability during times of peak demand
and high market prices. NCMPA1 will continue to evaluate
additional distributed generation opportunities to improve
power supply flexibility and reliability.

Load Management

Almost $6.5 million in savings were passed on to customers as a
result of NCMPA1's load management operations. The operation
of various demand-side management programs results in a total
peak reduction of over 70 MW each month. The load manage-
ment strategy this year focused on forecasting accuracy, effective-
ly reducing the number of load management control hours.
NCMPAL1 operated load management an average of six hours

per month, which is 40 percent less than 2003.

Retail Billing Services

NCMPAL1 continues to provide retail billing services to the cities
through its Customer Billing System and database. This system
allows cities to offer innovative retail rates that could not be
accommodated by their internal billing systems. City staff
members utilize customer usage data, stored in the database and
accessible through a secure extranet site, in making cost saving
operaticnal recommendations to customers,

Wholesale Rates

NCMPAL1 had a one percent wholesale rate increase in 2004
that also included revenue-neutral rate structure changes to
more accurately reflect its power supply costs.

Security

Following the 2001 terrorist attacks on the World Trade Center
and Pentagon, the nation’s nuclear plants came under scrutiny
as potential targets. As a result, nuclear power plants upgraded
security measures. Under the contractual agreement with both
NCMPA1 and NCEMPA, all issues of security are handled by
Duke and PEC. Both Duke and PEC coordinate closely with fed-
eral, state and local authorities and continue to take appropriate
steps to ensure safety and security at all the nuclear facilities in
which NCMPA1 and NCEMPA have ownership.

Economic Development

The western North Carolina cities continue their success with
industry recruitment and expansion of their existing industries.

In 2004, NCMPA1 members added 812 new jobs to their
communities with investments totaling $92,007,880. New
load added to the Agency totaled more than 8 MW. Staff
continues their efforts with the North Carolina Department
of Commerce, local developers and regional partnerships to
further the strategic load growth efforts in our communities.

Emphasis was placed on Target Marketing Plans for the cities.
The main focus of these plans is to provide strategies, industry
targets and specific action steps necessary for each community
to successfully pursue the recruitment of new businesses and
industries. The elements of the plan include: Economic and
Demographic Profile; Economic Development Preparedness
Assessment; Target Market Analysis with Recommended
Industry Targets; and a Marketing Plan. Plans have been
completed and work continues with the implementation
process. City officials and ElectriCities staff will be working
with industry sectors identified as well as working with the
Whittaker Group to focus recruitment efforts on companies
identified as having plans to expand or relocate within 12-18
months.

There were several successes for new industry recruitments.

Z. E Lemforder will be locating in Newton, resulting in 200
new jobs and $40 million in investment. Getrag Gears will be
expanding in Maiden with 200 jobs and $80 million in invest-
ment. Other success stories include Goodrich in Monroe with
300 jobs and $11 million investment and Globalec Industries
in High Point with 60 jobs and $1 million investment.

Advertising for the year was focused on the following seg-
ments: Automotive; Pharmaceutical/Medical Instruments;
Electronics; Biotechnology; Rubber; Plastics; and Fabricated
Metals. Approximately 269 inquiries were made which
resulted in numerous site visits within the cities and towns.

Marketing and promotion exhibits were submitted to the
Southern Economic Development Council (SEDC) for their
yearly awards. The Lake Norman Regional Economic
Development Commission (Cornelius and Huntersville)
advertising campaign received an award of merit.

Marketing and Customer Retention Program

The participants of NCMPA1 continue to focus on the reten-
tion of large industrial and commercial accounts as well as
other key accounts in their communities. Agency participants
recognize the important roles these key accounts play in their
cities and towns. NCMPAT1 staff and members received key
account training through ElectriCities. FlectriCities became
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NCMPA1T OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

the first APPA member to offer APPA's Key Accounts Certificate
Program when it presented the course in August 2003 in
Boone, North Carolina. A second class was held in May 2004 in
Wilmington. The fast track program consists of three courses,
along with an oral and a written exam. Class participants also
were required to file a key accounts business plan and a cus-
tomer marketing plan to complete the requirements for
certification.

The Agency members continue to call upon the expertise
of the Agency’s Key Accounts Managers to better serve their
largest end-users. A formal key account plan is being devel-

oped for each of the 19 agency members. The ultimate goal of |

this effort is to help these key community businesses maintain
a high level of efficiency and prosper within the Agency
members’ distribution systems.

The customer retention program includes innovative rate
structures, customer education and energy solutions provided
through our Energy Solutions Partner (ESP) program. For
example, new on-peak and off-peak rates and customer genera-
tion rate riders allow customers to reduce their demand for
energy during periods of high power costs. Commercial and
industrial customers have access to day-long seminars on sub-
jects ranging from energy management and sub-metering to
power restoration. The Agency’s ESP program has formed
partnerships with nationally known companies to help provide

valuable energy solutions to key customers. Examples include ‘

PowerSecure's Interactive Distributed Generation system and
Carrier Corporation’s HVAC solutions. The ESP program sold
over $5.2 million in products and services during 2004. -

Also in 2004, NCMPA1 took an active role in working with
the healthcare industry. Several hospitals and long-term care
facilities are located throughout our members' communities

_and they play a vital role in the welfare of the communities.

In an effort to work with this group of customers, NCMPA1
held a workshop on back-up generation at healthcare facilities,
which was promoted jointly by NCMPA1 and the North
Carolina Hospital Association.

Last year, at the request of several member cities, a new team

of ElectriCities employees was assembled to develop programs
and services to help cities address the needs of residential cus-
tomers. The team, named HEAT (the Home Energy Assistance

* Team) developed a comprehensive array of programs and

services to enable residential customers to save money on
electric bills and conserve energy. '

Some of the initiatives resulting from HEAT's efforts were:
energy education programs, including Understanding Energy
Use Workshops; communication programs such as the weather-
ization video distributed in December; new Energy Auditor
Training; and customized Customer Service Training.

Huntersville/Cornelius

The merger of Huntersville and Cornelius electric operations
in 1997 continues to show reduced operating costs, exceptional

“customer service and value for customers of the towns. Other

achievements in 2004 include the department’s receipt of the

" highest safety award given by the NC Association of Municipal

Electric Systems for working in excess of 90,000 hours without
an accident or injury.

Both towns renewed their contract with ElectriCities to operate

“and maintain their electric systems. Reduced operating costs
-and economies of scale from load growth have enabled both
towns to maintain electric rates at the same level for the past

five years. As both towns continue to grow and regional eco-
nomic development is emphasized, operating costs continue
to decline.

Providing safe, responsive and value-added customer service is
emphasized in daily operations. A new meter reading system,

" including expanded automated reading, was installed for the

towns. Both towns are transitioning to a new computer and

- billing system that will include improvements in bill format, _

information and more payment options.

The Huntersville/Cornelius merger has been successful and
shows that regionalization of electric systems is possible and

~ economical for customers and towns.
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NCMPA1 FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Investment Portfolio Statistics

Earnings*
Income

2004 $36,136,000
2003 $36,105,000

Market Value as of 12/31*
Value

2004 $869,416,000
2003 $844,695,000

Transactions
Number
2004 514
2003 632
Debt Outstanding
Debt Outstanding 12/31
Balance
Fixed Rate Bonds

2004 $1,835,965,000
2003 $1,877,870,000

Variable-Rate Securities
2004 $149,700,000
2003 $149,700,000

NCMPA1 Bond Reconciliation
Bonds Outstanding
12/31/03 $

Matured
1/1/2004

Rate of return

4.69%
4.84%

Average maturity

5.7 years
5.1 years

Amount

$5,839,222,000
$7,769,255,000

Weighted Average

Interest Cost

5.52%
5.46%

1.42%
1.34%

2,027,570,000

41,905,000

Bonds Outstanding
12/31/04 $

1,985,665,000

NCMPAT Bonds Outstanding

Series
Series 1992

Series 1993

Series 1995A
Series 1997A
Series 1998A
Series 1999A
Series 1999B
Series 2003A
Series 2003B

Series 2003C

Par Amount
$ 364,860,000

$ 150,515,000
$ 79,440,000
$ 97,775,000
$ 127,645,000
$ 83,340,000
$ 200,600,000
$ 713,310,000
$ 18,480,000

$ 149,700,000

* For eamings and market value, amounts include income from and
market value of securities held in the decommissioning trust.
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NCMPA1 INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors
North Carolina Municipal Power Agency Number 1
Raleigh, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of North Carolina Municipal Power
Agency Number 1 as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related statements of
revenues and expenses and changes in fund equity, and cash flows for the years then
ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Agency's management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material mis-
statement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provided a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of North Carclina Municipal Power Agency Number 1 as
of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the changes in financial position and its cash flows
for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

The Management'’s Discussion and Analysis section listed in the table of contents is not a
required part of the financial statements but is supplementary information required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures,
which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measure-
ment and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not
audit this information and express no opinion thereon.

Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial state-
ments taken as a whole. The other financial information as listed in the table of contents
as of and for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the
basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Clonng, Ghoa b 420, £

Raleigh, North Carolina
April 11, 2005
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NCMPAT1T MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) and estimated annual debt service reductions
‘ between $2,056,000 and $3,669,000 per year through

As management of North Carolina Municipal Power Agency 2018.
Number 1 (the Agency), we offer this narrative overview and

g A A SR

analysis of the financial activities of the Agency for the years
ended December 31, 2004 and 2003. We encourage you

to read this information in conjunction with additional
information furnished in the Agency’s audited financial
statements that follow this narrative.

Financial Highlights

The Agency’s basic financial statements consist of a single
electric enterprise fund.

At year-end 2004 and 2003, the Agency's assets exceeded
its liabilities by $7,400,000 (fund equity).

The Agency'’s total fund equity remained unchanged during
2004 and 2003 due to the use of $7,915,000 and
$33,293,000, respectively, of Rate Stabilization Funds to
meet a portion of operating expenses.

Year-end 2004 and 2003 unrestricted fund equity was
$75,169,000 and $125,207,000, respectively, after
decreasing $50,038,000 and $1,506,000, respectively.

The Agency’s total debt decreased $41,905,000 and
$125,358,000 during 2004 and 2003, respectively.

¢ Decreased $41,905,000 and $64,323,000 due to
principal paid January 1, 2004 and 2003, respectively,
in accordance with debt service schedules.

¢ Decreased $61,035,000 in 2003 due to equity
contributions to facilitate the debt refunding issue.

In March and April 2003 the Agency refinanced some of
its existing debt to take advantage of historically low
interest rates.

¢ In March 2003, the Agency issued $773,445,000 of
Series 2003A and B Bonds to refund $802,460,000
of previously issued bonds. Net present value savings
realized were $61,748,000 with estimated annual
debt service reductions of approximately $6,000,000
pet year through 2019.

* In April 2003, the Agency issued $149,700,000 of
Series 2003C Bonds to refund $181,720,000 of
previously issued bonds. The 2003C issue is variable
rate debt. To estimate the present value savings and
related debt services schedules, the Agency assumed a
3.5% interest rate over the life of the debt. This
resulted in a net present value savings of $8,859,000

E As a result of continued improvement in the Agency’s
financial condition, the rating agencies were invited to
visit the Agency and some of its member cities in order to
reevaluate their ratings in 2004. In conjunction with the
visit and the bond offering in 2003 the bond ratings
remained the same or improved as follows:

¢ Standard and Poor’s - Unchanged at BBB+ (stable)
throughout the two year period.

¢ Moody’s - From Baal (stable) to Baal (positive) in
2003 and from Baal (positive) to A3 (stable) in 2004.

¢ Fitch - From BBB+ (stable) to BBB+ (positive) in 2003
and from BBB+ (positive) to A- (stable) in 2004.

B The Agency increased rates to Participants by 1.0% and
2.0% effective July 1, 2004 and 2003, respectively, in
accordance with the Agency’s Rate Increase Relief Plan.

H In 2003, the Agency received $11,200,000 from the
counterparty to the swap for amending the agreement
to allow the counterparty the one-time opportunity to
terminate the swap on January 1, 2005 with no
termination fee.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This MD&A serves as an introduction to the Agency's basic
financial statements and notes to the financial statements (see
Exhibit 1). In addition to the basic financial statements, this
report contains other supplemental information designed to
enhance your understanding of the financial condition of the

Agency.

Exhibit 1~

Required Components of the Annual Financial Report :

Management’s Basic
Discussion and Financial -
Analysis Statements
T oy

Notesto .
Financial
Statements
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NCMPA1T MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Basic Financial Statements

The Agency is a special purpose government that accounts for
its activities as a business type entity. The first statements of
the basic financial statements are for the Agency’s single propri-
etary fund that focuses on the business activities of the electric
enterprise. The statements are designed to provide a broad
overview of the Agency’s finances, operations and cash flows,
similar in format to private sector business statements, and pro-
vide short and long-term information about the Agency’s
financial status. The statements report fund equity and how it
has changed during the period. Fund equity is the difference
between total assets and total liabilities. Analyzing the various
components of fund equity is one way to gauge the Agency’s
financial condition.

The second section of the basic financial statements is the
notes that explain in more detail some of the data contained in
the basic financial statements. The notes provide additional
information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the fund financial statements. The notes are on
pages 32 to 44 of this report.

After the notes, supplemental information is provided to show
how the Agency’s rates recovered its expenses as defined by the
Bond Resolution, to show the Agency’s performance against
budget and to show activities in the special funds established
by the Bond Resolution. Supplemental information can be
found on pages 45 to 47 of this report.

Financial Analysis

The electric enterprise fund financial statements for the years
ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 are presented in

accordance the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement 34.

The various components of fund equity may serve over time as
a useful indicator of the Agency’s financial condition. The
assets of the Agency exceeded liabilities by $7,400,000 at
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002. The Agency’s net assets
remained unchanged during 2004 and 2003 due to the use of
$7,915,000 and $33,293,000, respectively, of Rate Stabilization
Funds to cover operating expenses in accordance with the rate
setting plan. ‘

The deficit portion of fund equity of $(183,043,000),
$(205,521,000) and $(299,407,000) at December 31, 2004, 2003
and 2002, respectively, reflects the Agency's investments in
capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, generation facilities, nuclear
fuel and equipment), less any related debt still outstanding that
was issued to acquire those items. The deficit occurs because
depreciation is expensed on a straight line basis over the life of
the plant while debt repayment is structured similar to a home
mortgage where early debt payments include more interest
than principal and later payments include more principal than
interest. This deficit was reduced during 2004 and 2003 due to
the payment of principal debt service on January 1 of each year
and the payment of capital additions from current operating
funds. In 2003 it was also reduced due to the equity contribu-
tions to facilitate the refunding issue. Both years' reductions
were net of depreciation expense.

The Agency uses these capital assets to provide power to its
Participants. Consequently, these assets are not available for

PR
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NCMPA1 MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

future spending. Although the Agency’s investments in capital
assets are reported net of the outstanding related debt, the
resources needed to repay that debt will be provided through
rates and certain reserve funds since the capital assets cannot
be used to liquidate the liabilities.

An additional portion of the Agency’s fund equity of
$115,274,000, $87,714,000 and $151,143,000 as of December
31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, represents resources that
are restricted for the payment of debt service.’

An additional portion of the Agency’s fund equity $-0-, $-0-
and $28,951,000 at December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respec-
tively, represents resources that are restricted for the payment
of the Agency’s asset retirement obligation (decommissioning
of the nuclear units). The adoption of the Statement of

Financial Accounting Standard (SFAS) No. 143, “Accounting for

Asset Retirement Obligations” resulted in deficit amounts in
2004 and 2003 and these deficits have been reclassified to

unrestricted net assets. The recognition of the asset retirement '

obligation is on the straight-line basis over the life of the plant

while funding of the decommissioning trust takes into account -

the interest earnings on the moneys deposited into the fund.

The remaining balance of $75,169,000, $125,207,000, and
$126,000,000 as of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respec-
tively, is unrestricted fund equity.

The aspects of the Agency’s financial operations that most
influenced total unrestricted net equity is:

B Other revenues increased as a result of the benefit received
from modifying the original swap agreement to provide
the counter party with a one-time option to terminate the
agreement of January 1, 2005.

M Revenues increased as a result of a rate increase instituted
each year.

B The Agency balances revenues and expenses through the
use of its Rate Stabilization Fund.

* Budgetary Highlights

B No amendments were necessary either year.

B The Agency implemented a 1.0% and 2.0% rate increase
effective July 1, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

B The Agency utilized $7,915,000 and $33,293,000 of the
Rate Stabilization Fund during the 2004 and 2003,
respectively.
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NCMPA1 MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Capital Assets and Debt Administration in 2004 and 2003, respectively, due to the transfer of
completed projects.
Capital Assets

The Agency’s investments in capital assets at December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002 totaled $918,209,000, $924,415,000 and

B Depreciation expense of $42,985,000 and $81,003,000
for 2004 and 2003, respectively.

$864,897,000, respectively (net of accumulated amortization B In 2004 and 2003 there were write-offs of $43,942,000

and depreciation). These assets include land, buildings, genera- and $18,581,000, respectively, of spent nuclear fuel and

tion facilities, nuclear fuel and equipment. the retirement of $8,795,000 and $1,730,000, respectively,
of electric plant in service.

Major capital asset transactions during the year include the
following: B In 2003, electric plant in service (EPIS) increased
$97,015,000 and accumulated depreciation increased
$41,099,000 due to the asset retirement obligation
adjustment January 1, 2003 in accordance with Statement
of Financial Accounting Standard No. 143, “Accounting
B Construction work in progress decreased and electric for Asset Retirement Obligations.”

plant in service increased by $24,296,000 and $14,770,000

B Construction work in progress increased $18,786,000 and
$14,308,000 in 2004 and 2003, respectively, due to capital
additions at the Catawba plant.

Exhibit 4

anstruct n Work In Progress ,
“‘y.Total Electrlc Utlhty Plant (Net) Z'862,166 :$ 59,765 $ 921,931

N
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NCMPA1T MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

otal Non-Utility Property and Equipment, Ne

Additional information on capital assets can be found in Note
C beginning on page 36.

Outstanding Debt

The Agency’s total debt outstanding at December 31, 2004,
2003 and 2002 was $1,985,822,000, $2,027,570,000 and
$2,152,928,000, respectively, all of which are revenue bonds.
Total debt decreased by $41,905,000 (2.1%) and $125,658,000
(5.8%) during 2004 and 2003, respectively, due to the principal
payments made in January in accordance with debt service
schedules. In addition, during 2003, total debt decreased due
to equity contributions made to facilitate the debt refunding
issue.

No debt offerings occurred during 2004.

In March 2003, the Agency refinanced some of its existing debt
to take advantage of historically low interest rates. The Agency
issued $773,445,000 of Series 2003 A and B Refunding Bonds to
refund $802,640,000 of previously issued bonds. The net pres-
ent value savings realized were $61,748,000 with debt service
savings of approximately $6,000,000 per year through 2019.

In April 2003, the Agency issued $149,700,000 of Series 2003C
Bonds to refund $181,720,000 of previously issued bonds. The
2003C issue is variable rate debt. To estimate the present value
savings and related debt service schedules, the Agency assumed
a 3.5% interest rate over the life of the debt. This resulted in
net present value savings of $8,859,000 and estimated annual
savings between $2,056,000 and $3,669,000 per year through
2018.

In January 2005 the Agency refinanced some of its existing
debt to take advantage of lower interest rates. The Agency
issued $33,425,000 of Series 2005A and B Refunding Bonds to
refund $33,425,000 of previously issued bonds. The net pres-
ent value savings realized were $2,288,000 with debt service
savings of approximately $460,000 per year through 2014.

As a tesult of continued improvement in the Agency’s financial
condition, the rating agencies were invited to visit the Agency
and some of its member cities during 2004 in order to reevalu-
ate the Agency’s rating. The Agency’s bond rating improved or
stayed the same over the two year period as follows:

B Moody’s Investor Service increased the rating from Baal
(stable) to Baal (positive) in January 2003 and to A3
(stable) in December 2004.

B FitchRatings increased from BBB+ (stable) to BBB+
(positive) in January 2003 and to A- (stable) in December
2004.

B Standard and Poor’s Corporation rating remained
unchanged at BBB+ (stable) throughout the period.

Additional information regarding the Agency’s long-term debt
can be found in Note F beginning on page 41 of this report.
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NCMPAT MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates Budget Highlights for 2005

Economic Factors

The following key economic factors played a role in the 2005
budget.

B Over the past year, a continued modest economic recovery
has improved demand for electricity. The loss of manufac-
turing facilities to overseas competitors has played itself
out and has been fully accounted for in the forecasts. As
the economy picked up over the past year, short-term
economic indicators have improved. Key areas of growth
affecting the load forecast include housing (residential
demand) and high-tech industries.

B Increased fuel costs continue to drive production costs
upward. Natural gas prices increased to the $6/MBTU to
$7/MBTU level, and the forward markets suggest that this

H Implements a 1.0% increase in wholesale rates effective
July 1.

R The load forecast estimates energy sales growing 2.3% for
2005.

B Projects that $39,900,000 of Rate Stabilization Funds will
be utilized.

H Projects that $8,000,000 of the Supplemental Fund
Reserve Account will be utilized for credits to large
commercial and industrial customers.

B Anticipates scheduled refueling outages for Catawba 1,
McGuire 1 and McGuire 2.

B Projects that $19,100,000 will be spent on capital
additions at the Catawba plant.

trend will remain in place. High natural gas prices are Requests for Information

driven by the depletioﬂ of wells in the Gulf of Mexico and This report is designed to provide an overview of the Agency's

by the increase in the number of gas-fired generating
units. Coal prices have also increased dramatically over
the past year due to increasing transportation and mining
costs, as well as increased demand for more expensive and

finances for those with an interest in this area. Questions con-
cerning any of the information found in this report or requests
for additional information should be directed to the Chief
Financial Officer, North Carolina Municipal Power Agency

cleaner burning low-sulfur coal. With coal and natural gas Number 1, PO. Box 29513, Raleigh, NC 27626-0513.

prices elevated, both on and off-peak electricity prices are
expected to remain higher than historical averages.
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NCMPA1 BALANCE SHEETS

($000s)
December 31,
2004 2003
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Capital Assets (Note C)
Electric Utility Plant, Net
Electric plant in service $ 1,574,459 $ 1,559,610
Construction work in progress 13,177 18,687
Nuclear fuel 113,754 139,956
Less accumulated depreciation & amortization (785,622) {796,322)
Total Electric Utility Plant, Net 915,768 921,931
Non-Utility Property and Equipment, Net
Property and Equipment 5,088 4,835
Less accumulated depreciation (2,647) (2,351)
Total Non-Utility Property and Equipment, Net 2,441 2,484
Total Capital Assets 918,209 924,415
Restricted Assets
Special Funds Invested (Notes D and F):
Bond fund 314,747 286,700
Reserve and contingency fund 19,229 20,003
Special reserve fund 1,089 1,120
Total Special Funds Invested 335,065 307,823
Trust for Decommissioning Costs (Notes D and F) 185,678 169,148
Total Restricted Assets 520,743 476,971
Deferred Costs:
Unamortized debt issuance costs 34,186 37,395
Costs of advance refundings of debt 247,568 277,310
Other Deferred Costs (Note E) 397,276 408,978
Total Deferred Costs 679,030 723,683
Total Non-Current Assets 2,117,982 2,125,069
Current Assets
Funds Invested (Notes D and F):
Revenue fund 167,631 161,068
Operating fund 56,279 68,800
Supplemental fund 128,988 142,352
Total Funds Invested 352,898 372,220
Participant accounts receivable 21,974 21,489
Operating accounts receivable 7,348 3,706
Prepaid expenses 45,875 42,438
Derivative financial instruments (Note B} 6,919
Total Current Assets 428,095 446,772
Total Assets $ 2,546,077 $ 2,571,841

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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NCMPAT BALANCE SHEETS

($000s)
December 31,
2004 2003
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Long-Term Debt: :
Bonds, net of unamortized discount (Note F) $ 1,914,715 $ 1,985,665
Less unamortized premium (discount) 4,322 3,932
Total Long-Term Debt 1,919,037 1,989,597
Asset Retirement Obligation 200,321 189,357
Deferred Revenues (Note E) 278,937 271,975
Commitments and Contingencies (Note G)
Total Non-Current Liabilities 2,398,295 2,450,929
Current Liabilities
Operating Liabilities:
Accounts payable 9,527 12,128
Accrued taxes 15,104 14,498
Total Operating Liabilities 24,631 26,626
Special Funds Liabilities:
Current maturities of bonds (Note F) 70,950 41,905
Accrued interest on bonds 44,801 44,981
Total Special Funds Liabilities 115,751 86,886
Total Current Liabilities 140,382 113,512
Total Liabilities 2,538,677 2,564,441
Fund Equity
Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt (deficit) (183,043) (205,521)
Restricted for debt service 115,274 87,714
Unrestricted 75,169 125,207
Total Fund Equity 7,400 7,400

Total Liabilities and Fund Equity
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NCMPAT STATEMENTS OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY

($000s)
Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003
Operating Revenues:
Sales of electricity to participants $ 285,488 $ 277,581
Sales of electricity to utilities 77,511 73,471
Other revenues (Note H) 1,133 11,962
Total Operating Revenues 364,132 363,014
Operating Expenses:
Operation and maintenance 75,278 86,771
Nuclear fuel 27,942 25,254
Interconnection services:
Purchased power 35,054 47,650
Transmission and distribution 15,759 16,518
Other 156 162
Total Interconnection services 50,969 64,330
Administrative and general 37,996 34,096
Cross receipts and excise taxes 12,792 10,894
Property tax 11,308 12,339
Depreciation 21,146 21,343
Asset retirement obligation 10,963 14,535
Total Operating Expenses 248,394 269,562
Operating Income 115,738 93,452
Nonoperating (Revenues) Expenses
Investment income (35,900) (34,891)
Net decrease in fair value of investments and derivative financial instruments 7,943 37,728
Interest expense 91,689 94,682
Amortization of debt refunding costs 29,742 38,194
Amortization of debt discount and issuance costs 3,600 4,751
Net (increase) decrease in other deferred costs (Note E) 11,702 (17,629)
Net increase in deferred revenues (Note E) 6,962 (29,383)
Total nonoperating expenses 115,738 93,452
Change in Fund Equity - -
Fund Equity, Beginning of Year 7,400 7,400
Fund Equity, End of Year $ 7,400 $ 7,400

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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NCMPAT STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

($000s)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from sales of electricity
Receipts from other revenues
Payments of operating expenses
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Bonds issued
Bonds refunded
Interest paid _
Additions to electric utility plant and non-utility property and equipment
Bonds retired
Debt premium net of issuance costs
Net cash used for capital and related financing activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Sales and maturities of investment securities

Purchases of investment securities

Investment earnings receipts from non-construction funds

Net cash provided by investing activities
Net Increase (Decrease) in Operating Cash
Operating Cash, Beginning of year
Operating Cash, End of year

Reconciliation of Net Operating Income to Net Cash Provided by
Operating Activities:

Net Operating Income
Adjustments:
Depreciation
Amortization of nuclear fuel
Amortization of asset retirement obligation
Changes in assets and liabilities:

“ Increase in participant accounts receivable
Increase in operating accounts receivable
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses
Increase in accounts payable
(Increase) decrease in accrued taxes

Total Adjustments
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003
$ 358,872 $ 349,616
1,133 11,962
(188,950) (211,559)
171,055 150,019
923,145
(984,180)
(91,869) (105,319)
(47,707) (44,532)
(41,905) (64,323)
5,405
(181,481) 269,804)
5,795,000 7,837,243
(5,807,070) (7,740,572)
22,494 23,110
10,424 119,781
2) 4)
2 6
3 - $ 2
$ 115738 $ 93,452
21,146 21,343
27,942 25,254
10,963 14,535
(485) (842)
(3,642) (593)
(3,437) 3,179
(2,854) (3,355)
5,684 (2,954)
55,317 56,567
$ 171,055 $ 150,019
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Years Ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

A. GENERAL MATTERS

North Carolina Municipal Power Agency Number 1 (Agency)
is a joint agency organized and existing pursuant to Chapter
159B of the General Statutes of North Carolina to enable
municipalities owning electric distribution systems, through
the organization of the Agency, to finance, construct, own,
operate, and maintain electric generation and transmission
facilities. The Agency has nineteen members (Participants)
with interests ranging from 0.0869% to 18.9600%, which
receive power from the Agency.

The Project

The Agency has entered into several agreements with Duke
Energy Corporation (Duke) which govern the purchase, owner-
ship, construction, operation and maintenance of the project:

The Purchase, Construction and Ownership Agreement
provides, among other things, for the Agency to purchase a
75% undivided ownership interest in Unit 2 of the Catawba
Nuclear Station (station) and a 37.5% undivided ownership
interest in certain support facilities of the station (jointly
the project). However, by virtue of various provisions
contained in the Interconnection Agreement and the
Operation and Fuel Agreement, the Agency (1) bears the
costs of acquisition, construction, operation and mainte-
nance of 37.5% of Unit 1 and 37.5% of Unit 2, and (2) has
the same proportionate right to the output of and bears the
risks associated with the lack of operation of such units.

The Interconnection Agreement provides for the intercon-
nection between Duke's electric power system and the
Agency's project and for the exchange of power between
Unit 1 and Unit 2 of the station and between the Catawba
units and Duke’s McGuire Nuclear Station (Reliability
Exchanges). Pursuant to the reliability exchanges, project
output is provided in essentially equal amounts from
Catawba Unit 2 and three other nuclear units (Catawba
Unit 1, McGuire Unit 1 and McGuire Unit 2} in operation
on the Duke system, all of similar size and capacity. The
reliability exchanges are intended to make more reliable the
supply of capacity and energy to the Agency in the amount
to which the Agency is entitled pursuant to its ownership
interest in Catawba Unit 2 and to mitigate potential adverse
economic effects on the Agency and the Participants from
unscheduled outages of Catawba Unit 2. Correspondingly,
the Agency bears risks resulting from unscheduled outages
of any Catawba or McGuire Unit.

The Operation and Fuel Agreement provides for Duke to
operate, maintain and fuel the station; to make renewals,
replacements and capital additions as approved by the
Agency; and for the ultimate decommissioning of the
station at the end of its useful life.

The Agency's acquisition of its ownership interest is being
financed by electric revenue bonds pursuant to Resolution
No. R-16-78, as amended, (Resolution) of the Board of
Commissioners of the Agency. The Resolution established
special funds to hold proceeds from debt issuance, such
proceeds to be used for costs of acquisition and construction
of the project, for working capital and to establish certain
reserves. The Resolution also established special funds in
which project revenues are deposited and from which project
operating costs, debt service and other specified payments
relating to the project are made.

The Agency entered into two power sales agreements with each
of its Participants for supplying the total electric power require-
ments of the Participants in excess of Southeastern Power
Administration (SEPA) allocations. With the power generated
from the project, together with supplemental purchases of
power, the Agency provides the total electric power require-
ments of its Participants, exclusive of power allotments from
SEPA. Under the Project Power Sales Agreements, the Agency
sells to the Participants their respective shares of project out-
put. The revenues received relative to the project are pledged as
security for bonds issued under the Resolution, after payment
of project operating expenses. Each Participant is obligated to
pay its share of operating costs and debt service for the project.
Under the Supplemental Power Sales Agreements, the Agency
supplies each Participant the additional power it requires in
excess of that provided by output from the project and from
SEPA.

To meet its supplemental power requirements, the Agency
entered into a five-year contract with Georgia Power Company
(GPC) for the purchase of 125 MW beginning in 2001; into

a four-year contract with Dynergy Power Marketing for the
purchase of 50 MW beginning in 2003 and a resource
management contract with Southern Company which allows
the purchase of energy when necessary. In both 2004 and
2003 the Agency purchased energy under the resource manage-
ment contract with Southern Company. Finally, the Agency
has constructed 18.25 MW of Distributed Generation to be
called upon as needed.
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ElectriCities of North Carolina, Inc.

ElectriCities of North Carolina, Inc. (ElectriCities), organized as

- a joint municipal assistance agency under the General Statutes

of North Carolina, is a public body and body corporate and
politic created for the purpose of providing aid and assistance
to municipalities in connection with their electric systems and
to joint agencies, such as the Agency.

The Agency has entered into a management agreement with
ElectriCities. Under the current management agreement,
ElectriCities is required to provide, at cost, all personnel and
personnel services necessary for the Agency to conduct its
business in an economic and efficient manner. This agreement
continues through December 31, 2007, and is automatically
renewed for successive three-year periods unless terminated

by one year's notice by either party prior to the end of the
contract term.

For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Agency
paid ElectriCities $6,225,000 and $5,865,000, respectively.

B. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting

The accounts of the Agency are maintained on the accrual
basis, in accordance with the Uniform System of Accounts
of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, and are in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (GAAP). The Agency has adopted
the principles promulgated by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) and Statement of Financial Accounting
Standard (SFAS) No. 71, “Accounting for the Effects of Certain
Types of Regulation,” as amended. This standard allows utilities
to capitalize or defer certain costs and/or revenues based upon
the Agency’s ongoing assessment that it is probable that such
items will be recovered through future revenues.

The Agency reports in accordance with GASB Statement No.
34, “Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion
and Analysis - for State and Local Governments” (GASB No.
34). The statement requires certain information be included

in the financial statements and specifies how that information
should be presented.

The financial statements are prepared using the economic
resources measurement focus. Operating revenues are defined
as revenues received from the sale of electricity and associated
services. Revenues from capital and related financing activities
and investment activities are defined as non-operating rev-
enues. Restricted equity represents constraints on resources
that are imposed by Resolution and may be utilized only for

the purposes established by the Resolution. Unrestricted
equity may be utilized for any purpose approved by the
Board through the budget process. When both restricted
and unrestricted equity might be used to meet an obligation,
the Agency first uses the restricted equity.

Financial Reporting

Under GASB Statement No. 20, “Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental
Entities that Use Proprietary Fund Accounting,” the Agency
has adopted the option to apply Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) statements and interpretations that
do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.

Electric Plant in Service

All expenditures associated with the development and con-
struction of the Agency's ownership interest in the Catawba
station, including interest expense net of investment income
on funds not yet expended, have been recorded at original cost
and are being depreciated on a straight-line basis over the aver-
age composite life of each unit's assets. At December 31, 2004,
the remaining life for Catawba Units 1 and 2 was 39 years.

The increase in plant associated with the asset retirement
obligation adjustment arising from implementing SFAS No.
143 (discussed under Decommissioning Costs on page 35) is
also included. It is being depreciated over the remaining life
of the Catawba Units.

In November 2003, GASB issued Statement No. 42,
“Accounting and Financial Reporting for Impairment of Capital
Assets and for Insurance Recoveries”. Under this statement,
governments must report impairment of capital assets. GASB
defines impairment as a significant, unexpected decline in the
service utility of a capital asset. This statement also covers
insurance recoveries, whether connected to a loss or not.

The Agency will implement this statement for the year ending
December 31, 2006. The Agency has not yet determined what,
if any, impact it will have on the Agency’s financial statements.

Construction Work in Progress

All expenditures related to capital additions at Catawba are
capitalized as construction work in progress until such time as
they are completed and transferred to Electric Plant in Service.
No interest is capitalized on capital additions. Depreciation
expense is recognized on these items after they are transferred
to Electric Plant in Service.

Nuclear Fuel

All expenditures related to the purchase and construction of
the Agency’s undivided ownership interests in nuclear fuel
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cores are capitalized until such time as the cores are placed in
the reactor. No interest is capitalized on fuel cores. Once placed
in the reactor, they are amortized to fuel expense utilizing the
units of production method. Amounts are removed from the
books upon disposal of the spent nuclear fuel. Nuclear fuel
expense includes a provision for estimated spent nuclear fuel
disposal costs which is being collected currently from members.
Amortization of nuclear fuel costs includes estimated disposal
costs of $6,057,000 and $6,707,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The Energy Policy Act of 1992 established a fund for the decon-
tamination and decommissioning of the Department of
Energy’s (DOE) uranium enrichment plants. Nuclear plant
licensees are subject to an annual assessment for 15 years based
upon their pro rata share of past enrichment services. Duke
makes the annual payment to DOE for the Catawba station
and bills the co-owners monthly for their proportionate share.
The Agency's payments to Duke were approximately $930,000
and $909,000 in 2004 and 2003, respectively, and were record-
ed as fuel expense.

Under provisions of the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982,
Duke, on behalf of all co-owners of the Catawba station, has
entered into contracts with the DOE for the disposal of spent
nuclear fuel. The DOE failed to begin accepting the spent
nuclear fuel on January 31, 1998, the date provided by the
Nuclear Waste Policy Act and Duke’s contract with the DOE.
Duke, on behalf of all co-owners, filed a partial breach of con-
tract claim with the United States Court of Federal Claims
against the DOE for damages arising out of the DOE's failure to
begin accepting the spent nuclear fuel. Claimed damages are
intended to recover costs incurred and to be incurred as a result
of the DOE's partial material breach of its contract, including
costs associated with securing additional spent fuel storage
capacity. Duke has plans in place to provide adequate storage
capacity until such time as DOE begins receiving spent fuel.

Non-Utility Property and Equipment

Expenditures related to purchasing and installing an in-house
computer, jointly owned with North Carolina Eastern
Municipal Power Agency (NCEMPA), were capitalized and are
fully depreciated. In addition, the Agency purchased various
computer equipment for its load management and telemetry
programs which is being depreciated over the estimated useful
life of the equipment. Also included are the land and adminis-
trative office building jointly owned with North Carolina
Eastern Municipal Power Agency and used by both agencies
and ElectriCities. The administrative office building is being
depreciated over 37 1/2 years on a straight-line basis.

Investments

The Agency implemented the provisions of GASB Statement
No. 31, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain
Investments and for External Investment Pools,” which
requires investments in marketable debt securities to be
reported at fair value.

Derivative Financial Instruments

In 1998, the FASB issued SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities” (SFAS
No. 133). In June 2000, the FASB issued SFAS No. 138,
“Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain
Hedging Activities, an Amendment of SFAS 133” (SFAS No.
138). SFAS No. 133 and SFAS No. 138 require that all derivative
instruments be recorded on the balance sheet at their respec-
tive fair values. The Agency has implemented SFAS No. 133
and SFAS No. 138.

In 1999 the Agency entered into an interest rate swap agree-
ment with a termination date of December 2009. The swap
has not been designated as a hedge. The interest rate swap
agreement was entered into to synthetically convert a portion
of its fixed rate debt to variable rate debt over the life of the
swap. Under the fixed to variable interest rate swap, the Agency
receives a fixed rate of 4.984% through the termination date,
while paying a variable rate based on the BMA Municipal

Swap Index, 1.99% and 1.14% at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. Interest paid and received under the swap agree-
ment increases and decreases, respectively, interest expense.
The net effect was to reduce interest expense by $7,546,000
and $7,933,000 in 2004 and 2003, respectively. The notional
amount of this agreement is $200,600,000.

Under the original terms, the Agency had the unilateral right
to terminate the agreement with appropriate notice. In 2003
the Agency amended the agreement, extending a one-time
right to the counterparty to terminate the agreement with no
termination payment on January 1, 2005. This option was
exercised by the counterparty on January 1, 2005.

The fair value of the interest rate swap agreement was approxi-
mately $-0- and $6,919,000 at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. The fair value is the amount that would be paid
or received if the swap were terminated and may change as
market interest rates change. Current market pricing models
were used to estimate the fair value of the interest rate swap
agreement. The fluctuation in the fair value of the interest rate
swaps was a decrease of $6,919,000 in 2004 due to the option
to terminate January 1, 2005 and a decrease of $18,518,000 in
2003 (inclusive of the $11,200,000 payment received from the
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counterparty to amend the agreement) and is included in
“Increase (decrease) in fair value of investments and derivative
financial instruments” in the statements of revenues and
expenses.

By using derivative instruments, the Agency exposes itself to
credit risk and market risk. Credit risk is the failure of the coun-
terparty to perform under the terms of the derivative contract.
When the fair value of the derivative contract is positive, the
counterparty owes the Agency, which creates repayment risk
for the Agency. When the fair value of a derivative contract is
negative, the Agency owes the counterparty and, therefore,

is not subject to repayment risk. The Agency minimizes the
credit or repayment risk by entering into transactions with
high-quality counterparties.

Market risk is the adverse effect on the value of financial
instruments that results from a change in interest rates. The
market risk associated with interest-rate contracts is managed
by establishing and monitoring parameters that limit the types
and degree of market risk that may be undertaken.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist of trade accounts receivable associ-
ated with the sale of electricity and are stated at cost. The
Agency primarily sells to the Participants in the project and
accordingly, management does not believe an allowance for
doubtful accounts is required.

Nuclear License Extensions

In December 2003 the NRC granted license extensions for

both Catawba units. Thus, the Catawba 1 license was extended
from December 2024 to December 2043 and the Catawba 2
license was extended from February 2026 to December 2043.

Decommissioning Costs

U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) regulations require
that each licensee of a commercial nuclear power reactor fur-
nish to the NRC certification of its financial capability to meet
the costs of nuclear decommissioning at the end of the useful
life of the licensee's facility. As a co-licensee of Catawba Unit 2,
the Agency is subject to these requirements and therefore has
furnished certification of its financial capability to fund its
share of the costs of nuclear decommissioning of the Catawba
Station.

To satisfy the NRC's financial capability regulations, the Agency
established an external trust fund (Decommissioning Trust)
pursuant to a trust agreement with a bank. The Agency's certifi-
cation requires that the Agency make annual deposits to the

Decommissioning Trust which, together with the investment

earnings, amounts previously on deposit in the trust, and cer-
tain reserve assets, are anticipated to result in sufficient funds

being held in the Decommissioning Trust at the expiration of
the current operating licenses for the Catawba Units (2043) to
meet the Agency's share of decommissioning.

“The Decommissioning Trust is irrevocable and funds may be

withdrawn from the trust solely for the purpose of paying the
Agency's share of the costs of nuclear decommissioning. Under
the NRC regulations, the Decommissioning Trust is required to
be segregated from Agency assets and outside the Agency's
administrative control. The Agency is deemed to have incurred
and paid decommissioning costs as deposits are made to the
Decommissioning Trust. In addition to the Decommissioning
Trust, certain reserve assets are anticipated to be available to
satisfy the Agency’s total decommissioning liability.

Estimates of the future costs of decommissioning the units are
based on the most recent site-specific study that was conducted
on behalf of Duke in 2003. The Agency’s portion of decommis-
sioning costs, including the cost of decommissioning plant
components not subject to radioactive contamination, is
$374,742,000, stated in 2003 dollars.

- In 2001 the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset

Retirement Obligations” (SFAS No. 143). The Agency adopted

-- SFAS No. 143 effective January 1, 2003 as it relates to the

decommissioning costs of the Catawba Units 1 and 2 at the
end of their operating licenses, December 2043.

SFAS No. 143 requires the Agency to record the fair value of an

. asset retirement obligation as a liability in the period in which

it incurs a legal obligation associated with the retirement of
tangible long-lived assets that result from the acquisition, con-
struction, development and/or normal use of assets and record
a corresponding asset that will be depreciated over the life of
the asset. Subsequent to the initial measurement of the asset
retirement obligation, the obligation will be adjusted at the end
of each period to reflect the passage of time and changes in the
estimated future cash flows underlying the obligation. Any
such adjustments for changes in the estimated future cash

.. flows will also be capitalized and amortized over the remaining
~ life of the asset.

Changes in 'components of the asset retirement obligation
during 2004 and 2003 are as follows (in thousands of dollars):
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Liabilities incurred during the yea
abilitis seted during the ye:
 Accretion expense
! Revisions in estimated cash flows
Bélaﬁc’é;,‘ felriidfc;f yea

Deferred Costs

Unamortized debt issuance costs, shown net of accumulated
amortization of $14,217,000 and $11,274,000 at December 31,
2004 and 2003, respectively, are being amortized on the inter-
est method over the term of the related debt. Costs of advance
refundings of debt, shown net of accumulated amortization

of $214,426,000 and $185,377,000 at December 31, 2004 and
2003, respectively, are deferred and amortized over the term of
the debt issued on refunding. Other deferred costs and deferred
revenues are not amortized but will be either refunded to or
recovered from Participants through future rates (See Note E).

Premiums/Discounts on Bonds

Premiums (net of discounts) on bonds, shown net of
accumulated amortization of $30,579,000 and $30,083,000, at
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, are amortized over
the terms of the related bonds in a manner that yields a con-
stant rate of interest.

Taxes

Income of the Agency is excludable from federal income tax
under Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code. Chapter 1598
of the General Statutes of North Carolina exempts the Agency
from property and franchise or other privilege taxes. In lieu of
North Carolina property taxes, the Agency pays an amount
that would otherwise be assessed on the non-utility property
and equipment of the Agency. In lieu of a franchise or privi-
lege tax, the Agency pays to North Carolina an amount equal
to 3.22% of the gross receipts from sales of electricity to
Participants. Electric utility property is located in South
Carolina and subject to South Carolina property tax. An

electric power excise tax equal to .05% (5/10 mill) for each
kilowatt-hour of electric power generated and sold for resale
within South Carolina is also paid.

Statements of Cash Flows

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, operating cash
consists of unrestricted cash of $2,000 and $2,000 at December
31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, included on the balance sheet
in the line item "Current Assets: Funds Invested". Restricted
cash of $1,000 and $2,000 at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively, included on the balance sheet in the line item
“Restricted Assets: Special Funds Invested” is not included

on the statements of cash flows.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
GAAP requires management to make estimates and assump-
tions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

C. CAPITAL ASSETS

The Agency has commitments to Duke in connection with
capital additions for the station. Current estimates indicate
the Agency's portion of these costs for 2005 and 2006 will be
approximately $44,429,000.

Electric Utility Plant, Net

Changes in components of electric utility plant, net during
2004 and 2003 are as follows (in thousands of dollars):
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Electric il!tl[lty T_lejan g

'Total Electric Utlllty' Plant (Net

: Electnc Plant in Servnce
: Nuclear Fuel
i',TotaI Electnc Utility Plant
cumulated Deprec:atlon and A ortization:
lectﬁc Plant in Service'

0 n_structlon Work In Progres
Total Electric Utlhty Plant (Net)

Additions in 2003 for electric plant in service and accumulated Non-Utility Property and Equipment, Net
depreciation include $97,015,000 and $41,099,000, respectively,
representing the initial asset retirement obligation adjustment
recorded by the Agency in accordance with SFAS No. 143.

Changes in components of non-utility property and equipment
during 2004 and 2003 are as follows (in thousands of dollars):
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Property and Equipment "

D. INVESTMENTS
The Resolution authorizes the Agency to invest in 1) direct
obligations of or obligations of which the principal and interest
are unconditionally guaranteed by the United States (U.S.), 2)
obligations of any agency of the U.S. or corporation wholly
owned by the U.S,, 3) direct and general obligations of the
State of North Carolina or any political subdivision thereof
whose securities are rated "A" or better, 4) repurchase agree-
ments with the Bond Fund Trustee, Construction Fund Trustee
or any government bond dealer reporting to the Federal
Reserve Bank of New York which mature within nine months
from the date they were entered into and are collateralized by
previously described obligations, and 5) bank time deposits
evidenced by certificates of deposit and bankers' acceptances.

Bank time deposits may only be in banks with capital stock,
surplus and undivided profits of $20,000,000 or $50,000,000
for North Carolina banks and out-of-state banks, respectively,
and the Agency’s investments deposited in such banks cannot
exceed 50% and 25%, respectively, of such banks' capital stock,
surplus and undivided profits.

The Resolution permits the Agency to establish official deposi-
tories with any bank or trust company qualified under the laws
of North Carolina to receive deposits of public moneys and
having capital stock, surplus and undivided profits in excess

of $20,000,000.

All depositories must collateralize public deposits in excess of
federal depository insurance coverage. The Agency's deposito-
ries use the pooling method, a single financial institution

collateral pool. Under the pooling method, a depository estab-
lishes a single escrow account on behalf of all governmental
agencies. Collateral is maintained with an eligible escrow agent
in the name of the State Treasurer of North Carolina based on an
approved averaging method for demand deposits and the actual
current balance for time deposits less the applicable federal
depository insurance for each depositor. Responsibility for
sufficient collateralization of these excess deposits rests with

the financial institutions that have chosen the pooling method.
Because of the inability to measure the exact amount of collateral
pledged for the Agency under the pooling method, the potential
exists for under-collateralization. However, the State Treasurer
enforces strict standards for each pooling method depository,
which minimizes any risk of under-collateralization. At
December 31, 2004 and 2003 the Agency had $3,000 and
$4,000, respectively, covered by federal depository insurance.

The Agency's investments are categorized to give an indication of
the level of risk assumed by the Agency at year-end. Category 1
includes investments that are insured or registered or for which

- the securities are held by the Agency or its agent in the Agency’s

name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered invest-
ments for which the securities are held by the broker or dealer, or
by its trust department or agent in the Agency’s name. Category
3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the
securities are held by the broker or dealer, or by its safekeeping
department or agent, but not in the Agency’s name. All invest-
ments except repurchase agreements are considered Category 1.
Repurchase agreements are considered Category 3.
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NCMPA1 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Agency’s investments are detailed in the following schedule (in thousands of dollars):

December 31,

In accordance with the provisions of the Resolution, the collateral under the repurchase agreements is segregated and held by the

trustee for the Agency.

The Agency’s impaired investments are detailed in the following schedule (in thousands of dollars)

; December 31 2004
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NCMPAT NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

E. OTHER DEFERRED COSTS AND DEFERRED REVENUES

Rates for power billings to Participants are designed to cover
the Agency's operating expenses, debt requirements and
reserves as specified by the Resolution and power sales agree-
ments. Straight-line depreciation and amortization are not
considered in the cost of service calculation used to design
rates. In addition, certain earnings on funds established in
accordance with the Resolution are restricted to those funds
and are not available for current operations.

The differences between debt principal maturities (adjusted for
the effects of premiums, discounts and amortization of deferred
gains and losses) and straight-line depreciation and in interest
income recognition are recognized as other deferred costs.
When total deferred items exceed principal debt service, other
deferred costs increase. When principal debt service exceeds
total deferred items, other deferred costs decrease.

Funds collected through rates for reserve accounts and restrict-

ed investment income are recognized as deferred revenues,
thus increasing deferred revenues. When these funds are used
to meet current expenses, deferred revenues decrease.

The Agency’s present charges to the Participants, together
with planned withdrawals from the RateStabilization Fund
and Supplemental Reserve Account are sufficient to recover all
of the Agency’s current annual costs of the Participants” bulk
power needs. Each Participant is required under the power
sales agreements to set its rates for its customers at levels suffi-
cient to pay all its costs of its electric utility system, including
the Agency's charges for bulk power supply.- All Participants
have done so.

All rates must be approved by the Board of Commissioners.
Rates are designed on an annual basis and are reviewed
quarterly. If they are determined to be inadequate to cover
the Agency’s current annual costs, rates may be revised.

In accordance with SFAS No. 144 “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (SFAS No. 144),

L €
otal Deferred Revenues

 December 31,
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NCMPAT NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

’

i the Agency will assess the recoverability of its long lived assets tions, and limitations of the Resolution. The total to be issued
' whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that is to be sufficient to pay the costs of acquisition and construc-
their carrying amount may not be recoverable. During 2004 tion of the project, as defined, and/or for other purposes set
i and 2003 the Agency determined that such an assessment was forth in the Resolution. Future refunding of bonds may result
! not necessary. in the issuance of additional bonds.

F. BONDS The following shows bond activity during 2004.

The Agency has been authorized to issue Catawba Electric
Revenue Bonds (bonds) in accordance with the terms, condi-

12 627,;5'70:

- Borids Outstnding at Decenber 31, 2003
rincipal payments January 1, 2004,
Bonds Oustaning a December 3

2$ " 1,985665 -

2004

The various issues comprising the outstanding debt are as follows (in thousands of dollars):

December 31,

2004 2003
!
i Series 1992 )
6% to 8% maturing annually from 2006 to 2011 $ 199,560 $ 199,560
: Zero coupon priced to yield 6.55% to 6.7% maturing annually
' from 2008 to 2012 100,000 100,000
6% Indexed Caps Bonds maturing in 2012 _ 65,300 65,300
? 364,860 364,860
Series 1993
4.1% to 5.5% maturing annually from 2005 to 2010 117,090 117,090
: 5% maturing in 2015 with annual sinking fund requirements
P beginning in 2013 425 33,425
i 150515 —150.515
% Series 1995A
i 5.1% to 5.2% maturing annually from 2007 to 2008 . 15,185 15,185
: 5.375% maturing in 2020 with annual sinking fund reqirements
beginning in 2019 ' — 64255 64235
: Series 1997A
3 5% to 5.125% maturing annually from 2009 to 2011 21,115 21,115
5.125% maturing in 2015 with a sinking fund requirement in 2012 : 19,235 19,235
! 5.125% maturing in 2017 with annual sinking fund requirements :
Lo beginning in 2016 57,425 57,425

97,775 97.775
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STATEMENTS

Series 1998A
4.5% to 5.5% maturing annually from 2003 to 2015
5.125% maturing in 2017 with annual sinking fund requirements
beginning in 2016
5% maturing in 2020 with annual sinking fund requirements
beginning in 2018

Series 1999A
5.75% to 6% maturing annually from 2007 to 2010

Series 19998
6.125% to 6.625% maturing annually from 2006 to 2010
6.375% maturing in 2013 with annual sinking fund requirements
beginning in 2011
6.5% maturing in 2020 with annual sinking fund requirements
beginning in 2014

Series 2003A
3% maturing in 2005
5% maturing in 2005
4.3% maturing in 2011
5.5% maturing annually from 2011 to 2014
4.125% maturing in 2014
5.25% maturing annually from 2014 to 2020
5% maturing in 2016
4.5% maturing in 2020

Series 2003B (Federally Taxable)
2.95% maturing in 2004
3.26% maturing in 2005

Series 2003C-1 (Periodic Auction Reset Securities (PARS)
Twenty-eight day Thursday auctions, maturing in 2015 with annual
sinking fund requirements beginning in 2014

Series 2003C-2 (Periodic Auction Reset Securities (PARS)
Seven day Wednesday auctions, maturiting in 2018 with manual
sinking fund requirements beginning in 2015

Less:
Current maturities of bonds
Unamortized discount {premium)

Total Long-Term Debt

42 2004 Annual Report

December 31,

— 2004 — 2003
$ 32,430 $ 32,680
49,810 49,810
45,405 45,405
127,645 127,895
83,340 83,340
54,035 54,035
33,585 33,585
112,980 112,980
200,600 200,600
10,000 10,000
25,880 25,880
2,500 2,500
148,190 148,190
5,000 5,000
506,740 506,740
10,000 10,000
5,000 5,000
713,310 713,310
41,655

18,480 18,480
18,480 60,135
40,000 40,000
109,700 109,700
1,985,665 2,027,570
70,950 41,905
{4,322) (3,932)

$ 1,919,037 $ 1,989,597




NCMPA1 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following table reflects principal debt service included in
the designated year’s rates. In accordance with the Resolution,
these moneys are deposited into the Bond Fund for payment of

the following year’s current maturities. Debt service deposit
requirements for long-term debt outstanding at December 31,
2004 are as follows (in thousands of dollars):

£7/938,875
$72.794.941

Current maturities of $70,950,000 at December 31, 2004

were collected through rates during 2004 and were deposited
monthly into the Bond Fund to make the January 1, 2005
principal payment.

The fair market value of the Agency's long-term debt was
estimated using a yield curve derived from December 31, 2004
and 2003 market prices for similar securities. Using these yield
curves, market prices were estimated for each individual
maturity and the individual maturities were summed to arrive
at an estimated fair market value of $2,100,822,000 and
$2,197,158,000 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Certain proceeds of the Series 1984 (subsequently paid at
maturity or refunded), 1992, 1993, 19954, 19974, 19984,
1999A and 2003A, B and C bonds were used to establish trusts
for the refunding of $3,316,190,000 of previously issued bonds.
At December 31, 2004, $3,100,350,000 of these bonds has been
redeemed leaving $215,840,000 still outstanding. Under these
Refunding Trust Agreements, obligations of, or guaranteed by,
the United States have been placed in irrevocable Refunding
Trust Funds maintained by the Bond Fund Trustee. The govern-
ment obligations in the respective Refunding Trust Funds along
with the interest earnings on such obligations, will be sufficient
to pay all interest on the refunded bonds when due and to
redeem all refunded bonds at various dates prior to their origi-
nal maturities at par. The monies on deposit in each Refunding
Trust Fund, including the interest earnings thereon, are pledged

solely for the benefit of the holders of the refunded bonds.
Since the establishment of each Refunding Trust Fund, the
refunded bonds are no longer considered outstanding
obligations of the Agency.

Except for the Series 2003C Bonds, interest on the bonds is
payable semi-annually. Interest for the previous auction period
on the Series 2003C-1 Bonds is payable on the Friday after each
auction date. Interest for the previous auction period on the
Series 2003C-2 Bonds is payable on the Thursday after each
auction date.

Certain of the following bonds are subject to redemption prior
to maturity at the option of the Agency, on or after the follow-
ing dates at a maximum of 102% of the respective principal
amounts:

Series 1993 January 1, 2003
Series 1995A January 1, 2006
Series 1997A January 1, 2007
Series 1998A January 1, 2008
Series 19998 January 1, 2010
Series 2003A January 1, 2013
Series 2003C  Any Interest Payment Date

The bonds ate special obligations of the Agency, payable solely
from and secured solely by (1) project revenues (as defined by
the Resolution) after payment of project operating expenses
(as defined by the Resolution) and (2) other monies and

securities pledged for payment thereof by the Resolution.
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The Resolution requires the Agency to deposit into special
funds all proceeds of bonds issued and all project revenues (as
defined by the Resolution) generated as a result of the Project
Power Sales Agreements and Interconnection Agreement. The
purpose of the individual funds is specifically defined in the
Resolution.

In January 2005 the Agency refinanced some of its existing
debt to take advantage of lower interest rates. The Agency
issued $33,425,000 of Series 2005A and B Refunding Bonds to
refund $33,425,000 of previously issued bonds. The net pres-
ent value savings realized were $2,288,000 with debt service
savings of approximately $460,000 per year through 2014.

G. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Price-Anderson Act limits the public liability for a nuclear
incident at a nuclear generating unit to $10,800,000,000,
which amount is to be covered by private insurance of
$300,000,000 and agreements of indemnity with the NRC

for the remainder. Such private insurance and agreements of
indemnity are carried by Duke on behalf of all co-owners of
the station. The terms of this coverage require the owners of
all licensed facilities to provide up to $100,600,000 per year
per unit owned (adjusted annually for inflation) in the event

of any nuclear incident involving any licensed facility in the
nation, with an annual maximum assessment of $10,000,000
per unit owned. If any such payments are required, the Agency
would be liable for 37.5% of those payments applicable to the
station.

The Price Anderson Act was first enacted in 1957 and has been
renewed three times, the last in 1998. The Act expired in 2002
but nuclear reactors in operation when the Act expired remain
covered by the law. Congress is currently holding hearings
considering reauthorization of the legislation that could
include increased limits and assessments per unit owned. The
final outcome of this matter cannot be predicted at this time.

Primary property damage insurance coverage purchased for
the station is $500,000,000. Excess property damage,
decontamination and decommissioning liability insurance
of $2,750,000,000 has also been purchased.

H. OTHER REVENUES

Other revenues include $1,133,000 and $11,962,000 in 2004
and 2003, respectively, which were received from Duke in set-
tlements of arbitration issues and from the gain on the interest
rate swap amendment,

2004 Annual Report




NCMPAT1 SCHEDULES OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES PER
BOND RESOLUTION AND OTHER AGREEMENTS

e b

e

($000s)
Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003
Project  Supplemental Total Project Supplemental  Total
Revenues:
Sales to participants $ 260,639 § 24,849 § 285488 $ 242,155% 35426 § 277,581
Sales to utilities 77,511 77,511 71,194 2,277 73,471
Investment income 12,478 559 13,037 11,600 749 12,349
Excess Reserve & Contingency Fund valuation - 6,175 6,175
Rate Stabilization Fund withdrawal 7,915 7,915 33,293 33,293
Supplemental Fund - Reserve Account withdrawal 7,986 7,986 7,999 7,999
Other revenue 1,077 56 1,133 11,908 54 11,962
Total Revenues 359,620 33,450 393,070 376,325 46,505 422,830
Expenses:
Operation and maintenance 77,969 113 78,082 87,221 147 87,368
Nuclear fuel 17,896 17,896 15,161 15,161
Fossil fuel 46 46 93 93
Interconnection services:;
Purchased power 24,620 10,434 35,054 25,380 22,270 47,650
Transmission and distribution 15,759 15,759 16,518 16,518
Other 156 156 162 162
Total interconnection services 24,620 26,349 50,969 25,380 38,950 64,330
Administrative and general — Duke 28,340 28,340 24,401 24,401
Administrative and general - Agency 3,706 5,057 8,763 2,910 2,944 5,854
Miscellaneous Agency expenses 893 893 771 3,070 3,841
Gross receipts and excise taxes 10,522 786 11,038 9,783 1,111 10,894
Property tax 12,792 12,792 12,339 12,339
Debt service 162,639 206 162,845 176,138 190 176,328
Special funds deposits:
Decommissioning fund 3,560 3,560 3,903 3,903
Reserve and contingency fund 17,576 17,576 18,318 18,318
Total special funds deposits 21,136 - 21,136 22,221 - 222021
Total Expenses . 359,620 33450 393,070 __376325 46,505
Excess of Revenues Over Expenses $ - 3 - § - § -3 - % -

Note: The schedule above has been prepared in accordance with the
underlying Bond Resolution, and accordingly, does not reflect the
change in the fair value of investments as of December 31, 2004 and 2003.

See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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NCMPA1 SCHEDULE OF BUDGETARY COMPARISON

Years Ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

($000s)
Positive
Actuals (Negative)
Budget (Budgetary Variance With
Original Final Basis) Final Budget
Revenues:
Sales to participants $ 292,843 $ 292,843 $ 285,488 $ (7,355)
Sales to utilities 62,920 62,920 77,511 14,591
Investment income 14,837 14,837 13,037 (1,800)
Excess Reserve & Contingency Fund Valuation 1,736 1,736 - (1,736)
Rate Stabilization Fund withdrawal 37,560 37,560 7,915 (29,645)
Supplemental Fund - Reserve Account withdrawal 8,053 8,053 7,986 (67)
Other revenues 50 50 1,133 1,083
Total Revenues 417,999 417,999 393,070 (24,929)
Expenses:
Operations & maintenance 75,421 75,421 78,082 (2,661)
Nuclear fuel 19,390 19,390 17,896 1,494
Fossil fuel 400 400 46 354
Interconnection services: -
Purchased power 53,698 53,698 35,054 18,645
Transmission & distribution 18,223 18,223 15,759 2,463
Other interconnection expenses 117 1z — 136 — (39
Total interconnection services 72,038 72,038 50,969 21,069
Administrative and general - Duke 24,684 24,684 28,340 (3,656}
Power Agency services 12,868 12,868 8,763 4,105
Miscellaneous Agency Expenses 893 (893)
Taxes 25,091 25,091 24,100 991
Debt service 166,628 166,628 162,845 3,783
Special funds deposits 21,479 21,479 21,136 343
Total Expenses _ 417,999 417,999 _ 392177 25,822
Excess of Revenues Over Expenses $ - $ - $ - 3 -

Note: The schedule above has been prepared in accordance with the
underlying Bond Resolution, and accordingly, does not reflect the
change in the fair value of investments as of December 31, 2003.

See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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NCMPA1 SCHEDULES OF CHANGES
IN ASSETS OF FUNDS INVESTED

($000s)
Funds Funds Funds
Invested Power Invested  Power Invested
January 1, Debt Billing  Investment Disburse- December 31, Billing  Investment Disburse. December 31,
2003  _Proceeds _Receipts. _Income  _ ments  Trancfers 2003 _ Receipts _ Income _ ments _Transfers _ 2004
Bond Fund:

Interest account $ 59262 ¢ -3 -$ 232 (112,092) $ 103238 $§ 50,640 $ - 330 § (99,115 $98113 § 49,968

Reserve account 197,095  (5414) 9,504 (9.215) 191,970 9,228 (8,832) 192,366

Principal account 64400 ‘ 188 _ (73177 _ 50586 _ 41997 527 __ (41,905 __ 70459 __ 71,078

320757 5414 - 9,924 (185269) 144609 284,607 10,085 (141,020)0 159,740 313,412
Reserve and ]

Contingency Fund: 34,669 (541) 800 (3,665)  (11,268) 19,995 581  (18,017) 16,765 19,324
Special Reserve Fund 1,071 48 {56) 1,063 5 (55) 1,059
Revenue Fund

Revenue account (8138) 233,123 80 35 (220,145) 4955 269,671 134 42203 (303,760) 13,203

Rate stabilization account __ 185,644 8,177 (43,927) 149,894 7,601 {7,915) 149,580

177,506 233,123 8,257 35 (264072) 154,849 269,671 7735 42203 (311,675 - 162,783
Operating Fund: .
Working Capital account 25,501 2,005 (188491) 187,081 26,096 1,707 (128473) 129320 28,650
Fuel account 72,365 3388 _ (34172 _ 41,581 (29,093) _ 14,824 _ 27312
97,866 - - 2,005 (185,103) 152,909 67677 - 1,707 (157,566) 144,144 55,962
Supplementa! Fund:
Supplemental account 26,486 44,137 700 (22,858) (14124) 34341 15,838 506  (25,122) (936) 24,627
Supplemental Reserve
Account 11,415 4,390 {7,998) __ 107,807 4456 (7,983) __104.280
137,901 - 44137 5090 _ (22,858) _ (22,122) _ 142,148 15,838 4962 _ (25122) (8919) __128907

$ 769770 $ (5955 $ 277,260 § 26124 $(396.860) $ - $670339 § 285509 § 25121 $ 299,522 § - § 681447

Note: The schedule above has been prepared in accordance with the
underlying Bond Resolution, and accordingly, does not reflect the
change in the fair value of investments as of December 31, 2004

and 2003.

See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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NCMPA1 STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS

Megawatt-hour Sales (MWh)
Peak Billing Demand (kW)
Operating Revenues

Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues over Expenditures

Sales to Utilities (Revenues)

Average Monthly Power
Purchases by Cities (MWh)

Average Monthly Billings to Cities

Megawatt-hour Sales (MWh)
Peak Billing Demand (kW)
Operating Revenues

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over Expenditures

Sales to Utilities {(Revenues)

Average Monthly Power
Purchases by Cities (MWh)

Average Monthly Billings to Cities

48

2004
4,845,911
838,034

$364,132,000

$0

$77,511,000

403,826

$23,791,000

1999
4,567,636
882,083

$347,476,000

$0

$85,097,000

380,636

$21,734,000

2003
4,747,018
930,103

$363,014,000

$0

$73,471,000

395,585

$23,132,000

1998
4,496,603
842,892

$361,131,000

$0

$102,551,000

374,717

$21,439,000

2004 Annual Report

Ten Years at a Glance (Unaudited)

2002
4,806,117
897,878

$335,230,000

$0

$57,704,000

400,510

$23,032,000

1997
4,223,699
853,384

$367,130,000

$0

$119,698,000

351,975

$20,514,000

2001
4,638,350
856,577

$324,454,000

$0

$62,616,000

386,529

$21,755,000

1996
4,221,890
829,245

$375,577,000

$0

$134,453,000

351,824

$19,942,000

2000
4,749,523
894,324

$324,946,000

$0

$55,759,000

395,794

$21,827,000

1995
4,125,029
803,615

$413,852,000

$0

$183,554,000

343,752

$19,077,000
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" In October 2004, PEC submitted a license renewal application to the Nuclear Regulatory Commission

Letter to the Stakeholders

From the Chairman

A series of successful initiatives in 2004 combined to ensure that North Carolina Eastern Municipal
‘Power Agency (NCEMPA) rates were as low as possible. A new procedure to review contracts, develop-
ment of a mutually beneficial partnership with Progress Energy Carolinas (PEC) and continued excel-
lent plant operations in the NCEMPA co-owned facilities combined to make 2004 an excellent year.

Overall, NCEMPA achieved cost savings of $55 million during 2004. Demand-side management sav-
ings for the year were $33 million, which in addition to other cost-savings initiatives, helped hold

_. down rate increases. These savings proved critical to maintaining NCEMPA participant rates.
Additional savings resulted from a mid-year bond refunding.

A new process was developed to monitor and review coal costs for NCEMPA's coal plants. These new
procedures will help NCEMPA monitor and anticipate changes to the cost of coal as conditions change :
in the world and national markets. Additionally, new procedures implemented change the way PEC :
accounts for and manages our NCEMPA contracts, including those with the coal plants, nuclear plants

" and contract purchases. These procedures ensure the Agency pays its appropriate share of costs.

NCEMPA continues to work very closely with PEC, as a business partner in the operation of the gener-
ating facilities and with supplemental power supply contracts. The relationship between NCEMPA and
PEC has proven to be mutually beneficial to both parties and to our member cities, Constant commu-
nications improves the flow of information which effectively reduces NCEMPA's operating costs.

" The plants had a productive year in 2004, keeping power agency costs as low as possible with a good
mix of fossil and nuclear power. Brunswick Units 1 and 2 hit yet another record for generation since

the plant began operation. Brunswick Nuclear Plant was honored in October 2004 by GE Energy for ]
having two of the world’s top sustained generation boiling water reactors. In 2004, Harris Nuclear Plant 1

" logged over 7 million man-hours without a lost-time accident. ‘

requesting a 20-year operating license renewal for the Brunswick Nuclear Plant. The current 40-year
operating license for Brunswick Unit 1 expires September 8, 2016 and Unit 2 expires December 27,

- 2014. An extension of the lifetime for operations will provide substantial additional value to our mem-
ber cities and our citizens. Nuclear plants continue to provide clean, reliable and affordable energy.

NCEMPA continued to provide member education about new trends and innovations in public power.
Workshops offered information about automated meter reading systems, an innovative new system -
that brings time and cost savings for member cities. Several member cities began automated meter
reading programs in 2004 and NCEMPA continues to offer individual reviews and participant work-
shops for billing process assurance and performance indicators.

NCEMPA member cities joined together to be excluded from a proposal requiring some of the member
cities in the Virginia Electric Power Company (VEPCO), now Dominion North Carolina, regibn to join
a regional transmission organization (RTO), In 2004, Dominion North Carolina began a process that
was mandated by the State of Virginia’s Legislature to join the PJM RTO. NCEMPA staff negotiated to
exclude its nine cities from joining PJM, a cost-saving effort to avoid costs associated with RTO man-
agement and operation. The Agency successfully secured a positive ruling from the Federal Energy _
Regulatory Commission and the North Carolina Utilities Commission and was granted exclusion from

PIM.

Economic development efforts, a major focus in all public power cities, were successful in our cities in
2004. In total, the Agency achieved more than $75 million in investment, the addition of 1,017 jobs
and 13 MW of electric load. A few of the year’s economic development highlights include Carolina
Classic in Edenton, Metaldyne in Greenville, Home Depot in Rocky Mount and Smithfield Packing in
Kinston. Economic development prospects are already promising for the coming year as well.

NCEMPA cities are experiencing electric load growth, and, as a result, are working to upgrade and ,
expand delivery facilities, Several city systems expanded, including Apex, Wake Forest, Clayton and |
Tarboro. NCEMPA worked with PEC and Dominion North Carolina to expand and increase capacity to |
meet the needs of the growing communities. T
As you can see, 2004 was an exciting year where we met challenges and kept our eyes on costs. !
Through our strength in collaboration, economic development is vibrant. As we move through the
years, it is my hope that we continue to stay focused on the future and plan with vision and innova-
tion for the benefit of our communities and citizens.
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Mark S. Williams
Chairman

Wake Forest

st

Anne-Marie Knighton
Secretary-Treasurer

Edenton

L. Stewart Rumley
Vice Chairman

Washington

2004 NCEMPA Board of Commissioners

Alternate commissioners’ names appear in italics

Apex
M:r. Bruce A. Radford
Mr. J. Michael Wilson

Ayden
Mr. H. Dewitt Hardison
Mr. Adam Mitchell

Belhaven
Mr. Timothy M. Johnson
First Alternate Vacant

Benson
Mr. Keith R. Langdon
Mayor Don H. Johnson

Clayton
Mr. Robert J. Ahlert
Mr. Alex Harding

Edenton
Ms. Anne-Marie Knighton
Mr. William A. Crummey

Elizabeth City
Mes. Cecilia C. Austin
first Alternate Vacant

Farmville
M:r. Richard N. Hicks
Mr. J. Don Riddle

Fremont
Commisioner Vacant
Mr. Billy Harvey

Greenville
Mr. J. Wayne Powell
Mr. Richard Miller

Hamilton
Mr. Herbert L. Everett

Mayor Donald G. Matthews Ilf

Hertford
Mr. John Christensen
Mayor James Sidney “Sid” Eley

Hobgood
Ms. Stella Daugherty
Mayor Timothy D. Purvis

Hookerton
Mr. Sam Johnson
Mr. Morris Luckett

Kinston
Mr. Ralph A. Clark
Mr. Scott Stevens

La Grange
Mr. Larry Gladney
Mr. Bobby Wooten

Laurinburg
Mr. Joseph R. Huffman
Mayor Ann B. Slaughter

Louisburg
Mr. C. L. Gobble
Ms. Lois Brown Wheless

Lumberton
Mr. Harry L. Ivey
Mr. . Franklin Price

New Bern
Mr. Ralph E. Puckett
Mr. Walter B. Hartman, Jr.

Pikeville
Mr. Herb Sieger
Ms. Kathie Fields

Red Springs

Mr. John McNeill
Mr. T. Wayne Horne
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Robersonville
M:r. John H. Pritchard, Jr.
Mr. John David Jenkins

Rocky Mount
Ms. Angela R. Bryant
Mr. Stephen W. Raper

Scotland Neck
Mayor Robert B. Partin
First Alternate Vacant

Selma
Mr. Jeffrey C. White
Mr. Donald Baker

Smithfield
Mr. Peter T. Connet
Mr. Robert E. Tripp

Southport
M. Paul D. Fisher
Mr. Robert W. Grant

Tarboro
Mr. Samuel W. Noble, Jr.
Mr. Ricky C. Page

Wake Forest
Mr. Mark S. Williams
Mr. David Camacho

Washington
Mr. Steven L. Harrell
Mayor L. Stewart Rumley

Wilson
Mayor C. Bruce Rose
Mr. Charles W. Pittman, Il!




NCEMPA ELECTRIC SYSTEM PARTICIPANTS

City Year Revenues Customers % Ownership
Apex 2004 $16,016,610 10,475 0.706%
2003 $15,346,046 o
Ayden 2004 $8,687,520 3,695 1.134%
2003 $9,635,332 ]
Belhaven 2004 $2,500,039 1,116 0.409%
2003 $2,440,700
Benson 2004 $4,020,783 1,802 0.577%
2003 $4,020,783
Clayton 2004 $8,299,260 4,227 0.745%
2003 $9,135,999
Edenton 04 9,471,720 3,940 1.596%
2003 $9,447,263
Elizabeth City 2004 $26,535,716 10,058 4.251%
2003 $26,235,664
Farmville 2004 $6,010,196 2,949 1.290%
2003 $5,704,166
Fremont 2004 $1,253,365 862 0.306%
. 2003 $1,075070
Greenville 2004 $130,812,845 53,002 16.134%
2003 $132,122,844
Hamilton 2004 $401,809 254 0.078%
2003 $367,145
Hertford 2004 $2,304,284 1,231 0.412%
2003 $2,426,452
Hobgoed 2004 $547,668 319 0.091%
2003 $482,585
Hookerton 2004 $600,973 431 0.155%
2003 $645,999
Kinston 2004 $38,468,689 12,295 8.668%
2003 $39,124,614 -
La Grange 2004 $2,660,216 1,538 0.501%
2003 $2,856,405 -
Laurinburg 2004 $13,519,774 5,681 2.267%
2003 $13,539,145
Louisburg 2004 $5,068,005 1,939 0.858%
2003 $5,694,874
Lumberton 2004 $27,730,673 9,567 5.157%
2003 $26,266,800
New Bern 2004 $43,457,744 18,169 6.368%
2003 $42,913,536
Pikeville 2004 $835,397 527 0.205%
2003 $836,958
Red Springs 2004 $6,120,348 1,699 0.580%
2003 $3,629,213 .
Robersonville 2004 $4,506,000 1,068 0.507%
_______ 2003 $2,013,855
Rocky Mount 2004 $68,069,167 30,477 16.026%
2003 $68,690,602
Scotland Neck 2004 $2,465,402 1,731 0.576%
2003 $3,006,194 -
Selma 2004 $6,203,502 2,736 0.810%
2003 $6,024,475
Smithfield 2004 $15,014,225 4,432 2.006%
2003 $14,657,930 :
Southport 2004 $6,728,464 2,239 0.714%
2003 $4,735,520
Tarboro 2004 $21,897,476 5,942 4.743%
- 2003 $21,379,961
Wake Forest 2004 not available 5,950 0.726%
2003 $11,234,615
Washington 2004 $26,498,887 12,692 5.892%
2003 $23,010,628
Wilson 2004 $99,420,393 32,904 15.512%
2003 $100,163,547
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Load Management and Power Operations

NCEMPA staff and the participants again successfully con-
trolled load during each month’s peak billing period in 2004.
This success translated into power cost savings of over $33
million dollars throughout the year. NCEMPA recommended
load management an average of 8.6 hours per month, during
approximately four days each month. NCEMPA participants
and their customers shed a monthly average of over 220 MW,
with over 250 MW shed during the maximum peak hours.
Load Side Generation is an integral part of this load shedding
process with over 177 MW of generation noticed as of
December 2004.

Some members saw expansion of power delivery facilities dur-
ing 2004 including new delivery point construction for Apex
and expansion planning for Wake Forest, Selma, Smithfield,
Rocky Mount, Wilson and Benson.

NCEMPA and participant staff continued to develop improved
systems and communication alternatives for load management
operations. The participants and their customers utilize more
than 10 different paging and mobile service companies.
NCEMPA staff makes over 190,000 pages, telephone calls

and email communications through these different companies
each year, providing load management recommendations and
information.

Energy and Demand

Energy Consumption for 2004 set a new record at 7,185,123
MWh (net of SEPA). The previous Energy Consumption record
was set in 2002 at 7,060,340 MWh. The highest monthly
Energy Consumption for 2004 occurred in July at 741,491
MWh. The previous monthly record was set in August 2003

at 732,543 MWh.

The highest Coincident Peak Demand for 2004 was 1,257
MW during the month of July (net of SEPA). The record for
Coincident Peak Demand was set in July 2002 at 1,320 MW.
The average Coincident Peak load factor for 2004 was 84 per-
cent, a slight increase from the 2003 average of 83 percent.

The 2004 maximum Non-Coincident Peak Demand was

1,366 MW set in the month of July (net of SEPA). The all-time
Non-Coincident Peak Demand record was set in July 2002

at 1,455 MW,

Environmental Regulations

NCEMPA and Progress Energy Carolinas, Inc. (PEC) have con-
tinued to take significant steps to improve the environmental
performance of the jointly owned units.

On June 20, 2002, Senate Bill 1078, titled “Improve Ait
Quality/Electric Utilities” (the Clean Smokestacks Legislation),
was signed into law. This law sets limits on PEC emissions of
sulphur dioxide and nitrogen oxide from their coal-fired gener-
ating units in any calendar year. PEC and NCEMPA addressed
this legislation by implementing a plan to achieve compliance
with both the nitrogen oxide and sulphur dioxide emission
limitations using the most economical combination of compli-
ance alternatives. PEC decided to bring its total system into
compliance in the most cost-effective manner. This will result in
“over compliance” at the NCEMPA's jointly owned fossil units.

Through our Clean Air Act Agreement with PEC and an
Amendment signed in December 2002, the sulphur dioxide
compliance emission issue is being addressed by the installa-
tion of “scubbers” at Mayo Unit 1 and Roxboro Unit 4, with
the potential to lower sulphur dioxide emissions by 90 percent.
The capital additions cost of NCEMPA's share of the scrubbers
has been capped and any “over compliance” sulphur dioxide
emission excess allowances will be transferred to NCEMPA.

PEC's current nitrogen oxide compliance plan included the
installation of Selective Catalytic Reduction (SCR) technology,
installed on both Roxboro Unit 4 and the Mayo Unit 1 coal
burning facilities. These devices can reduce nitrogen oxide
emissions by more than 85 percent when used with low-
nitrogen oxide burners. Through this, the first installation of
SCR's on coal-burning facilities in the Carolinas, PEC intends
to “overcomply” at these units in order to ensure that all of
the coal-fired generating units owned and operated by PEC
achieve compliance in the most cost effective manner. PEC
has agreed to credit the Power Agency for nitrogen oxide
“over compliance” with the legislation.

Economic Development

The Eastern North Carolina cities had a very successful year

in industrial recruitment and expansion of their existing
industries. NCEMPA members added 1,017 new jobs in 2004
to their communities with investments totaling $75.7M. New
load added to the Agency was 13 MW. Staff continues to work
closely with the Department of Commerce, local developers
and the regional partnerships to further the strategic load
growth efforts in our communities.

Emphasis was placed on Target Marketing Plans for the cities.
The main focus of these plans is to provide strategies, industry
targets and specific action steps necessary for each community
to successfully pursue the recruitment of new businesses and
industries. Completion of the plan will enhance the systematic
growth of each city’s electric system by prioritizing opportuni-
ties for new load additions and focusing efforts on assisting
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members with expanding their business recruitment and
expansion efforts. Elements of the plans include: Economic
and Demographic Profile; Economic Development
Preparedness Assessment; Target Market Analysis with
Recommended Industry Targets; and a Marketing Plan. Plans
were completed for 10 cities and work continues with the
implementation process. City officials and ElectriCities staff
will focus on an additional 10 cities for the coming year.

Successful negotiations resulted in Smithfield Packaging
expanding operations in Kinston, which will bring 206 new
jobs and an $80 million investment to the community. Other
announcements include: Prettl Noma in Washington with 84
jobs and $10 million investment; Home Depot in Rocky
Mount with 100 jobs and $10 million investment; and
Carolina Classic in Edenton with 5 jobs and $8 million
investment.

Advertising for the year was focused on the following seg-
ments: Automotive; Pharmaceutical/Medical Instruments;
Electronics; Biotechnology; Rubber; Plastics; and Fabricated
Metals. Approximately 269 inquiries were made that resulted
in 10 site visits within the cities and towns.

Marketing

NCEMPA marketing programs include innovative rates, educa-
tional workshops and energy-related services provided through
the Energy Solutions Partner (ESP) program. Workshops are
used to educate industrial and commercial customers about the
benefits of energy efficiency and to train attendees in specific
areas of energy conservation. Energy audits are available to
help customers identify money saving projects at their facili-
ties. The ESP program connects workshop attendees and energy
audit recipients with their local energy provider and an alliance
partner. Together they are capable of providing valuable
turnkey energy savings projects. Alliance partnerships in the
ESP program allow cities to partner with the best and the
brightest in the energy fields to help meet the customers'
needs. Cities also enhanced their economic development
proposals by working through the ESP program to offer
programs such as back-up generation, lighting, power quality
surveys, demand control services, HVAC solutions and overall
energy management systems.

NCEMPA staff and city representatives continue to work closely
with commercial and industrial customers to maximize the
value of their energy dollars and reduce power costs. ESP solu-
tions include load side generation, demand controllers for load
management, tumkey lighting services, power quality services,

energy management systems and affordable training work-
shops. The ESP program sold over $4.5M in products and serv-
ices during 2004.

Also in 2004, NCEMPA took an active role in working with
the healthcare industry. Several hospitals and long-term care
facilities are located throughout our members' communities
and they play a vital role in the welfare of the communities.
In an effort to work with this group of customers, NCEMPA
held a workshop on back-up generation at healthcare facilities,
which was promoted jointly by NCEMPA and the North
Carolina Hospital Association. Continuing to place importance
on key accounts, ElectriCities offered APPA’s Key Accounts
Certificate Program for the second year in a row. This time it
was held in Wilmington, North Carolina in May 2004. The
fast-track program consists of three courses, along with an oral
and a written exam. Class participants were required to file a
key accounts business plan and a customer marketing plan to
complete the requirements for certification.

Last year, at the request of several member cities, a new team
of ElectriCities employees was assembled to develop programs
and services to help cities address the needs of residential
customers. The team, named HEAT (the Home Energy
Assistance Team) developed a comprehensive array of programs
and services to enable residential customers to save money on
electric bills and conserve energy.

Some of the initiatives resulting from HEAT"s efforts were;
energy education programs, including Understanding Energy
Use Workshops; communication programs such as the weather-
ization video distributed in December; new Energy Auditor
Training; and customized Customer Service Training.

ElectriCities staff also assisted the State Energy Office to help
minimize state utility costs. In response to a request from
Governor Mike Easley, all state electric accounts were reviewed
for rate appropriateness. ElectriCities staff provided State
Energy Office staff with current rate structures and utility
billing records of state accounts with ElectriCities members.

Field Services and Programs

During 2004, NCEMI'A staff provided over 30 commercial and
industrial audits to assist the members’ retail customersin -
reducing power costs while increasing energy efficiency.
NCEMPA staff also provided audit assistance in such areas as
power quality, lighting, HVAC, compressed air, infrared scans
and demand-side management.
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Retail Rates and Billing Services

Many NCEMPA participants request assistance in the analysis,
review and revision of retail rates, as well as wholesale impact
studies. In 2004, 24 retail studies were completed for 15
members, and wholesale power cost studies were prepared for
eight members. In addition, 18 members received assistance in
the development or revision of innovative and economic
development rates for new or expanding customers who
wished to implement demand control prograrrié to reduce
power costs. More than 30 competitive rate proposals were
developed and 10 of those were successful in securing the load.

The Retail Billing Program serves 26 municipalities in gathering
interval meter data for 250 commercial and industrial cus-
tomers in those towns and cities. Cumbersome manual meter
reading is unnecessary since NCEMPA staff remotely reads each
meter in the office in a matter of minutes. Reports and graphs
are customized for each participant and e-mailed within days
of month-end. In some cases, as many as 40 customers are
read and reported for one participant, saving that participant’s
billing staff many hours of information gathering. Upon
request from the participant, customers are provided with an
array of detailed data, which helps the customer to develop
energy-saving programs and maximize NCEMPA's load man-
agement services. Particular attention is paid to customers
with generation to ensure that those generators are operating
properly. When a generator fails to run as required, NCEMPA
staff works with the customer to restore functionality.
Historical customer data is consistently provided in support

of retail rate studies and is an invaluable tool in helping our
municipalities offer the most competitive rates to their
customers.

Plant Status

Mayo Unit 1 & Roxboro Unit 4 concluded 2004 with commend-
able performance statistics. Roxboro Unit 4 achieved a total
of 639 consecutive days on-line operation, with a Capacity
Factor of 67.5 percent against a target for the year of 46.9 per-
cent. Roxboro’s Equivalent forced outage rate was 1.85 against
a target of 1.35. Mayo ended 2004 with 257 consecutive days
on line. Mayo's 2004 Equivalent forced outage rate was 0.63
against a target of 1.3 and a Capacity Factor of 73.93 percent
against a target of 46.3 percent.

Brunswick Unit 1 & Unit 2 hit another record for MWh of
generation since the plant began operation. In 2004,
Brunswick Units 1 & 2 had combined generation of over 14.8

million MWh, exceeding the 14.7 million MWh generated in
2003. The Brunswick Nuclear Plant achieved another industry
first with the completion of Unit 1's Extended Power Uprate:
establishing a new capability rating of 935 MW, a 20 percent
Extended Power Uprate, a first in the industry for a Boiling
Water Reactor (BWR). The Brunswick Plant was honored in
October 2004 by GE Energy for having two of the world’s top
sustained generation boiling water reactors included in GE's
2003 BWR Honor Roll. To be included in the honor roll, a
plant’s sustained generation must be in the top 25 percent

of the world’s 89 eligible BWR plants. Brunswick Unit 1's
Capacity Factor for 2004 was 92.54 percent and Brunswick
Unit 2's Capacity Factor for 2004 was 98.12 percent.

In October 2004, PEC submitted a license renewal application
to the Nuclear Regulatory Commission requesting a 20-year
operating license renewal for the Brunswick Nuclear Plant.
The current 40-year operating license for Brunswick Unit 1
expires September 8, 2016 and Unit 2 expires December 27,
2014.

Harris Nuclear Plant generated over 7 million MWh and
reached another milestone by generating a cumulative 113
million MWh since the unit was brought into service. The
Plant has logged over 7.7 million man-hours without a lost-
time accident. Harris went into an outage on May 6 that lasted
13 days. Prior to the outage, the plant had provided 261 days
of continuous service, with a 2004 Capacity Factor of 88.65
percent. The unit was shutdown for refueling on October 15
and returned to service on November 17, 2004.

Security

Immediately after the events of September 11, 2001, security
at every nuclear power plant was placed on its highest level.
Nuclear plant security now is consistent with Homeland
Security threat levels. As a result, access to the plants is more
strictly controlled; the defensive perimeters have been extend-
ed and reinforced and security forces and capabilities have
been augmented. Under contractual arrangements with both
NCMPA1 and NCEMPA, all issues of security are handled by
Duke and PEC; coordinating closely with federal, state and
local threat response authorities, law enforcement, the intelli-
gence community and military. These and many other layers
of protection provide an effective deterrence against potential
safety or security problems related to terrorist activities and
ensure safety and security at all the nuclear facilities in which
NCMPA1 and NCEMPA have ownership.
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NCEMPA Participant Energy Usage
(Billing Point Including SEPA; Forecast Year 2004 is from the 2003 Load Forecast)
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Investment Portfolio Statistics

Earnings*
Income Rate of return
2004 $21,465,000 4.23%
2003 $20,891,000 4.23%
Market value as of 12/31*
Value Average Maturity

2004 $623,657,000 6.5 years
2003 $627,798,000 4.6 vears

Transactions
Number Amount
2004 364 $5,207,317,000
2003 439 $6,189,269,000
Debt Outstanding
Debt outstanding 12/31
Weighted Average
Balance Interest Cost
Fixed Rate Bonds

2004 $2,972,539,000** 5.51%
2003 $3,056,816,000** 5.60%

NCEMPA Bond Reconciliation

Bonds Outstanding

12/31/03 $  3,056,816,000**
Issued Series 2004 A & B 222,975,000
Matured

11112004 84,247,000
Refunded 223,005,000
Bonds Outstanding

12/31/04 $ _ 2.972,539.000**

NCEMPA Bonds Outstanding
Series Par Amount
Series 1986A $ 4,495,000
Series 1989A $ 28,890,000
Series 1991A $ 30,284,000
Series 1993B $ 1,070,425,000
Series 1993C $ 108,610,000
Series 1995A $ 14,090,000
Series 1996A $ 215,945,000
Series 19968 $ 136,875,000
Series 1997A $ 29,185,000
Series 1999A $ 155,000,000
Series 19998 $ 116,725,000
Series 1999C $ 2,945,000
Series 1999D $ 130,970,000
Series 2003A $ 171,760,000
Series 2003B $ 9,860,000
Series 2003C $ 111,655,000
Series 2003D $ 292,920,000
Series 2003E $ 24,345,000
Series 2003F $ 87,715,000
Series 2003G $ 6,820,000
Series 2004A $ 205,650,000
Series 2004B $ 17,325,000

»

For eamings and market value, amounts include income from and
market value of securities held in the decommissioning trust.

*+ Does not include $1,009,000 for 2004 and $953,000 for 2003
respectively, accrued on the balance sheet for current maturities
of the Series 1991A Capital Appreciation Bonds.
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NCEMPA INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors
North Carolina Eastern Municipal Power Agency
Raleigh, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of North Carolina Eastern Municipal Power
Agency as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related statements of revenues and expenses and
changes in fund equity, and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Agency's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial state-
ments. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of North Carolina Eastern Municipal Power Agency as of December 31, 2004 and
2003, and the changes in financial position and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The Management's Discussion and Analysis section listed in the table of contents is not a required
part of the financial statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally
of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit this information and express no opinion
thereon.

Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken
as a whole. The other financial information as listed in the table of contents as of and for the years
ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in our audits of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated
in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

(%w;, Wloa b £F6%01, £

Raleigh, North Carolina
April 11, 2005
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

As management of North Carolina Eastern Municipal Power
Agency (the Agency), we offer this narrative overview and
analysis of the financial activities of the Agency for the year
ended December 31, 2004 and 2003. We encourage you to
read this information in conjunction with the information
furnished in the Agency’s financial statements that follow
this narrative.

Financial Highlights
R The Agency’s basic financial statements consist of a single
electric enterprise fund.

H At year-end 2004 and 2003, the Agency’s assets exceeded
its liabilities by $15,714,000 and $16,736,000, respectively
(fund equity).

B The Agency’s fund equity decreased by $1,022,000 and
increased by $5,643,000 for 2004 and 2003, respectively.

B Year-end 2004 and 2003 unrestricted fund equity was
$834,544,000 and $824,661,000, respectively, and
increased $9,883,000 and $17,345,000 during 2004

.and 2003, respectively.

B The Agency'’s total debt decreased $84,221,000 and
$90,917,000 during 2004 and 2003, respectively.

» Decreased $85,200,000 and $82,695,000 due to
principal paid January 1, 2004 and 2003, respectively,
in accordance with debt service schedules.

s Decreased $30,000 and $9,175,000 due to equity
contributions to facilitate the debt refunding issues
in 2004 and 2003, respectively.

¢ Increased $1,009,000 and $953,000 to reflect the
appreciated value of the Capital Appreciation Bonds
due January 1, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

H In May 2004, May 2003 and January 2003, the Agency
refinanced some of its existing debt to take advantage of
historically low interest rates.

 In May 2004, the Agency issued $222,975,000 of
Series 2004 A and B Refunding Bonds to refund
$223,003,000 of previously issued bonds. Net present
value savings realized were $21,094,000 with debt
service savings ranging from $2,181,000 to
$3,416,000 per year through 2019 and $339,000
and $230,000 in 2020 and 2021, respectively.

¢ In May 2003, the Agency issued $412,685,000
of Series 2003 D, E, F, and G Bonds to refund
$417,155,000 of previously issued bonds. Net

present value savings realized were $21,530,000
with debt service reductions of approximately
$2,650,000 per year through 2013 and smaller
variable savings per year from 2014 to 2025.

¢ In January 2003, the Agency issued $294,540,000
of Series 2003 A, B, and C Bonds to refund
$299,245,000 of previously issued bonds. Net present
value savings realized were $19,700,000 with debt
service reductions of approximately $3,400,000 per
year through 2011 and approximately $1,200,000
per year from 2012 to 2016.

B In conjunction with the Agency’s bond offerings, the bond
ratings remained the same or improved as follows:

+ Standard and Poor’s - Unchanged at BBB (stable).

¢ Moody’s ~ From Baa3 (stable) to Baa3 (positive) in
January 2003 and from Baa3 (positive) to Baa2
(stable) in May 2004.

« Fitch - Unchanged at BBB+ (stable) throughout the
two year period.

B The Agency implemented an average rate increase of 3%
effective January 1, 2003 through the energy adjustment
rider. On July 1, 2003, the energy adjustment rider was
discontinued and a 3% rate increase was implemented.
On October 1, 2003 a 1.2% rate increase was implemented
through the energy adjustment rider. On March 1, 2004,
the energy adjustment rider was discontinued and a 1.2%
rate increase was implemented.

B In 2003, the Agency received $10,050,000 from the
counterparty to the swaps for shortening the end dates.
Overview of the Financial Statements

This MD&A is an introduction to the Agency'’s basic financial
statements and notes to the financial statements (see Exhibit
1). In addition to the basic financial statements, this report
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contains other supplemental information designed to enhance
your understanding of the financial condition of the Agency.

Basic Financial Statements

The Agency is a special purpose government that accounts for
its activities as a business type entity. The first statements of
the basic financial statements are for the Agency’s single propri-
etary fund that focuses on the business activities of the electric
enterprise. The statements are designed to provide a broad
overview of the Agency’s finances, similar in format to private
sector business statements, and provide short and long-term
information about the Agency’s financial status, operations and
cash flow. The statements report fund equity and how it has
changed during the period. Fund equity is the difference
between total assets and total liabilities. Analyzing the various
components of fund equity is one way to gauge the Agency’s
financial condition.

The second section of the basic financial statements is the
notes that explain in more detail some of the data contained in
the basic financial statements. The notes provide additional
information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the basic financial statements. The notes are on
pages 70 to 84 of this report.

After the notes, supplemental information is provided to show
how the Agency’s rates recovered its expenses as defined by the
Bond Resolution, to show the Agency’s performance against
budget and to show activities in the special funds established
by the Bond Resolution. Supplemental information can be
found on pages 85 to 87 of this report.

Financial Analysis

The electric enterprise fund financial statements for the years

ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 are presented in
accordance the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement 34.

The various components of fund equity may serve over time
as a useful indicator of the Agency’s financial condition.

The assets of the Agency exceeded liabilities by $15,714,000,
$16,736,000, and $11,093,000 at December 31, 2004, 2003
and 2002, respectively, representing a decrease of $1,022,000
and an increase of $5,643,000 for 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The deficit portion of fund equity of $(911,384,000),
$(915,757,000) and $(942,380,000) at December 31, 2004,
2003 and 2002, respectively, reflects the Agency’s investments
in capital assets {e.g. land, buildings, generation facilities,
nuclear fuel and equipment), less any related debt outstanding
that was issued to acquire or refinance those items. The deficit
occurs because depreciation is expensed on a straight line basis
over the life of the plant while debt repayment is structured
similar to a home mortgage where early debt payments include
more interest than principal and later payments include more
principal than interest. This deficit was reduced during 2004
and 2003 due to the payment of principal debt service on
January 1, equity contributions to facilitate the refunding of
debt and the payment of capital additions from current
operating funds, net of depreciation expense.

These capital assets are used to provide electric power to
Agency Participants. Consequently, these assets are not
available for future spending. While the Agency’s investments
in capital assets are reported net of the outstanding related
debt, the resources needed to repay that debt will be provided
through rates and certain reserve funds since the capital assets
cannot be used to liquidate the liabilities.

,Restrlcted for debt servnc_ _
Restrlcted fO( d ommisst
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An additional portion of the Agency’s fund equity of
$92,554,000, $107,832,000 and $140,250,000 at December 31,
2004 and 2003 and 2002, respectively, represents resources that
are restricted for the payment of debt service.

An additional portion of the Agency’s fund equity of 3-0-,

$-0- and $5,907,000 at December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively, represents resources that are restricted for the
payment of the Agency'’s asset retirement obligation (decom-
missioning of the nuclear units). The adoption of Statement
of Financial Accounting Standard (SFAS) No. 143, “Accounting
for Asset Retirement Obligations” resulted in deficit amounts
in 2004 and 2003 and these deficits have been reclassified to
unrestricted net assets. The recognition of the asset retirement
obligation is on a straight-line basis over the life of the plant -
while funding of the decommissioning trust takes into account
the interest earnings on the moneys deposited into the fund.

The remaining balance of $834,544,000, $824,661,000 and
$807,316,000 at December 31, 2004 and 2003 and 2002,
respectively, is unrestricted fund equity.

Several particular aspects of the Agency’s financial operations
increased unrestricted fund equity. These are as follows:

H Other revenues increased as a result of the benefits
received from changing the end dates on the swap
agreements.

B Revenues increased as a result of rate increases instituted.

Budgetary Highlights

B No budget amendments were passed during 2004. In
March 2005, a budget amendment was approved once all
year-end accruals were known because total expenses had
exceeded budget by $1,641,000. The primary reason for
the overrun was due to higher fossil fuel costs due to
higher rates and greater output from the fossil units.

For 2003, no amendments were necessary.

B The Agency implemented an average rate increase of 3%
effective January 1, 2003 through the energy adjustment
rider. On July 1, 2003, the energy adjustment rider was
discontinued and a 3% rate increase was implemented.
On October 1, 2003 a 1.2% rate increase was implement-
ed through the energy adjustment rider. On March 1,
2004, the energy adjustment rider was discontinued and
a 1.2% rate increase was implemented.

B Debt service savings were realized as a result of the bond
refunding issues completed.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration
Capital Assets

Investments in capital assets at December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002 totaled $726,496,000, $766,246,000 and $777,707,000,
respectively, (net of accumulated amortization and deprecia-
tion) for a decrease of $39,750,000 and $11,461,000 in 2004
and 2003, respectively. These assets include land, buildings,
generation facilities, nuclear fuel and equipment.

- Exhibit 3"

. Fund equity Decermber 3
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Major capital asset transactions during 2004 and 2003 include
the following:

E The primary reason for the decrease in capital assets is
that depreciation and amortization were greater than
plant and nuclear fuel additions.

E Construction Work in Progress (CWIP) increased
$11,361,000 and §$16,160,000 in 2004 and 2003, respec-
tively, due to capital additions projects at the joint units.

B EPIS increased and CWIP decreased $17,501,000 and
$13,225,000 in 2004 and 2003, respectively, due to the
transfer of completed capital additions projects.

B In 2003, electric plant in service (EPIS) increased
359,606,000 and accumulated depreciation increased
$32,675,000 due to the asset retirement obligation
adjustment January 1, 2003 in accordance with Statement
of Financial Accounting Standard No. 143, “Accounting
for Asset Retirement Obligations.”
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NCEMPA MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Equipment, Net

Additional information on capital assets can be found in Note
C on page 75 of this report.

Outstanding Debt

Total debt outstanding at December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
was $2,973,548,000, $3,057,769,000 and $3,148,686,000,
respectively, all of which are revenue bonds. Total debt
decreased by $84,221,000 (2.8%) and $90,917,000 (2.9%)
during 2004 and 2003, respectively, due to the principal debt
payments and the equity contributions to facilitate the refund-
ing of bonds, net of the accretion on the Capital Appreciation
Bonds.

In May 2004, May 2003 and January 2003, the Agency
refinanced some of its existing debt to take advantage of
historically low interest rates.

E In May 2004, the Agency issued $222,975,000 of Series
2004 A and B Refunding Bonds to refund $223,005,000
of previously issued bonds. Net present value savings
realized were $21,094,000 with debt service savings of
from $2,181,000 to $3,416,000 per year through 2019
and $339,000 and $230,000 in 2020 and 2021,
respectively.

B In May 2003, the Agency issued $412,685,000 of Series
2003 D, E, F, and G Refunding Bonds to refund
$417,155,000 of previously issued bonds. Net present
value savings realized were $21,530,000 with debt service
savings of approximately $2,650,000 per year through
2013 and smaller variable savings per year
from 2014 to 2025.

B InJanuary 2003, the Agency issued $294,540,000 of
Series 2003 A, B and C Refunding Bonds to refund
$299,245,000 of previously issued bonds. Net present
value savings realized were $19,700,000 with debt service
savings of approximately $3,400,000 per year through
2011 and approximately $1,200,000 per year from 2012
to 2016.

The Agency’s bond ratings improved from Moody’s Investor
Service from Baa3 (stable) to Baa3 (positive) in January 2003
and to Baa2 (stable) in May 2004 in association with the
refunding bond offering. Standard and Poor’s Corporation
and FitchRatings left the ratings unchanged throughout the
two years at BBB (stable) and BBB+ (stable), respectively.
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Additional information regarding the Agency’s long-term debt Budget Highlights for 2005

can be found in Note G beginning on page 80 of this report.

|
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates
a
Economic Factors
The following key economic factors played a role in the 2005 3

budget.

| Over the past year, a continued modest economic
recovery has improved demand for electricity. The loss ]
of manufacturing facilities to overseas competitors has
played itself out and has been fully accounted for in the

forecasts. As the economy picked up over the past year, u
short-term economic indicators have improved. Key
areas of growth affecting the load forecast include
housing (residential demand) and high-tech industries.
n

B Increased fuel costs continue to drive production costs

Reflects a continued focus on reliable, cost effective power
supply and Participant services.

Implements a 1.0% wholesale rate increase effective
March 1.

The load forecast projects energy sales growing 2.1%
during 2004 and annual coincident peak demand
growing 2.0% per year.

Collection through rates of $91,005,000 for debt principal
due January 1, 2006.

Anticipates capital additions at the joint units of
approximately $9,800,000 for nuclear power up-rates,
Clean Smokestacks compliance at the fossil units and
nuclear license extensions.

Scheduled outage at Brunswick Unit 2 for refueling.

upward. Natural gas prices increased to the $6/MBTU to Requests for Information

$7/MBTU level, and the forward markets suggest that this
trend will remain in place. High natural gas prices are
driven by the depletion of wells in the Gulf of Mexico
and by the increase in the number of gas-fired generating
units. Coal prices have also increased dramatically over

This report is designed to provide an overview of the Agency’s
finances for those who are interested. Questions concerning
any of the information found in this report or requests for
additional information should be directed to the Chief
Financial Officer, North Carolina Eastern Municipal Power

the past year due to increasing transportation and mining Agency, P. O. Box 29513, Raleigh, NC 27626-0513

costs, as well as increased demand for more expensive
and cleaner burning low-sulfur coal. With coal and
natural gas prices elevated, both on and off-peak
electricity prices are expected to remain higher than
historical averages.
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NCEMPA BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Capital Assets (Note C)
Electric Utility Plant, Net
Electric plant in service
Construction work in progress
Nuclear fuel
Less accumulated depreciation & amortization
Total Electric Utility Plant, Net
Non-Utility Property and Equipment, Net
Property and Equipment
Less accumulated depreciation
Total Non-Utility Property and Equipment, Net
Total Capital Assets
Restricted Assets
Special Funds Invested (Notes D and G):
Bond fund
Reserve and contingency fund
Decommissioning fund
Special reserve fund
Total Special Funds Invested
Trust for Decommissioning Costs (Notes D and G)
Total Restricted Assets
Other Assets
Unamortized debt issuance costs
VEPCO compensation payment (Note E)
Development costs
Costs of advance refundings of debt
Other Deferred Costs (Note F)
Total Other Assets
Total Non-Current Assets
Current Assets
Funds Invested (Notes D and G):
Revenue fund
Operating fund
Supplemental fund
Total Funds Invested
Participants accounts receivable
Fossil fuel inventory
Prepaid expenses
Derivative financial instruments (Note B)
Total Current Assets
Total Assets

See accompanying notes to financial statement.
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($000s)

December 31,
2004 2003

$ 1,546,514 $ 1,539,460
4,532 10,672
65,254 59,072
(891,404) (844,561)
724,896 764,643
2,694 2,640
(1,094) (1,037)
1,600 1,603
726,496 766,246
365,149 381,719
22,543 20,346
2,703 2,543

- 1.011

390,395 405,619

—— 141964 — 126659
532,359 532,278
41,068 35,060
6,607 6,996

4,732 5,002
379,783 394,251
1,458,608 — 1,480,968
1,890,798 — 1922277
3,149,653 3,220,801
42,286 19,403
34,282 55,319
16,810 23,194
93,378 97,916
42,161 37,896
3,537 5,145
16,064 16,169

- 11,648

155,140 168,774

$ 3,304,793 $ 3.389575
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NCEMPA BALANCE SHEETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Long-Term Debt
Bonds payable
Less unamortized discount
Total Long-Term Debt
Asset Retirement Obligation
Deferred Revenues (Note F)
Commitments and Contingencies (Notes B and H})
Total Non-Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Operating Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued taxes
Derivative financial instruments (Note B)
Total Operating Liabilities
Special Funds Liabilities:
Construction payables
Current maturities of bonds {Note G)
Accrued interest on bonds
Total Special Funds Liabilities:
Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Fund Equity
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt (deficit)
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted
Total fund equity
Total Liabilities and Fund Equity

($000s)

2004 Annual Report

December 31,

2004

2003

$ 2,882,543

$ 2,972,569

(19,433) {35,531)
2,863,110 2,937,038
157,922 184,172
63,737 55,735
3,084,769 3,176,945
20433 19,360
7111 7,095
10,023
37,567 26,455
91,005 85,200
75,738 84,239
166,743 169,439
204,310 195,894
3,289,079 3,372,839
(911,384) (915,757)
92,554 107,832
834,544 824,661
15,714 16,736

$ 3304793

$ 3,389,575
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NCEMPA STATEMENTS OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY

($000s)

Operating Revenues:
Sales of electricity to participants
Sales of electricity to utilities
Other Revenues
Total Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses:
Operation and maintenance
Fuel
Power coordination services:
Purchased power
Transmission and distribution
Other
Total power coordination services
Administrative and general
Amounts in lieu of taxes
Gross receipts tax
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of asset retirement obligation
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income
Nonoperating (Revenues) Expenses
Investment income
Net decrease in fair value of investments and derivative financial instruments
Interest expense
Amortization of debt refunding cost
Amortization of debt discount and issuance costs
Net increase in other deferred costs (Note F)
Net increase in deferred revenues (Note F)
Total nonoperating expenses
Increase {Decrease) in Fund Equity
Fund Equity, Beginning of the Year
Fund Equity, End of the Year

See accompanying notes to financial statement.
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Years Ended December 31,

__-2004__ __2003__
$ 495,873 $ 475989
39,101 35,639

59 10,117
535,033 521,745
42,081 43,468
44,595 42,212
115,899 100,890
20,835 20,555
330 492

137,064 121,937
31,020 25,435
3,405 3,484
15,879 15,456
60,037 57,575
10,866 10,261
344,947 319,828
190,086 201,917
21,413) (20,892)
21,155 33,451
161,450 166,783
36,423 36,660
247 933

(14,756) (25,584)
8002 4923
_.__191,108 _ 196274
(1,022) 5,643
—.___ 16,736 __ 11,093
§ 15714 $ 16716




NCEMPA STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

($000s)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from sales of electricity
Payments of operating expenses
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Bonds issued
Bonds refunded
Interest paid
Debt discount and issuance costs paid
Additions to electric utility plant and non-utility property
and equipment
Bonds retired or redeemed
Net cash used for capital and related financing activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Sales and maturities of investment securities
Purchases of investment securities
Investment earnings receipts from non-construction funds
Net cash provided by investing activities
Net Change in Operating Cash
Operating Cash, Beginning of year
Operating Cash, End of year

Reconciliation of Net Operating Income to Net Cash Provided by
Operating Activities:

Net Operating Income
Adjustments: .
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of nuclear fuel
Changes in assets and liabilities:
. (Increase) decrease in participant accounts receivable
Decrease in fossil fuel stock
Decrease in prepaid expenses
Decrease in deferred costs
Increase in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued taxes
Total Adjustments
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003

$ 530722 $ 516,879

(265,187) (231,400
265,535 285,479
222,975 707,225
(223,005) {716,400)
(168,905) (169,412)
(11,618) 319
(26,159) (37,542
(85.200) {82,695)
291,912) (298,505)
5,203,018 6,141,349
(5,189,099) (6,151,154)
12,458 22,831
26,377 13,026

2 2

$ 2 $ 2

$ 190,086 $ 201,917

60,037 57,375
16,216 16,557
{4,265) 5,204
1,608 318
105 363
659 659
1,073 3,364
16 278
75,449 83,562

$ 265535 $ 285479
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NCEMPA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003

A. GENERAL MATTERS

North Carolina Eastern Municipal Power Agency (Agency) is a
joint agency organized and existing pursuant to Chapter 1598
of the General Statutes of North Carolina to enable municipal
electric systems, through the organization of the Agency, to
finance, build, own and operate generation and transmission
projects. The Agency is comprised of 32 municipal electric
systems (Participants) with interests ranging from 0.0783%

to 16.13439%, which receive power from the Agency.

Initial Project

The initial project is comprised of the Agency's undivided
ownership interests in three nuclear-fueled and two coal-fired
generating units presently in commercial operation by Progress
Energy Carolinas, Inc. (PEC). (See table on page 75 for a listing
of the units and the Agency’s ownership interest in each unit.)
The initial project is financed under Power System Revenue
Bond Resolution No. R-2-82 (Resolution) adopted by the Board

of Commissioners (Board) of the Agency. The Resolution estab-

lished special funds to hold proceeds from debt issuance, such
proceeds to be used for costs of acquisition and construction
of the initial project and to establish and maintain certain
reserves. The Resolution also established special funds into
which initial project revenues from Participants are to be
deposited and from which initial project operating costs,

debt service and other specified payments are to be made.

The Agency entered into several agreements with PEC that
govern the purchase, ownership, construction, operation

and maintenance of the generating units in the initial project.
Under these agreements, PEC manages the construction and
operation of the generating units in which the Agency has
undivided ownership interests. Both PEC and the Agency
have the right to challenge the allocation of charges for a
period extending to April 1 of the second year after which
the challenged payment or adjustment was made.

In 2002, the Agency and PEC finalized a contract for supple-
mental power purchases by the Agency from PEC from 2004
to 2009. Purchases under the new contract replaced purchases
under the old contract and the Peaking Project Delay
Agreement (discussed later) effective January 1, 2004.

The Agency also entered into agreements with PEC and
Virginia Electric and Power Company (VEPCO) for the trans-
mission of power to the Agency's Participants. The Power
Coordination Agreement (1981 PCA) obligates PEC to purchase
power from the Agency in specified percentages of the Agency's
entitlement to such power from Harris Unit 1 (1987-2007).

The Agency entered into two power sales agreements with
each of its Participants for supplying the total electric power
requirements of the Participants in excess of Southeastern
Power Administration (SEPA) allocations. With the power
generated from the initial project, together with supplemental
purchases of power from PEC, the Agency provides the total
electric power requirements of its Participants, exclusive of
power allotments from SEPA. Under the Initial Project Power
Sales Agreements, the Agency sells to the Participants their
respective shares of initial project output. The revenues
received relative to the initial project are pledged as security
for bonds issued under the Resolution, after payment of initial
project operating expenses. Each Participant is obligated to
pay its share of operating costs and debt service for the initial
project. Under the Supplemental Power Sales Agreements,

the Agency supplies each Participant the additional power it
requires in excess of that provided by output from the initjal
project and from SEPA.

Peaking Project Delay Agreement (Delay Agreement)

In 1996, the Agency entered into an agreement with PEC to
delay the commercial operation of the Agency's peaking project
(subsequently cancelled) until January 1, 2004. In return, PEC
provided capacity and energy equal to the peaking project at

a price comparable to what it would have cost to operate the
peaking project during the delay period (June 1, 1998 to
December 31, 2003). As mentioned previously, in 2002 the
Agency and PEC entered into an agreement for the replace-
ment of the power provided under the Delay Agreement for
2004 to 2009.

ElectriCities of North Carolina

ElectriCities of North Carolina, Inc. (ElectriCities), organized as
a joint municipal assistance Agency under the General Statutes
of North Carolina, is a public body and body corporate and
politic created for the purpose of providing aid and assistance
to municipalities in connection with their electric systems and
to joint agencies, such as the Agency.

The Agency entered into a management agreement with
ElectriCities. Under the current management agreement with
the Agency, ElectriCities is required to provide all personnel
and personnel services necessary for the Agency to conduct its
business in an economic and efficient manner. This agreement
continues through December 31, 2007, and is automatically
renewed for successive three-year periods unless terminated

by one year's notice by either party prior to the end of the
contract term.

For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Agency
paid ElectriCities $5,124,000 and $5,193,000, respectively.
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NCEMPA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting

The Accounts of the Agency are maintained on the accrual
bassis, in accordance with the Uniform System of Accounts

of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, and are in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (GAAP). The Agency has adopted
the principles promulgated by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) and Statement of Financial Accounting
Standard (SFAS) No. 71, “Accounting for the Effects of Certain
Types of Regulation,” as amended. This standard allows utili-
ties to capitalize or defer certain costs and/or revenues based
upon the Agency’s ongoing assessment that it is probable that
such items will be recovered through future revenues.

In 1999, GASB issued Statement No. 34, “Basic Financial
Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for
State and Local Governments” (GASB No. 34). The statement
requires certain information be included in the financial state-
ments and specifies how that information should be presented.

The financial statements are prepared using the economic
resources measurement focus. Operating revenues are defined
as revenues received from the sale of electricity and associated
services. Revenues from capital and related financing activities
and investment activities are defined as non-operating rev-
enues. Restricted equity represents constraints on resources
that are imposed by Resolution and may be utilized only for
the purposes established by the Resolution. Unrestricted
equity may be utilized for any purpose approved by the
Board through the budget process. When both restricted and
unrestricted equity might be used to meet an obligation, the
Agency first uses the restricted equity.

Financial Reporting

Under GASB Statement No. 20, “Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental
Entities that Use Proprietary Fund Accounting”, the Agency
has adopted the option to apply Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) statements and interpretations that
do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.

Electric Plant in Service

All direct and indirect expenditures associated with the devel-
opment and construction of the Agency's undivided ownership
interests in five of PEC's generating units in commercial opera-
tion, including interest expense net of investment earnings on
funds not yet expended, have been recorded at original cost
(plus acquisition adjustment) and are being depreciated (or

amortized) on a straight-line basis over the life of the debt
issued to fund each unit's assets. At December 31, 2004, the
remaining life of the debt used to fund the assets for Brunswick
Units 1 and 2 was 5 years, Harris Unit 1 was 20 years, Roxboro
Unit 4 was 10 years and Mayo Unit 1 was 12 years.

The asset retirement obligation adjustment arising from imple-
menting SFAS No. 143 (discussed under Decommissioning
Costs beginning on page 73) is also included. It is being
depreciated over the remaining life of the plants from which
the asset retirement obligation arises. At December 31, 2004,
the remaining life for Brunswick Unit 1 was 11 years, 8
months; for Brunswick Unit 2 was 10 years and for Harris Unit
1 was 21 years, 6 months.
In November 2003, GASB issued Statement No. 42,“Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Impairment of Capital Assets and
for Insurance Recoveries”. Under this statement, governments
must report impairment of capital assets. GASB defines impair-
ment as a significant, unexpected decline in the service utility
of a capital asset. This statement also covers insurance recover-
ies, whether connected to a loss or not. The Agency will imple-
ment this statement for the year ending December 31, 2006.
The Agency has not yet determined what, if any, impact it will
- have on the Agency’s financial statements.

Construction Work in Progress

All expenditures associated with capital additions related to

the Agency's undivided ownership interests in PEC's generating
units are capitalized as construction work in progress until such
time as they are complete, at which time they are transferred
to Electric Plant in Service. No interest is capitalized on capital
additions. Depreciation expense is recognized on these items
after they are transferred.

Nuclear Fuel

All expenditures related to the purchase and construction of
the Agency's undivided ownership interests in nuclear fuel
cores are capitalized until such time as the cores are placed

in the reactor. No interest is capitalized on fuel cores. Once
placed in the reactor, they are amortized to fuel expense utiliz-
ing the units of production method. Amounts are removed
from the books upon disposal of the spent nuclear fuel.
Nuclear fuel expense includes a provision for estimated dispos-
al costs, which is being collected currently from Participants.
Amortization of nuclear fuel costs in 2004 and 2003 includes
a provision of $3,913,000 and $3,889,000, respectively, for
estimated disposal costs.

The Energy Policy Act of 1992 established a fund for the
decontamination and decommissioning of the Department
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of Energy’s (DOE) uranium enrichment plants. Nuclear plant
licensees are subject to an annual assessment for 15 years based
on their pro rata share of past enrichment services. PEC makes
the annual payment to DOE for the Brunswick and Harris units
and bills the Agency for their proportionate share. The
Agency’s payments to PEC were approximately $793,000 and
$776,000 in 2004 and 2003, respectively, and were recorded

as fuel expense.

Under provisions of the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982, PEC,
on behalf of PEC and the Agency, entered into contracts with
the DOE for the disposal of spent nuclear fuel. The DOE failed
to begin accepting the spent nuclear fuel in 1998, the year pro-
vided by the Nuclear Waste Policy Act and PEC’s contract with
the DOE. PEC, on behalf of all co-owners and along with other
utilities, has taken steps to force the DOE to take spent nuclear-
fuel. To date, the courts have rejected these attempts. In
January 2004, PEC joined with other utilities in suing the DOE
for not establishing a national repository by the deadline.

The Agency stores all spent fuel within its facilities. With
certain modifications, the Agency’s spent fuel storage facilities
are sufficient to handle all spent fuel generated by all of the
Agency’s nuclear generating units through the expiration of
their current operating licenses.

Non-Utility Property and Equipment

All expenditures related to purchasing and installing an in-
house computer, jointly owned with North Carolina Municipal

Power Agency Number 1 (NCMPA1), have been capitalized and
are fully depreciated. Also included are the land and adminis-
trative office building jointly owned with NCMPA1 and used
by both agencies and ElectriCities. The administrative office
building is being depreciated over 37/, years on a straight-line
basis.

Investments

The Agency has implemented the provisions of GASB
Statement No. 31, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools,”
which requires investments to be reported at fair value.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Agency reports in accordance with SFAS No. 133,
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging
Activities” (SFAS No. 133) and SFAS No. 138, “Accounting for
Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities,
an Amendment of SFAS 133" (SFAS No. 138). SFAS No. 133
and SFAS No. 138 require that all derivative instruments be
recorded on the balance sheet at their respective fair values.

The Agency has six interest rate swap agreements, none of
which has been designated as a hedge. Two of the agreements
are fixed to variable rate swaps and four are variable to fixed
rate swaps. The four variable to fixed rate swaps were entered
into in May 2004.

The following details the terms of the various swap agreements
(dollars in thousands):

{$5,550 at 12/27/18 and $300 at 12/26/19
- Reduces 1o $52,000 at 12/7/06, '$51,850 at 12/11/08, $51,700 at 12/16/10, $51,550 at 12/1/11, $49,100 at 12/5/
. §$46 675 at 12/26/14, $42,525 at 12/10/15, $27,250 at 12/29/16, $19,950 at 12/14/17 and $17,425 at 1129/18.
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The fixed to variable rate swap agreements had original
termination dates in 2009. In 2003, the Agency shortened
the end dates of both swaps to March 1, 2005, resulting in a
$10,050,000 payment by the counterparty to the Agency.

The fixed to variable interest rate swap agreements were
entered into to synthetically convert a portion of the Agency’s
fixed rate debt to variable rate debt over the life of the swaps.
The BMA Municipal Swap Index was 1.99% and 1.14% at
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Interest paid and
received under the swap agreements increases and decreases,
respectively, interest expense. The net effect was to reduce
interest expense $10,530,000 and $11,113,000 in 2004 and
2003, respectively.

The variable to fixed interest rate swap agreements were
entered into to synthetically convert a portion of the Agency’s
variable rate debt to fixed rate debt over the life of the swaps.
The USD-LIBOR-BBA Index was 2.34% and 2.40% for 7 day
and one month instruments, respectively, at December 31,
2004. Interest paid and received under the swap agreements
increases and decreases, respectively, interest expense. The net
effect was to reduce interest expense $3,073,000 in 2004.

The fair value of the interest rate swap agreements was approxi-
mately $(10,023,000) and $11,648,000 at December 31, 2004
and 2003, respectively. The fair value is the amount that
would be paid or received if the swap were terminated and may
change as market interest 1ates change. Current market pricing
models were used to estimate the fair value of the interest rate
swap agreements. The fluctuation in the fair value of the inter-
est rate swaps was a decrease of $21,671,000 in 2004 and a
decrease of $22,221,000 inclusive of the $10,050,000 payment
received to shorten the end date in 2003 and is included in
“Increase (decrease) in fair value of investments and derivative
financial instruments” in the statements of revenues and
expenses.

By using derivative instruments, the Agency exposes itself

to credit risk and market risk. Credit risk is the failure of the
counterparty to perform under the terms of the derivative
contract. When the fair value of the derivative contract is
positive, the counterparty owes the Agency, which creates
repayment risk for the Agency. When the fair value of a deriv-
ative contract is negative, the Agency owes the counterparty
and, therefore, is not subject to repayment risk. The Agency
minimizes the credit or repayment risk by entering into
transactions with high-quality counterparties.

Market risk is the adverse effect on the value of financial
instruments that results from a change in interest rates. The

market risk associated with interest-rate contracts is managed
by establishing and monitoring parameters that limit the
types and degree of market risk that may be undertaken.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist of trade accounts receivable
associated with the sale of electricity and are stated at cost.
The Agency primarily sells to the Participants in the project
and accordingly, management does not believe an allowance
for doubtful accounts is required.

Decommissioning Costs

NRC regulations require that each licensee of a commercial
nuclear power reactor furnish to the NRC certification of its
financial capability to meet the costs of nuclear decommission-
ing at the end of the useful life of the licensee's facility. Asa
co-licensee of Brunswick Units 1 and 2 and Harris Unit 1, the
Agency is subject to the NRC's financial capability regulations,
and therefore has furnished certification of its financial capabil-
ity to fund its share of the costs of decommissioning those
units.

To satisfy the NRC's financial capability regulations, the Agency
established an external trust fund (Decommissioning Trust)
pursuant to a trust agreement with a bank. The Agency's certi-
fication requires that the Agency make annual deposits to the
Decommissioning Trust which, together with the investment
earnings and amounts previously on deposit in the trust, are
anticipated to result in sufficient funds being held in the
Decommissioning Trust at the expiration of the current operat-
ing licenses for the units (currently 2014 for Brunswick Unit 2,
2016 for Brunswick Unit 1, and 2026 for Harris Unit 1) to meet
the Agency's share of decommissioning.

In October 2004, PEC submitted an application to extend the
licenses of both Brunswick units by 20 years. An application to
extend the operating license of Harris is expected to be filed in
2006.

Estimates of the future costs of decommissioning the units are
based on the most recent site-specific study that was conducted
on behalf of PEC in 2004. The Agency'’s portion of decommis-
sioning costs, including the cost of decommissioning plant
components not subject to radioactive contamination, is
$65,116,000 for Brunswick Unit 1, $70,265,000 for Brunswick
Unit 2 and $69,168,000 for Harris, all stated in 2004 dollars.

The Decommissioning Trust is irrevocable and funds may be
withdrawn from the trust solely for the purpose of paying the
Agency's share of the costs of nuclear decommissioning. Under
the NRC regulations, the Decommissioning Trust is required to
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be segregated from Agency assets and outside the Agency's
administrative control. The Agency is deemed to have incurred
and paid decommissioning costs as amounts are deposited to
the Decommissioning Trust. In addition to the Decommission-
ing Trust, certain reserve assets are anticipated to be available
to satisfy the Agency’s total decommissioning liability.

The Agency determined that it was necessary to fund

‘refundings of debt at December 31, 2004 and 2003, shown

net of accumulated amortization of $340,484,000 and
$318,489,000, respectively, are deferred and amortized using
the interest method over the term of the debt issued on
refunding. Other deferred costs and deferred revenues are not

~ amortized but will either be recovered from or refunded to

Participants through future rates (see Note F).

decommissioning costs associated with the non-nuclear Discounts/Premiums on Bonds

portion of the Brunswick plant that fell outside the NRC
requirements. Therefore, it has made deposits to the
Decommissioning Fund separate from the requirements for
the Decommissioning Trust.

In 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset
Retirement Obligations” (SFAS No. 143). The Agency imple-

Discounts on bonds (net of premiums) at December 31, 2004
and 2003 shown net of accumulated accretion/amortization of
$(442,000) and $7,342,000, respectively, are amortized over the
terms of the related bonds in a manner which yields a constant
rate of interest.

mented SFAS No. 143 effective January 1, 2003 as it relates to Taxes

decommissioning costs of Brunswick Unit 2, Brunswick Unit 1
and Harris to be incurred at the end of their operating licenses,
2014, 2016 and 2026, respectively.

SFAS No. 143 requires the Agency to record the fair value of an
asset retirement obligation as a liability in the period in which
it incurs a legal obligation associated with the retirement of
tangible long-lived assets that result from the acquisition, con-
struction, development and/or normal use of assets and record
a corresponding asset that will be depreciated over the life of

Income of the Agency is excludable from income subject to
federal income tax under Section 115 of the Internal Revenue
Code. Chapter 159B of the General Statutes of North Carolina
exempts the Agency from property and franchise or other
privilege taxes. In lieu of property taxes, the Agency pays an
amount that would otherwise be assessed on the real and per-
sonal property of the Agency. In lieu of a franchise or privilege
tax, the Agency pays an amount equal to 3.22% of the gross
receipts from sales of electricity to Participants.

the asset. Subsequent to the initial measurement of the asset Statements of Cash Flows

retirement obligation, the obligation will be adjusted at the end
of each period to reflect the passage of time and changes in the
estimated future cash flows underlying the obligation. Any
such adjustments for changes in the estimated future cash
flows will also be capitalized and amortized over the remaining
life of the asset.

Changes in components of the asset retirement obligation
during 2004 and 2003 are as follows (in thousands of dollars):

Fossil Fuel Inventory

Fossil fuel inventory includes fossil fuel stock and EPA Clean
Air Act Allowances, each of which is stated at average cost.
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For purposes of the statements of cash flows, operating cash
consists of unrestricted cash of $2,000 at both December 31,
2004 and 2003, included on the balance sheet in the line item
"Current Assets: Funds Invested". Restricted cash of $2,000
and $3,000, respectively, at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
included on the balance sheet in the line item “Restricted
Assets: Special Funds Invested” is not part of the statements

of cash flows.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
GAAP requires management to make estimates and assump-
tions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications

Certain 2003 amounts have been reclassified to conform to
2004 classifications. The reclassifications had no effect on
excess of revenues over expenses or retained earnings as
previously reported.
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C. CAPITAL ASSETS

Initial Project

The Agency has commitments to PEC in connection with capi-
tal additions for the initial project. Current estimates indicate
the Agency's portion of these costs for 2005 and 2006 will be
approximately $33,126,000.

The Agency's agreements with PEC specify the purchase of
undivided ownership interests in nuclear-fueled and coal-fired
generating units, which comprise the initial project, presently
in commercial operation as follows:

On January 1, 2005, PEC increased the MNDC of Brunswick
Unit 1 to 938 MW increasing the Agency’s ownership share to
171.9 MW. In addition, in conjunction with Brunswick Unit
2’s spring refueling outage, PEC expects to complete uprate
work which will increase its MNDC to 928 MW thus increasing
the Agency’s ownership share to 170.1 MW,

Electric Utility Plant, Net

Changes in components of electric utility plant, net during
2004 and 2003 are as follows (in thousands of dollars):

Mayo Unit 1

| Coal-

ot of All Units

lectric Plant in Servic

Vuclear Fuel
otal Electric Utility Plan
Accumufated D?PFQC!atiOn and Amortizatio
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2003 additions for electric plant in service and accumulated
depreciation include $56,606,000 and $32,675,000, respective-
ly, representing the initial asset retirement obligation recorded
by the Agency in accordance with SFAS No. 143.

Non-Utility Property and Eaquipment, Net

Changes in components of non-utility property and equip-
ment, net during 2004 and 2003 are as follows (in thousands
of dollars):

December 31,

Decerber 31,

Property and Equipment
Umijlated Depreciat

otal Depreuable Non-Utility Property
and Equ:pment, Net ‘

Retlrements

D. INVESTMENTS

The Resolution authorizes the Agency to invest in 1) direct
obligations of, or obligations of which the principal and inter-
est are unconditionally guaranteed by the United States (U.S.),
2) obligations of any Agency of the U.S. or corporation wholly
owned by the U.S,, 3) direct and general obligations of the

State of North Carolina or any political subdivision thereof
whose securities are rated "A" or better, 4) repurchase agree-
ments with a member of the Federal Reserve System which are
collateralized by previously described obligations and 5) bank
time deposits evidenced by certificates of deposit and bankers'
acceptances.
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Bank time deposits may only be in banks with capital stock,
surplus and undivided profits of $20,000,000 or $50,000,000
for North Carolina banks and out-of-state banks, respectively,
and the Agency's investments deposited in such banks cannot
exceed 50% and 25%, respectively, of such banks' capital stock,
surplus and undivided profits.

The Resolution permits the Agency to establish official deposi-
tories with any bank or trust company qualified under the laws
of North Carolina to receive deposits of public moneys and
having capital stock, surplus and undivided profits aggregating
in excess of $20,000,000.

All depositories must collateralize public deposits in excess of
federal depository insurance coverage. The Agency's deposito-
ries use the pooling method, a single financial institution
collateral pool. Under the pooling method, a depository estab-
Iishes a single escrow account on behalf of all governmental
agencies. Collateral is maintained with an eligible escrow agent
in the name of the State Treasurer of North Carolina based on
an approved averaging method for demand deposits and the
actual current balance for time deposits less the applicable
federal depository insurance for each depositor. The financial
institutions using the pooling method are responsible for
assuring sufficient collateralization of these excess deposits.

Because of the inability to measure the exact amount of
collateral pledged for the Agency under the pooling method,
the potential exists for under-collateralization. However, the
State Treasurer enforces strict standards for each pooling
method depository, which minimizes any risk of under-collat-
eralization. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Agency had
$4,000 and $5,000 covered by federal depository insurance.

The Agency's investments are categorized to give an indication
of the level of risk assumed by the Agency at year-end.
Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered
or for which the securities are held by the Agency or its agent
in the Agency’s name. Category 2 includes uninsured and
unregistered investments for which the securities are held by
the broker or dealer, or by its trust department or agent in the
Agency’s name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregis-
tered investments for which the securities are held by the
broker or dealer, or by its safekeeping department or agent, but
not in the Agency’s name. All investments except repurchase
agreements are considered Category 1. Repurchase agreements
are considered Category 3.

The Agency’s investments are detailed in the following
schedule. (In thousands of dollars.)

Repurchase agreements .
U.S. government agenci
. Municipal bonds -+
s
Collateratized mortgage obligations

Decommissioning Trust securities’

Cash

pecial funds invested
Decommissioning Trs
Operating assets - -
Total funds invest
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In accordance with the provisions of the Resolution, the collat-
eral under the repurchase agreements is segregated and held by
the trustee for the Agency.

The Agency’s impaired investments are detailed in the
following schedule (in thousands of dollars):

:"December 31, 2004

2 Months or Longer
*Fair 72 7% Unrealized

E. VEPCO COMPENSATION PAYMENT

The VEPCO compensation payment represents compensation
to VEPCO for early termination of service for those Participants
previously served by VEPCO. This payment of $15,515,000
and the related capitalized interest of $33,000 were deferred
and are being amortized on a straight-line basis over 40 years,
the expected life of the initial project. The balance at
December 31, 2004 and 2003 is net of accumulated amortiza-
tion of $8,941,000 and $8,552,000, respectively.

F. OTHER DEFERRED COSTS AND DEFERRED REVENUES

Rates for power billings to Participants are designed to cover
the Agency's operating expenses, debt requirementsand
reserves as specified by the Resolution and power sales agree-
ments. Straight-line depreciation and amortization are not
considered in the cost of service calculation used to design
rates. In addition, certain earnings on funds established in
accordance with the Resolution are restricted to those funds
and are not available for current operations.

The differences between debt principal maturities (adjusted for

the effects of premiums, discounts and amortization of deferred

gains and losses) and straight-line depreciation and amortiza-
tion and in interest income recognition are recognized as other
deferred costs. When total deferred items exceed principal debt
service, other deferred costs increase. When principal debt
service exceeds total deferred items, other deferred costs
decrease.

Funds collected through rates for reserve accounts and restrict-
ed investment income are recognized as deferred revenues, .
thus increasing deferred revenues. When these funds are used
to meet current expenses, deferred revenues decrease.

The Agency’s present charges to the Participants are sufficient
to recover all of the Agency’s current annual costs of the
Participants’ bulk power needs. Each Participant is required
under the power sales agreements to set its rates for its
customers at levels sufficient to pay all costs of its electric
utility systern, including the Agency’s charges for bulk power
supply. All Participants have done so.

All rates must be approved by the Board of Commissioners.
Rates are designed on an annual basis and are reviewed
quarterly. If they are determined to be inadequate to cover
the Agency’s current annual costs, rates may be revised.

In accordance with SFAS No. 144 “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (SFAS No. 144)
the Agency will assess the recoverability of its long lived assets
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amount may not be recoverable. During 2004
and 2003, the Agency determined that such an assessment
was not necessary.

2004 Annual Report




NCEMPA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Other deferred costs include the following (in thousands of dollars):

: Othiéfl('Déferfed Costs

7erfe*|;ied interest expense

ption to.

December 31,

The amount for other deferred costs shown for inception to Decembér 31, 2004 has been adjusted by $37,116,000 to reflect
the new liability as a result of the new decommissioning studies for Brunswick and Harris.

Deferred revenues include the following (in thousands of dollars):

. f\fét;D‘éférr;e;i- Revenues

Year Ended

anpifﬁé to

December 31, -

December 31,
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G. BONDS

The Agency has been authorized to issue Power System
Revenue Bonds (bonds) in accordance with the terms,
conditions and limitations of the Resolution. The total to be
issued is to be sufficient to pay the costs of acquisition and

construction of the project, as defined, and/or for other
purposes set forth in the Resolution. Future refunding of
bonds may result in the issuance of additional bonds.

The following shows bond activity during 2004 (in thousands
of dollars):

hSenes 1993 C*
“Series 1993 D
Bonds Outstandlp_g at December 31 2004

$°2,073508°

The various issues comprising the outstanding debt are as follows (in thousands of dollars):

Series 1986 A

5% maturing in 2017 with annual sinking fund requirements

beginning in 2015

Series 1989 A

7.5% maturing in 2010 with annual sinking fund requirements

beginning in 2009

Series 1991 A
6.25% maturing in 2004

6.3% to 6.4% capital appreciation serial bonds maturing

annually from 2004 to 2006
6.5% maturing in 2018
5.75% maturing in 2019

Series 1993 B
5.5% to 7.25% maturing annually from 2004 to 2009

5.5% maturing in 2017 with annual sinking fund requirements

beginning in 2015
6% maturing in 2018

5.5% maturing in 2021 with annual sinking fund requirements

beginning in 2019
6% maturing in 2022
6.25% maturing in 2023
6% maturing annually from 2025 to 2026

December 31,

2004 2003
$ 4495 $ 4495
28,890 28,890
260
2,538 3,329
28,755 28,755
130,680
— 31,293 — 163,024
376,435 381,760
146,625 146,625
97,790 97,790
194,510 194,510
157,740 157,740
64,390 64,390
1070475 -1.075.800
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Series 1993 C
5% to 7% maturing annually from 2004 to 2007
7% maturing in 2013 with annual sinking fund requirements
beginning in 2010
5% maturing in 2021 with annual sinking fund requirements
beginning in 2014

Series 1993 D
5.6% maturing in 2016 with annual sinking fund requirements
beginning in 2015

Series 1995 A
5.125% maturing in 2012

Series 1996 A
5.5% to 6% maturing annually from 2004 to 2006
5.6% maturing in 2010
5.625% to 5.7% maturing annually from 2012 to 2016
5.625% maturing in 2024 with annual sinking fund requirements
beginning in 2017

Series 1996 B
6% maturing in 2006
5.8% maturing in 2016
5.875% maturing in 2021 with annual sinking fund requirements
beginning in 2020

Series 1997 A
5.375% maturing in 2024

Series 1999 A
5.2% maturing in 2010
5.75% maturing in 2026 with annual sinking fund requirements
beginning in 2023

Series 1999 B
5.55% to 5.7% maturing annually from 2014 to 2017
5.75% maturing in 2024

2004 Annua! Report

December 31,

2004 2003
$ 87,645 $ 124,400
20,965 20,965
57,590
108,610 202,955
- 34,735
14,090 14,090
69,255 105,805
1,060 1,060
83,320 83,320
62,310 62,310
215,945 252,495
12,000 12,000
22,920 22,920
101,955 101,955
136,875 136,875
29,185 29,185
5,000 5,000
150,000 150,000
155,000 155,000
40,035 40,035
76,690 76,690
116,725 116,725
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December 31,

2003

$ 3.805

1,500

7470

7,500
35,875

80,125

132,470

171,760

9,860

112,920

645
228,370

42,890

21,660

— 293,561

6,740
13,410

4,195

— 24345

240
87,715

2004
Series 1999 C (Federally Taxable)
6.48% to 7.05% maturing annually from 2004 to 2007 $ 2,945
Series 1999 D
5.45% maturing in 2004
6% maturing in 2009 with annual sinking fund requirements
beginning in 2005 7470
6.45% maturing in 2014 with annual sinking fund requirements
beginning in 2010 7,500
6.7% maturing in 2019 with annual sinking fund requirements
beginning in 2015 35,875
6.75% maturing in 2026 with annual sinking fund requirements
beginning in 2020 80,125
130,970
Series 2003 A
5.5% maturing annually from 2010 to 2012 171.760
Series 2003 B (Federally Taxable)
6.48% maturing in 2012 9.860
Series 2003 C
2.75% to 5.375% maturing annually from 2004 to 2017 111.655
Series 2003 D
2.25% maturing in 2004
4.125% to 5.375% maturing annually from 2010 to 2015 228,370
5.125% maturing in 2023 with annual sinking fund requirements
beginning in 2016 42,890
5.125% maturing in 2026 with annual sinking fund requirements
beginning in 2025 21,660
—292,920
Series 2003 £ (Federally Taxable)
5.23% maturing in 2011 6,740
5.5% maturing in 2014 13,410
6.58% maturing in 2026 4,195
— 24345
Series 2003 F
2.25% maturing in 2004
3.8% to 5.5% maturing annually from 2009 to 2017 87,715
87,715

87,955

82 2004 Annual Report




NCEMPA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Series 2003 G (Ferderally Taxable)
3.98% to 4.37% maturing annually from 2007 to 2008
5.55% maturing annually from 2013 to 2014

Series 2004 A
7-day auction rate securities maturing in 2019
35-day auction rate securities maturing in 2019
35-day auction rate securities maturing in 2020

Series 2004 B (Federally Taxable)
28-day auction rate securities maturing in 2021

Less:
Current maturities of bonds
Unamortized discount

The fair market value of the Agency's long-term debt was esti-
mated using the Dobbins Scale. The individual maturities were
priced and summed to arrive at an estimated fair market value
of $3,084,675,000 and $3,183,616,000 at December 31, 2004
and 2003, respectively.

Certain proceeds of the Series 1986 A, 1989 A, 1991 A, 1993 B
and C, 1995 A, 1996 A, 1997 A, 1999 A, Band C, 2003 A, B, C,
D, E, F and G and 2004 A and B bonds, were used to establish
trusts for refunding $4,752,875,000 of previously issued bonds.
At December 31, 2004, $4,307,645,000 of these bonds has been
redeemed leaving $445,230,000 still outstanding. Under these
Refunding Trust Agreements, obligations of, or guaranteed by
the United States have been placed in irrevocable Refunding
Trust Funds maintained by the Bond Fund Trustee. The gov-
ernment obligations in the Refunding Trust Funds, along with

December 31,
2004 2003

$ 395 $ 395

6,425 6,425

6820 A 820
73,550
79,975
52,125
205,650
17,325

2,973,548 3,057,769

91,005 85,200

19,433 35,531

$ 2863110 $ 2937038

the interest earnings thereon, are pledged solely for the benefit
of the holders of the refunded bonds and will be sufficient to
pay all interest when due and to redeem at par all refunded
bonds unredeemed at December 31, 2004 at various dates prior
to or on their original maturities. Since the establishment of
each Refunding Trust Fund, the refunded bonds are no longer
considered outstanding obligations of the Agency.

The following table reflects principal debt service included in
the designated year’s rates. In accordance with the Resolution,
these moneys are deposited into the Bond Fund for payment
of the following year’s current maturities. The debt service
deposit requirements for bonds outstanding at December 31,
2004 are as follows (in thousands of dollars):
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Current maturities of $91,005,000 at December 31, 2004 were
collected through rates during 2004 and deposited monthly
into the Bond Fund to make the January 1, 2005 principal

payment.

The bonds are special obligations of the Agency, payable solely
from and secured solely by (1) revenues (as defined by the
Resolution) after payment of operating expenses (as defined by
the Resolution) and (2) other monies and securities pledged for
payment thereof by the Resolution.

The Resolution requires the Agency to deposit into special
funds all proceeds of bonds issued and all revenues (as defined
by the Resolution) generated as a result of the Initial Project
Power Sales Agreements and the 1981 PCA. The purpose of
the individual funds is specifically defined in the Resolution.

In May, the Agency refinanced some of its existing debt to take
advantage of historically low interest rates. The Agency issued
$222,975,000 of Series 2004 A and B Refunding Bonds to
refund $223,005,000 of previously issued bonds. Net present
value savings realized were $21,094,000 with debt service sav-
ings of from $2,181,000 to $3,416,000 per year through 2019
and $339,000 and $230,000 in 2020 and 2021, respectively.

Interest on the bonds is payable semi-annually. Certain of the
bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity at the option
of the Agency, on or after the following dates, at a maximum
of 102% of the respective principal amounts:

Series 1986 A January 1, 1996
Series 1991 A January 1, 2003
Series 1993 B January 1, 2003
Series 1995 A January 1, 2006
Series 1996 A January 1, 2007
Series 1997 A January 1, 2008
Series 1999 A and B January 1, 2009
Series 1999 D January 1, 2010
Series 2003 C, D, and F January 1, 2013
Series 2004 A and B Any Interest Payment Date

H. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Price-Anderson Act limits the public liability for a nuclear
incident at a nuclear generating unit to $10,800,000,000,
which amount is to be covered by private insurance of
$300,000,000 and agreements of indemnity with the NRC for
the remainder. Such private insurance and agreements of
indemnity are carried by PEC on behalf of all co-owners of the
initial project. The terms of this coverage require the owners of
all licensed facilities to provide up to $100,600,000 per year per
unit owned (adjusted annually for inflation) in the event of
any nuclear incident involving any licensed facility in the
nation, with an annual maximum assessment of $10,000,000
per unit owned. If any such payments are required, the Agency
would be liable for 18.33% and 16.17% of those payments
applicable to the Brunswick and Harris plants, respectively.

The Price Anderson Act was first enacted in 1957 and has been
renewed three times, the last in 1998. The Act expired in 2002
but nuclear reactors in operation when the Act expired remain
covered by the law. Congress is currently holding hearings
considering reauthorization of the legislation that could
include increased limits and assessments per unit owned. The
final outcome of this matter cannot be predicted at this time.

Primary property damage insurance coverage purchased for
each nuclear plant is $500,000,000. Excess property damage,
decontamination, and decommissioning liability insurance of
$2,000,000,000 have also been purchased for each nuclear
plant.
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NCEMPA SCHEDULES OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES PER

BOND RESOLUTION AND OTHER AGREEMENTS

Expenses:

($000s)
Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003
Project  Supplemental  Total Project Supplemental  Total
Revenues:
Sales to participants $ 361,073 $134,800 $495873 §$ 353,354 $ 122,635 $ 475,989
Sales to utilities 39,101 39,101 35,639 35,639
Investment income 13,055 314 13,369 13,173 347 13,520
Excess Reserve and Contingency Fund valuation 10,645 10,645 7,462 7,462
Special supplemental reserve fund withdrawal 42 42 2,519 2,519
Other revenues 59 59 10,117 10,117
Total Revenues 423,933 135,156 559,089 419,745 125,501 545,246
Operation and maintenance 43,345 5 43,350 43,144 5 43,149
Fuel 44,595 44,595 42,212 42,212
Power coordination services:
Purchased power 9,851 106,048 115,899 10,408 90,482 100,890
Transmission and distribution 20,835 20,835 20,555 20,555
Other - 330 330 49?2 492
Total power coordination services: 9,851 127,213 137,064 10,408 111,529 121,937
Administrative and general - PEC 23,266 23,266 18,479 18,479
Power Agency services 3,253 4,501 7,754 2,968 3,988 6,956
Taxes
Amounts in lieu of taxes 3,405 3,405 3,484 3,484
Gross receipts tax 11,626 4,253 15,879 11,379 4,077 15,456
Total taxes 15,031 4,253 19,284 14,863 4,077 18,940
Debt service:
Letters of credit commitment fees and administrative costs 453 453 462 462
Debt service 252962 ____ 206 __253,168 _ 256048 __ 189 _ 256237
Total debt service 253,415 206 253,621 256,510 189 256,699
Special funds deposits:
Special Supplemental Reserve - 70 70
Reserve and contingency fund 26,414 26,414 26,620 26,620
Decommissioning fund 4,763 4,763 4,541 4,541
Total special funds deposits 31177 - 31,177 31,161 _70 31,231
Total Expenses 423,933 136,178 560,111 419,745 119,858 539,603
Revenues Over {(Under) Expenses $ - 5 (02 5 0022 $ -$ 5643 § 5643

Note: The schedule above has been prepared in accordance with the
underlying Bond Resolution, and accordingly, does not reflect the
change in the fair value of investments as of December 31, 2004

and 2003, respectively.

See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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Revenues:
Sales to participants
Sales to utilities
Investment income
Appropriated fund balance
Excess Reserve and Contingency Fund Valuation
Other revenues

Total Revenues
Expenses:
Operation and maintenance
Fuel
Power coordination expenses:

Purchased power

~ Transmission and distribution
Other
Total power coordination expenses

Administrative and general - PEC
Power Agency services
Taxes
Debt service
Special funds deposits

Total Expenses

Revenues Over (Under) Expenses

($000)
Positive
Actuals {Negative)

2004 Budget (Budgetary  Variance With
Original Final Basis) Final Budget*

$ 493,642 $ 493,642 $ 495873 § 2,23
33,933 33,933 39,101 5,168
15,878 15,878 13,369 (2,509)
2,907 2,907 (2,907)
10,193 10,193 10,645 452

617 617 101 (516)
557,170 557,170 559,089 1,919
44,335 44,335 43,350 985
31,552 31,552 44,595 {13,043}
122,044 122,044 115,899 6,145
20,116 20,116 20,835 (719)

— 300 300 330 (30)
142,460 142,460 137,064 5,396
21,316 21,316 23,266 (1,950)
8,355 8,355 7,754 601
20,786 20,786 19,284 1,502
257,230 257,230 253,621 3,609
31,136 31,136 31177 _41)
557,170 557,170 560,111 —(2,941)

$ - L = $ (1.022) $ {1.022)

* The budget was amended in March 2005 due to cost overruns for fossil
fuel. These costs were higher due to higher coal and transportation costs.

In addition, the fossil units ran more than expected

Note: The schedule above has been prepared in accordance with the
underlying Bond Resolution, and accordingly, does not reflect the
change in the fair value of investments as of December 31, 2004.

See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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NCEMPA SCHEDULES OF CHANGES IN ASSETS OF FUNDS INVESTED

($000)
Funds Funds Funds
Invested Power Invested Power Invested
January 1,  Debt Billing  Investment Disburse- " December 31, Debt Billing  Investment Dishurse- December 31,
— 2003 _Proceeds _ Receipte _Income _ ments _Transfers 2003  _Proceeds _ Receipls _ Income _ ments  _Transfers 2004
Bond Fund:
Interest account $ 91,550 § (8202) $ - $ 435 $(171,564) $ 176,749 § 88968 § (5,141) § $ 526 ${171,062) $ 167,244 $ 80,535
Reserve account 209,493 {5,574) 10,174 (10,184) 203,909  (12,339) 9,169 (1,039) (8,166) 191,534
Principal account 879 424 _ (82,695) _ 84,874 _ 85395 678 _ (852000 _ 90294 _ 91167
383,835 (13,776 - 11,033 (254,259) 251,439 378272  (17,480) 10,373 (257,301) 249,372 363,236
Reserve and
Contingency Fund: 20,808 (557) 816 (19,588) 18,688 20,167 2,31 709 {26,691) 25,937 22,443
Decommissioning Fund 4759 244 2,731) 2,272 153 (153) 2,272
Special Reserve Fund 1,014 53 (113) 954 18 972) -
Revenue Fund 25,474 (167) 350,761 280 16,032 (373,708) 18,672 (1,737) 365,208 852 3402 (344,462) 41,935
Operating Fund:
Working Capital account 26,102 799  (70,488) 74,283 30,696 969  (74,281) 54,475 11,859
Fuel account 21,804 (39,217) __ 42191 24778 (45,971) 43,899 22,706
47,906 - 799 (109,705 116,474 55,474 - 969 (120,252) 98,374 34,565
Supplemental Fund:
Supplemental account 8471 96,722 224 (107,019) 26,711 25,109 119,976 276 (111,165)  (14,018) 20,178
Special Supplemental 633 34,104 72 {36,760} (1.951) 9,843 63 {8.955) {2,398)__ {3,398
Reserve 9,104 - __130.826 296 _(107,019) _ (10.049) 23,158 - 129,819 339 _(120,120) __ {16416)__ 16,780

$ 492900 $ (145000 § 481,587 § 13,521 $(474539) $

Note: The schedule above has been prepared in accordance with the
underlying Bond Resolution, and accordingly, does not reflect the
change in the fair value of investments as of December 31, 2004

and 2003, respectively.

See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.

2004 Annual Report

- $498969 § (16:896) § 495027 § 13413 $(520962) § 11,680 _$ 481231
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NCEMPA STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS

Megawatt-hour Sales (MWh)
Peak Billing Demand (kW)
Operating Revenues

Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues over Expenditures

Sales to PEC (Revenues)

Average Monthly Power
* Purchases by Cities (MWh)

Average Monthly Billings to Cities

Megawatt-hour Sales (MWh)
Peak Billing Demand (kW)
Operating Revenues

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over Expenditures

Sales to PEC {Revenues)

Average Monthly Power
Purchases by Cities (MWh)

Average Monthly Billings to Cities

88

2004
7,185,123
1,256,605

$535,033,000

$(1,022,000)

$39,101,000

598,760

$41,323,000

1999
6,569,652
1,217,221

$445,358,000

$0

$36,486,000

547,471

$34,073,000

Ten Years at a Glance (Unaudited)

2003
6,965,926
1,293,107

$521,745,000

$5,643,000

$35,639,000

580,494

$39,666,000

1998
6,556,169
1,190,030

$449,489,000

($2,676,000)

$35,027,000

546,347

$34,539,000

2004 Annual Report

2002
7,060,341
1,319,861

$500,285,000

($12,231,000)

$36,013,000

588,362

$38,689,000

1997
6,273,385
1,185,129

$446,742,000

$0

$38,142,000

522,782

$34,050,000

2001
6,765,157
1,284,897

$458,160,000

$0

$33,279,000

563,763

$35,407,000

1996
6,291,401
1,116,786

$460,674,000

$0

$38,416,000

524,283

$35,188,000

2000
6,924,955
1,265,241

$456,845,000

$0

$33,910,000

577,080

$35,245,000

1995
6,142,495
1,194,209

$462,664,000

$0

$40,901,000

511,874

$35,147,000




Town of Apex

As town officials and residents of Apex can confirm,
it is better to be proactive than reactive when faced with
unprecedented growth. Having been designated “The Best
Small Town in North Carolina” in the mid-1990s; the town
experienced a population explosion. The town's resources
and infrastructure could easily have been overwhelmed by
a nearly 500% increase in the number of residents since
1990. With a population nearing 30,000 and the potential
for that number to double in the next eight to 10 years,
the town has been facing increased congestion, loss of
open space and the prospect of losing its sense of identity
and the small-town quality of life it valued so highly.

Apex developed a comprehensive Unified Develop-
ment Ordinance in the late 1990's and has made a serious
effort to address development issues and design an orderly
growth process to avoid the mistakes observed in other
Triangle communities experiencing rapid growth. The
small-town feel has been bolstered by a major streetscape
renovation project that has restored the downtown area
and recaptured its historic flavor. Citizens indicated their
approval of the growth management plan and process by
turning out at the polls in large numbers and giving over-
whelming support for the use of bond financing for trans-
portation and parks and recreation. With 86 percent of
voters approving, a $13 million referendum was passed for
new park and recreation projects together with improve-
ments to existing facilities. A $9.5 million bond issue for
road improvement projects was also approved by a large
majority.

The organization and delivery of municipal services
has been enhanced by a Town Campus project that
clusters municipal facilities and improves administrative
organization, access to municipal services and operational
efficiency. Electric power services have kept pace with
growth and have benefited from economies of scale.
Customer service will continue to improve and costs will
become even more affordable over time as operations
become more efficient and cost effective.

Having issued an ordinance restricting permits for
single-family homes between 1998 and 2002, the town
feels that it now has its population growth under control.
With the drafting of a new Comprehensive Plan in 2004,
town leaders feel that Apex is well-positioned for future
growth and are working to ensure that their vision for
that future is achieved.

Mayor Keith Wéatherly and
_Bruce Radford Town Mana er




City of Albemarle

With the creation of jobs and business opportunities
among the Albemarle City Council’s highest priorities, the city
sought to participate in the development of an industrial park
distinct in its plan and focus. Albemarle joined the Stanly
County Economic Development Commission (SCEDC) and
ElectriCities in creating a unique solution: the state’s first
industrial park specifically designed to attract new industrial
customers with the need for reliable, uninterruptible electric
power.

The Prime Power Park™, located on private property
directly across from the airport, will feature a redundant power
supply system, using a 1.8-MW generator to supply power to
tenants under emergency conditions. Reliable, uninterruptible
power is a key requirerment for many industries that would
suffer costly losses in the event of a power outage.

As part of the Charlotte Regional Partnership, a rapidly
growing region of 2.3 million people, the site benefits from its
proximity to the Charlotte area and the marketing strength
and site location assistance provided by the Partnership
arrangement.

A target marketing plan for identifying and recruiting
prospective tenants for the park is being developed by The
Sanford Holshouser Business Development Group, according
to Robert Van Geons, executive director SCEDC. Examples
of industries that would find redundant power attractive
include injection plastic molding operations and high-end
precision manufacturers.

“This facility will make the City of Albemarle and Stanly
County more competitive in recruiting certain types of com-
mercial and/or industrial customers,” Van Geons said. “That,
in tum, will help increase tax revenue, create jobs and boost
investment in the community. The SCEDC looks forward to
assisting city officials in this important effort.”

With such a cutting-edge economic development asset,
Albemarle may indeed have a competitive advantage in
recruiting a highly-coveted segment of high-tech manufactur-
ing. In addition, the project demonstrates the flexibility and
unique benefits that public power communities can offer
industrial customers.

jack Neel, City Council and

Raymond Allen, City Manager
aymonc Alten, CIy MaN3BEr 5004 Annual Report




Town of Maiden

Faced with the loss of jobs in traditional industries,
Maiden has sought to capitalize on its strengths to attract new
and expanded industry. Located in a dynamic region of the
state, Maiden benefits from its proximity to Hickory and the
industry location resources of the Catawba County Economic
Development Commission and the Charlotte Regional
Partnership. With a skilled, productive labor force, strong
manufacturing climate and exceptional quality of life, town
leadership has welcomed opportunities to modernize and
diversify the industrial base. Success in this undertaking is
exemplified by the announcement in 2004 of a major
expansion by the GETRAG Axle Plant.

One of the world's leading manufacturers of power-train
technology for the automotive industry, GETRAG originally
located in Maiden in 1986 and is primarily involved with the
design and building of axles for passenger cars and open gears
for diesel engines. The expanded operations are expected to
bring over 300 new jobs and $81 million in new investment
to the town. The GETRAG investment was supported by a
Job Development Investment Grant (JDIG) from the state.

A limited number of these grants are available annually and
grant awards must undergo a two-stage approval process.
With its designation as a Tier 4 county under the state’s
William S. Lee Act, the project satisfied the requirements
for the JDIG initiative,

In his address at the project announcement, Mayor Zane -
Hudson remarked, “In response to challenging economic con-
ditions, the Town of Maiden has heightened our commitment
to working with existing companies, as well as prospective new
employers, to ensure a vibrant economy in Catawba County. ,
GETRAG's vision of ... ‘We Do It Better’ ... accurately o
summarizes the Town'’s commitment and ability to serve S
our industries and citizens.” :

When fully staffed, the new GETRAG expansion will
nearly double the size of the company's employment in the -
town, and the direct and indirect benefits of the jobs and
income will go a long way toward supporting the health and
vitality of the local economy. The town is proud to provide
a business friendly environment and looks forward to more
success in its efforts to maintain a strong and vibrant setting
in which to live and work.
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Facsimile (865) 769 2001

Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Trustees of
Saluda River Electric Cooperative, Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying balance sheets and the related statements of operations and patronage
capital deficit, and of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Saluda
River Electric Cooperative, Inc., (‘the Company”) at December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.

/ol‘z'c.&wa/f'efwd”"’ﬂ"‘ Let

April 20, 2005
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Saluda River Electric Cooperative, Inc.
Balance Sheets
December 31, 2004 and 2003

(in thousands of dollars) 2004 2003
Assets
Electric plant
In-service $ 96,773 § 92,172
Accumulated depreciation (32,050) (29,084)
64,723 63,088
Nuclear fuel, at amortized cost 5,989 6,938
Net electric plant 70,712 70,026
Other assets and investments
Investments in associated organizations 1,041 1,136
Special deposits 6,508 6,761
Decommissioning fund 54,038 52,246
Other assets - 71
Total other assets and investments 61,587 60,214
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8,826 11,168
Accounts receivable 13,410 13,667
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 119 108
Total current assets 22,355 24,943
$ 154,654 § 155,183
Equities and Liabilities
Equities and margins
Membership fees $ 1 3 1
Patronage capital deficit (242,865) (262,009)
Total equities and margins (242,864) (262,008)
Long-term debt 299,893 305,723
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 13,111 16,731
Accounts payable - Affiliate _ 600 685
Total current liabilities 13,711 17,416
Commitments and contingencies
Other noncurrent liabilities
Asset retirement obligations 83,440 82,223
Other noncurrent liabilities 474 11,829
Total other noncurrent liabilities 83,914 94,052
$ 154,654 $ 155,183

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Saluda River Electric Cooperative, Inc.
Statements of Operations and Patronage Capital Deficit
Years Ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

(in thousands of dollars) 2004 2003
Operating revenues
Electric sales to members $ 139,386 § 130,308
Sales to nonmembers 6,212 6,611
145,598 136,919
Operating expenses
Fuel and purchased power 117,231 116,158
Transmission expense 6,273 4,713
Property taxes 2,661 2,693
Depreciation and accretion 3,917 7,307
Administrative and general 3,126 3,951
133,208 134,822
Operating margin 12,390 2,097
Other income (expense)
Interest income 2,259 2,151
Other income 119 3,446
Gain on sale of asset - 613
2,378 6,210
Interest expense (6,364) (6,563)
Net margin before income taxes 8,404 1,744
Income tax benefit 10,740 -
Net margin before cumulative effect of accounting change 19,144 1,744
Cumulative effect of change in accounting for
asset retirement obligations - (10,314)
Net margin (loss) : ' 19,144 (8,570)
Patronage capital deficit, beginning of year (262,009) (253,439)
Patronage capital deficit, end of year $ (242,865) $§ (262,009)

(%)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Saluda River Electric Cooperative, Inc.

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

(in thousands of dollars)

Cash flows from operating activitics
Net margin (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net margin (loss) to cash
provided by operating activities
Depreciation and accretion
Gain on sale of fixed assets
Amortization of nuclear fuel
Deferred federal income taxes
Investment earnings on decommissioning fund
Noncash capital credits assigned to the Company
Interest accreted to (paid on) long-term debt
Cumulative effect of accounting change
Changes in other operating assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable
Interest receivable
Materials and supplies
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Other noncurrent liabilities
Net cash provided by
operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Nuclear fuel additions
Investment in electric plant
Proceeds from disposition of electric plant
Return of capital from associated organizations
Decrease (increase) in special deposits
Net cash used in
investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Principal payments of long-term debt

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid for interest

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2004 2003

$ 19,144 §  (8,570)
3,917 7,307
- (613)

5,094 5,058
(10,740) -
(1,792) (1,951)
(3) C))
5,070 (5,145)

- 10,314
257 (502)

(15) 717

- 116

3 2,292

(3,704) 2,177
(614) (182)

16,617 11,014
(4,146) (7,537)
(4,335) (2,950)

71 6,724

98 146
253 (53)
(8,059) (3,670)
(10,900) (6,360)
(2,342) 984
11,168 10,184

$ 8826 $ 11,168

$ 6383 $ 11,76l




Saluda River Electric Cooperative, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2004 and 2003

-
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Organization and Basis of Presentation

Saluda River Electric Cooperative, Inc. (the “Company”) is a member-owned, nonprofit cooperative
of five electric membership cooperatives (the “Members”) in South Carolina. The Company was
formed in 1958. The Company’s focus is to provide its Members with substantially all of their
electric power requirements. The Company follows accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America and the practices prescribed in the Uniform System of Accounts as
prescribed by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, as modified and adopted by the Rural
Utilities Service (“RUS”).

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Electric Plant

Electric plant is stated at original cost, which is the cost of the plant when placed into service, plus
the cost of subsequent additions, as invoiced to the Company by Duke Power Company (“Duke”),
and includes engineering and other indirect construction costs. The cost of renewals and betterments
of property is capitalized, except for the cost of minor replacements, which is charged to maintenance
expense. At the time properties are disposed of, the original cost plus cost of removal, less salvage of
such property, is charged to accumulated depreciation, except in certain cases of properties sold as
entireties where profit or loss is recognized.

During 1998, the Company concluded that its investment in the Catawba Nuclear Facility
(“Catawba”) was impaired based upon ongoing debt restructuring negotiations. As a result, based on
an independent appraisal, the fair value of Catawba was determined to be approximately
$51,800,000. Accordingly, the book value was written down to reflect this value, and the Company
recognized an impairment loss of approximately $226,206,000.

Depreciation and Decommissioning Expense
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated service lives of the
property as follows:

Estimated
Lives
Catawba Nuclear Station ("Catawba") 50-60 years
Diesel generation equipment _ 14 years

The amounts that have been recovered through rates for estimated decommissioning costs (plus
interest thereon) are maintained in an external trust fund in compliance with NRC regulations.
Investment earnings and realized gains generated from the external trust fund were maintained in the
decommissioning fund with a corresponding increase to the reserve for decommissioning. However,
effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted SFAS 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement
Obligations (Note 4).



Saluda River Electric Cooperative, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2004 and 2003

Based on a 2003 site study of expected decommissioning costs, including the costs of
decontamination, dismantling and site restoration, the Company’s portion of such costs at the date of
decommissioning was estimated to be approximately $544,909,000 assuming the date of
decommissioning to be December 2043. The estimate assumes a future annual inflation rate of 4.5%
in decommissioning costs. The decommissioning costs estimates are based on the plant location and
cost characteristics for Catawba and assume prompt dismantlement and removal of the plant from
service. The actual decommissioning costs are likely to vary from the above estimates because of
changes in assumed dates of decommissioning, changes in regulatory requirements, changes in
technology and changes in costs of labor, material and equipment.

In December 2003, the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (“NRC”) extended the operating licenses of
Catawba units 1 and 2 through December 2043, from December 2024 and December 2026,
respectively.

Fuel Costs

The cost of nuclear fuel is amortized based on the rate of fuel usage. Nuclear fuel amortization
expense equaled approximately $5,290,000 in 2004 and $5,255,000 in 2003 and is included in fuel
and purchased power costs in the accompanying financial statements.

Investments

Investments in capital term certificates and patronage capital certificates are considered to be held-to-
maturity and are carried at cost determined by specific identification. All realized and unrealized
gains and losses are determined using the specific identification method.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all temporary cash investments purchased with an original maturity of three
months or less to be cash equivalents. Investments with original maturities between three and twelve
months are classified as short-term investments.

Membership Fees and Patronage Capital Deficit
The Company is organized and operates as a cooperative. Membership fees were assessed to each

member upon formation of the Company. Patronage capital deficit is the accumulated net deficit of
the Company.

Income Tax Status

The Company is a not-for-profit membership corporation subject to federal income taxes. Based on
the applicable statutes, the Company is not subject to state income taxes. For the years 1984 and
prior, the Company claimed tax-exempt status under Section 501(c)(12) of the Internal Revenue
Code (the “Code™). In 1985, the Company reported as a taxable entity as a result of income received
from Duke under a capacity and energy sell-back agreement applicable to Catawba. As a taxable
electric cooperative, the Company has annually allocated its income and deductions between
Member and nonmember activities. Any Member taxable income has been offset with a patronage
exclusion. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the expected tax consequences of
temporary differences arising between the financial reporting bases of assets and liabilities and their
reported amounts for income tax reporting purposes in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No.
109, Accounting for Income Taxes.



Saluda River Electric Cooperative, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2004 and 2003
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Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized as customers are billed for services provided.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The fair value of derivative instruments are recorded on the balance sheet as an asset or liability.
Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments are either recognized periodically in
income or patronage capital (as a component of other comprehensive income), depending on whether
the derivative is being used to hedge changes in fair value or cash flow.

Asset Retirement Obligations

The Company records a liability relating to the retirement and removal of assets used in their
business. The liability is discounted to its present value, and the related asset value is increased by
the amount of the resulting liability. Over the life of the asset, the liability is accreted to its future

value and eventually extinguished when the asset is taken out of service. The Company adopted -
SFAS 143 on January 1, 2003 (Note 4).

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The carrying value of intangible assets, property and equipment, and other long-lived assets is
reviewed on a regular basis for the existence of facts that may suggest impairment. The Company
recognizes an impairment loss when events or circumstances cause the carrying amount of an asset to
exceed the expected undiscounted cash flows from its use and disposition. The measurement of the
impairment loss to be recognized is based on the difference between the fair value and the carrying
amount of the asset. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, no such impairment was indicated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year financial statements to conform to the
current year presentation.

Electric Plant in Service

Electric plant in service included the following as of December 31, 2004 and 2003:

(in thousands of dollars) ) 2004 2003

Electric plant in service $ 91,591 § 91,935
Land 7 7
Other plant 5,175 230

$ 96,773 % 92,172
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Saluda River Electric Cooperative, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2004 and 2003

4.

Asset Retirement Obligations

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement
Obligations, which requires the recognition of a liability, and capitalization of the associated asset
retirement cost as part of the carrying amount of the long-lived asset, for “legal obligations”
associated with the retirement of long-lived assets that result from the acquisition, construction,
development, and/or normal operation of long-lived assets.

In prior years, the Company had recognized a decommissioning liability related to its ownership
interest in the Catawba nuclear plant in accordance with NRC requirements. This previously
recorded liability represents the pre-SFAS 143 obligation for the Company’s nuclear plant asset
retirement obligation (“ARQ”), which amounted to $50 million at December 31, 2002. The adoption
of SFAS No. 143 resulted in a change in the methodology of quantifying this nuclear
decommissioning obligation in accordance with the new accounting standard. The Company has
increased the nuclear decommissioning liability on the balance sheet to reflect new methodology,
which amounted to $78 million at January 1, 2003. This nuclear decommissioning liability is
included in the Asset Retirement Obligations line item on the Balance Sheets.

For each ARO identified, the Company calculated the net present value of the obligation as of the
current period, the original and incremental cost of the long-lived asset at the time of initial
operation, the cumulative effect of depreciation on the adjusted asset base, and accretion of the
liability from the date of initial operation to the current and period.

The following table summarizes the original asset cost, the current ARO liabilities, the current fair
market value of any assets legally restricted for purposes of settling the obligation, and the estimated
future liability at the time of closure.

(in thousands of dollars)
Original December 31, December31, Fair Market Estimated

Asset 2003 2004 Value of Future
Cost Obligation Obligation Assets Liability
Nuclear plant S 32,088 S 82,223 § 83,440 § 52,284 S 544,909

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments as of December 31, 2004 and 2003
are as follows:

(in thousands of dollars) 2004 2003
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Special deposits $ 6,508 § 6,508 § 6,761 §$ 6,761
Decommissioning fund 54,038 52,284 52,246 50,231
Cash and cash equivalents 8,826 8.826 11,168 11,168

$ 69372 § 67,618 S 70,175 § 68,160

The fair values of short-term investments, long-term investments, special deposits and the
decommissioning fund are estimated based on quoted market prices for the investments held in the
respective funds. The fair value of long-term debt is not readily determinable.

8



Saluda River Electric Cooperative, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2004 and 2003

The amortized cost, gross unrealized holding gains, gross unrealized losses and fair value of
securities by major security type at December 31, 2004 and 2003, were as follows:

(in thousands of dollars) 2004

Gross Gross Estimated

Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gain Loss Value
Corporate debt securities $ 22589 § 211  § (143) § 22,657
Commercial paper 8,000 8,000
Cash and overnight investments 10,333 10,333
Equities 12,200 (1,842) 10,358
U.S. Government and agency securities 14,976 32 (46) 14,962
State Government and agency securities 1,274 34 1.308

$§ 69372 § 277 §  (2,031) § 67,618

(in thousands of dollars) 2003

Gross Gross Estimated

Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gain Loss Value
Corporate debt securities $ 16692 § 557 §$ (50) § 17,199
Commercial paper 10,000 - - 10,000
Cash and overnight investments 14,125 - - 14,125
Equities 12,200 - (2,679) 9,521
U.S. Government and agency securities 15,884 169 (102) 15,951
State Government and agency securities 1,274 90 - 1,364

$§ 70175 § 816 S (2,831) § 68,160

No proceeds from the sale of marketable securities or related net realized gains were recorded in
2004 or 2003.
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Saluda River Electric Cooperative, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2004 and 2003
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Investments in Associated Organizations

Investments in associated organizations are stated at cost at December 31, 2004 and 2003, consist of
the following:

(in thousands of dollars) 2004 2003
Patronage capital certificates
CoBank $ 793 % 840
Cooperative Electric Energy
Utility Supply, Inc. ("CEE-US") 158 158
Other ‘ 7 8
958 1,006
Investment in Federated Rural Electric A
Insurance Exchange 35 82
CFC Capital Term Certificates 48 48

$ 1,041  § 1,136

The patronage capital certificates represent net margins of the respective associated organizations
that have been allocated to the Company. These certificates will be redeemed by the Company in
accordance with the respective associated organization’s retirement policy. The capital term
certificates invested in National Rural Utilities Cooperative Finance Corporation (“CFC”) are
unsecured and subordinated. The entire carrying amount of $48,000 of CFC Capital Term
Certificates mature in 2080 and have an interest rate of 5%. The CFC capital term certificates are
required to be maintained under the note agreement with CFC and are similar to compensating bank
balances. All other investments are carried at cost.

Deposits

Special deposits of approximately $6,508,000 and $6,761,000 as of December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively, consist of funds held i a depository account to satisfy working capital requirements as
required by Duke.

Long-Term Debt

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, long-term debt consisted of the following:

(in thousands of dollars) 2004 2003
RUS second subordinated payment note 3 186,132  § 186,132
RUS subordinated payment note, fixed

interest rate of 5.23% 100,457 95,387
RUS senior payment note, fixed

interest rate of 5.23% 13,304 24,204

$ 299893 § 305,723

10
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On May 6, 1999, the Company signed an agreement with RUS. The terms of the agreement
substituted the Company’s then-outstanding obligations to RUS with three new debt instruments.
The total carrying value of the new debt was equal to existing debt as of April 30, 1999. The new
debt is payable to RUS annually from available cash and temporary investments, defined as available
cash above $10 million as of November 30 each year, beginning the year ended December 31, 1999,
and continuing through the year-ended December 31, 2008. During the years ended December 31,
2004 and 2003, the Company made debt principal payment of $10,900,000 and $6,360,000 from
available cash, as provided in the revised debt agreement. In addition, during the year ended
December 31, 2003, the Company made payments totaling $10,163,000, which were applied against
accrued interest on the RUS subordinated note. At January 31, 2009, any remaining obligations
under the new debt will te terminated, and the Company will be obligated to sell all of its assets,
wind up operating activities and transfer remaining cash or liabilities to RUS.

Additional terms of the debt restructuring require the Company to sell Catawba and designate RUS
as an agent to do so.

Except for funds from the sale of Catawba or other assets, as defined in the agreement, and except for
a special agreement regarding a receivable from Santee Cooper as of December 31, 2002, which was
received from Santee Cooper and paid to RUS in 2003, payments made to RUS will first be applied
toward the senior payment note until fully satisfied, then to the subordinated payment note, and
finally to the second subordinated payment note. Net proceeds from the sale of Catawba or other
assets will be utilized first to reduce the interest and principal balances of the subordinated payment
note, and then to reduce the second subordinated payment note.

Payments of interest for the senior payment note are made semiannually in April and December. To
the extent the interest is not paid on the senior payment note, it is added to the principal balance.
Interest accrued on the subordinated payment note is added to the principal balance of the
subordinated payment note until the senior payment note principal and interest are paid in full. The
second subordinated payment note does not bear interest.

In accordance with SFAS No. 140, Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and
Extinguishments of Liabilities, no gain was recognized on this restructuring, since the total future
cash payments, including interest, may exceed the carrying amount of the original debt.
Additionally, no interest has been imputed to the second subordinated payment note. Interest
expense for contingent payments shall be recognized in each period in which (a) it is probable that a
liability has been incurred and (b) the amount of that liability can be reasonably estimated. If these
criteria are met in the future, the amount of interest expense recognized woul be deducted from the
carrying amount of the restructured debt.

11
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10.

Income Taxes

The Company had member loss carryforwards of $82,405,000 and $77,306,000 at December 31,
2004 and 2003, respectively. Additionally, the Company has federal tax net operating loss
carryforwards (“NOLs”) at December 31, 2004, as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

Expiration Date NOLs
2005 $ 12,877
2006 -
2007 7
2008 10
2009 19
Thereafter 932

5 13,845

During 2004, RUS, as agent for Saluda began the bid solic itation process for the sale of Saluda's
interest in Catawba (see Note 8). Based on management's understanding of the status of the auction
process, it has been determined that the sale is likely to occur in 2008. Accordingly, the range of
long-term bushess scenarios for Saluda has narrowed, and management has determined that the
$10.7 million reserve established in prior years for potential tax obligations relating to the settlement
of the RUS debt and other matters is no longer considered necessary. The 2004 tax benefit reflects
the reversal of the reserve. The federal income expense in 2003 was zero due to available loss
carryforwards.

Employee Benefit Plans

Effective January 1, 2004, all employees of the Company became employees of New Horizon
Electric Cooperative.

Prior to January 1, 2004, substantially all employees of the Company participated in the National
Rural Electric Cooperative Association (“NRECA”) Retirement and Security Program, a defined
benefit pension plan qualified under Section 401 and tax exempt under Section 501(a) of the Internal
Revenue Code. The Company made monthly contributions to the program equal to the amounts
accrued for pension expense except for the period beginning July 1, 1987 through September 30,
1996, when a moratorium on contributions was in effect. The moratorium resulted from the plan
reaching its full limitation. In this multiemployer plan, which is available to all member cooperatives
of NRECA, the accumulated benefits and plan assets are not determined or allocated separately by
individual employers. The Company’s pension costs were $0 and $128,000 in 2004 and 2003,
respectively.

In addition to the NRECA Retirement and Security Program, substantially all employees of the
Company participated in the NRECA SelectRe 401(k) Plan, a defined, multiemployer deferred

income plan qualified under Section 401(k) and tax exempt under Section 501(a) of the Internal
Revenue Code. The Company contributed $0 and $43,000 to the 401(k) plan in 2004 and 2003,
respectively.
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11.

12.

Postretirement Benefits

Prior to the transfer of employees to New Horizon, the Company sponsored an unfunded, defined
benefit postretirement medical and dental insurance plan that covered substantially all of its
employees. The benefit obligation of $396,000, which was included in other noncurrent liabilities at
December 31, 2003 included unamortized dependent coverage of $146,000.

Effective January 1, 2004, New Horizon assumed the Company’s postretirement benefit obligation of
$288,000. In June 2004, the Company paid $288,000 to New Horizon to satisfy its obligation to
New Horizon for assuming the postretirement benefit obligation.

Disclosures required by SFAS No. 132, Employer’s Disclosure about Pensions and Other
Postretirement Benefits, with regard to the Company’s postretirement medical benefits are as
follows:

(in thousands of dollars) 2003

Benefit obligation at December 31 $ 396
Fair value of plan assets at December 31
Funded status - accrued benefit cost recognized in the

statement of financial position ) 396
Weighted-average assumptions as of December 31
Discount rate 6.00%
Rate of compensation increase N/A
Health care trend rate 10.0%
" Benefit cost 30

Employer contribution
Plan participants’ contributions
Benefits paid

[ )

Commitments and Contingencies

Purchased Power

On February 6, 1981, the Company entered into (a) the Catawba Purchase, Construction and
Ownership agreement with Duke, together with an (b) Operating and Fuel Agreement and (c) an
Interconnection Agreement (the “Contracts™). Contracts (a) and (b) provide for the purchase by the
Company of an 18.75% undivided interest in Unit No. 1 of Catawba together with a 9.375% interest
in the support facilities, and for a sharing of direct construction and operating costs in relation to the
respective ownership share of the parties. The Company’s total investment in jointly owned facilities
amounted to approximately $59,503,000 as of December 31, 2004, and approximately $59,847,000
as of December 31, 2003, including capitalized interest expense, which is included in the
accompanying balance sheets in electric plant in service.

Pursuant to the Contracts, Duke provided certain supplemental power to the Company through
December 31, 2000. Effective January 1, 2001, the Company became a member of Central Electric
Power Company (“Central”) and contracted with South Carolina Public Service Authority (“‘Santee
Cooper”) under the Power Sales Agreement (the “PSA”) to purchase all of its supplemental capacity
and energy from Santee Cooper. Pursuant to the PSA, Santee Cooper would serve all of the
Company’s power needs over and above that which the Company receives from its alternative
sources.
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On October 25, 2001, the Company notified Santee Cooper in writing that it would be unable to pay
the power bill for September 2001, due to its adverse cash position. Pursuant to the PSA, Santee
Cooper notified the Company and Central that the PSA was terminated on October 25, 2001, and
that, subject to the Wholesale Power Contract (“WPC”) between the Company and Central, Santee
Cooper was thereafter providing the Company’s power requirements to Central under the
Coordination Agreement (“CA”) between Central and Santee Cooper. Subsequently, Santee Cooper
has billed Central for the Company’s power usage under the CA. Central disputed its obligation to
the Company under the WPC. As of December 31, 2001, the Company owed Santee Cooper
approximately $5,400,000, including interest, for power received under the PSA.

On March 4, 2002, the Company filed in the South Carolina Court of Common Ple as for the Eighth
Circuit an Action for Declaratory Judgment requesting the court to order, among other things, that
Central has a legal obligation and contractual duty to provide power to the Company pursuant to the
Central WPC. At the same time, the Company also filed with the court an Action for an Injunction
With a Motion for a Temporary Restraining Order to require Central to continue to serve the
Company under the WPC until the Action for Declaratory Judgment is adjudicated.

Subsequent to the filings, Central verbally agreed to initiate negotiations with the Company regarding
the WPC. Based upon Central’s actions, the Company’s Board of Trustees agreed to rescind the
lawsuits and begin negotiations. The negotiations resulted in a settlement (“Settlement”) being
reached between the Company, Santee Cooper, and Central (collectively, “the Parties™). On
February 27, 2003, RUS approved the Settlement. Under the terms of the Settlement, (1) Santee
Cooper agreed to refund to the Company approximately $3,400,000 for power received under the
PSA in 2001 (refund was received from Santee Cooper in March 2003); (2) Central agreed to sell
electric power to the Company, subject to the terms of the WPC, and the Company agreed to pay an
adder to Central of .85 mills per kWh over and above the rate paid by other Central members. Also,
an additional adder of up to .25 mills per kWh may be paid to Central should Santee Cooper incur
certain costs to upgrade the Duke transmission system; (3) Santee Cooper agreed to purchase all of
Saluda River’s diesel generators for $6,724,000 (sale was completed in April 2003); and (4) Central
reaffirmed to the Company its intent to develop a single transmission rate for all of Central’s
members when Saluda River’s members begin purchasing power requirements directly from Central.

As discussed above, during 2001, as a result of increased power costs from Santee Cooper, the
Company incurred significant operating losses and suffered constraints on its ability to meet its
obligations as they came due. For the year ended December 31, 2001, the Company incurred an
operating loss of $13,231,000. As of December 31, 2001, the Company had a working capital deficit
of $917,000 (excluding current obligations for accrued interest that are not currently payable) and a
patronage capital deficit of $258,790,000. The Company’s rates charged to its members are
generally fixed, and upward cost pressures on its purchased power expenses resulted in operating
losses for 2001. However, with the more stable rates for power purchased, pursuant to the WPC
since October 26, 2001, and with the resolution of all disputes with Santee Cooper and Central,
culminating in the Settlement, the Company’s current financial projections indicate that the Company
will be able to secure its power requirements at rates that enable it to generate sufficient operating
margins to meet its continuing obligations.
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13.

Duke purchases 50% of the energy produced by Catawba in a nuclear reliability exchange as well as
Catawba surplus energy from the Company, which is included in electric sales to nonmembers in the
accompanying statements of operations and patronage capital deficit. The cost of power purchased
from Duke, as well as power purchased by the Company for its members from Santee Cooper,
Central and Broad River Electric Cooperative, Inc., has been recorded as purchased power in the
accompanying statements of operations and patronage capital deficit.

Litigation

During the normal course of business, the Company may become involved in litigation incidental to
the business. The Company believes it is adequately insured for any potential loss exposure, and
management believes that the ultimate resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

Department of Energy Assessment
The Energy Policy Act of 1992, gave the Department of Energy (“DOE”) the authority to assess

utilities for the decommissioning of their facilities used for the enrichment of uranium included in
nuclear fuels. In order to decommission facilities, the DOE estimates that it would need to charge
utilities a total of $150,000,000 annually for 15 years based on enrichment services provided. Based
on an estimate from Duke covering the 15 years, at December 31, 2003 the Company recorded its
share of the liability, which totaled approximately $2,569,000. A corresponding asset was recorded
as nuclear fuel and is being amortized to nuclear fuel expense over the 15 year assessment period.
On an annual basis, payments are made to the DOE. The estimated remaining liability of
approximately $474,000 and $693,000 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, is included in
the accompanying balance sheets in other noncurrent liabilities.

Disposition of Spent Nuclear Fuel
Final disposition of spent nuclear fuel (Note 2) may require future adjustments to fuel expense.
Pending ultimate disposition, sufficient storage capacity for spent fuel is available through 2008.

Opecerating Leases

The Company leases certain buildings, office equipment, information technology equipment and
metering equipment from New Horizon (Note 14) that are accounted for as operating leases. On an
annual basis, the Board of Trustees approves the upcoming year’s payment. The Company’s
commitment for these operating leases for fiscal year 2005 is approximately $1,208,000.

Nuclear Insurance

Duke maintains liability, property and decontamination insurance coverage on its nuclear facilities,
including Catawba. The Company has been advised by Duke that appropriate levels of primary and
secondary coverage are maintained in accordance with applicable federal and state regulations.

The Company reimburses Duke for its pro rata share of the cost of such insurance. In addition, the
Company will be responsible for its pro rata share of any retrospective premiums or other costs
incurred by Duke in the event an accident occurs where liabilities exceed insurance coverages.

15



(— -

Saluda River Electric Cooperative, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2004 and 2003

14.

15.

Related-Party Transactions

The Company conducted business transactions with the following organizations during the current
and prior years as set forth below.

New Horizon Electric Cooperative

The Company leases office space and computer equipment from New Horizon, a related party. Costs
paid to New Horizon pursuant to these agreements were approximately $690,000 and $1,118,000
during fiscal years 2004 and 2003, respectively. Also, New Horizon bills the Company on a monthly
basis for power delivery expenses paid by New Horizon to Duke and South Carolina Electric and Gas
(“SCE&G”). Costs paid to New Horizon pursuant to these agreements were approximately
$6,273,000 and $4,713,000 for fiscal years 2004 and 2003, respectively. The Company was
obligated under these agreements to New Horizon for approximately $600,000 and $685,000 as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

In 2003, the Company also provided certain administrative services to New Horizon, and New
Horizon reimbursed the Company for these services. Total payments received from New Horizon
were approximately $633,000 during 2003 and are included in sales to nonmembers in the
accompanying financial statements.

Effective January 1, 2004, all of the Company’s employees were transferred to New Horizon. Asa
result, New Horizon provides certain administrative services for the Company. In 2004, the
Company reimbursed New Horizon approximately $443,400 for administrative services.

Effective with the transfer of employees on January 1, 2004, New Horizon also provides dynamic
scheduling and metering services to the Company for which the Company reimburses New Horizon.
In 2004, the Company reimbursed New Horizon approximately $448,000 for dynamic scheduling
and metering services.

National Rural Utilities Cooperative Finance Corporation (CFC)
The Company is a member of CFC, a national financial organization and, as explained in Note 6, has
investment assets in CFC.

Federated Rural Electric Insurance Exchange

The Company is a shareholder of Federated (Note 6), and purchases its general property and liability
coverage from this corporation. The Company purchased $53,435 and $79,000 of general property
and liability coverage during 2004 and 2003, respectively. -

Electric Cooperatives of South Carolina, Inc. (“ECSC”)
As a member of ECSC, a statewide organization composed of electric cooperatives, the Company
purchased approximately $1,250 and $1,600 of training materials in 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Central Electric Power Cooperative, Inc.

The Company purchased supplemental energy of approximately $73,966,000 and $67,180,000
pursuant to the wholesale power contract in 2004 and 2003, respectively. The Company was current
on all obligations to Central as of December 31, 2004 and 2003.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of cash and cash equivalents and consumer accounts receivable. Depository accounts of
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the Company were in institutions insured by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation, and
deposits did not exceed the insurance limits at December 31, 2004 and 2003. Concentrations of
credit risk with respect to electric member accounts are increased due to the small customer base.
However, management believes the associated credit risk is limited.

16. Subsequent Events

In June 2004, RUS issued a request for proposal (“RFP”) for potential buyers to purchase the
Company’s ownership interest in Catawba. In response to the RFP, six bidders offered proposals to
purchase the Company’s ownership interest in Catawba. RUS is currently evaluating the proposals
to determine which bidders it will enter into negotiations with regarding the sale of their ownership
interest in Catawba.

The Company reached an agreement with RUS in November 2004, whereby it was agreed that the
sale of Catawba shall occur on or before December 31, 2008, with a targeted sale date of September
30, 2008. Furthermore, the agreement provides that if Catawba has not been sold on or before
December 31, 2008, then the Company shall deliver title to Catawba and the Company’s rights in
respect of the Decommissioning Trust Fund to RUS or any RUS designee by December 31, 2008.
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SAFE HARBOR STATEMENT UNDER THE PRIVATE
SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995

Duke Energy Corporation's reports, filings and other public announcements
may contain or incorporate by reference statements that do not directly or
exclusively relate to historical facts. Such statements are “forwardHooking state-
ments” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
You can typically identify forward-ooking statements by the use of forward-looking
words, such as “may,” “will,” “could,” “project,” “believe,” “anticipate,” “expect,”
“estimate,” “continue,” “potential,” “plan,” “forecast” and other similar words.
Those statements represent Duke Energy’s intentions, plans, expectations,
assumptions and beliefs about future events and are subject to risks,
uncertainties and other factors. Many of those factors are outside Duke Energy's
control and could cause actual results to differ materially from the results
expressed or implied by those forwardHooking statements. Those factors include:

o State, federal and foreign legislative and regulatory initiatives that affect
cost and investment recovery, have an impact on rate structures, and
affect the speed at and degree to which competition enters the electric
and natural gas industries

» The outcomes of litigation and regulatory investigations, proceedings or
inquiries

« Industrial, commercial and residential growth in Duke Energy's service
territories

* The weather and other natural phenomena

« The timing and extent of changes in commodity prices, interest rates
and foreign currency exchange rates

* General economic conditions, including any potential effects arising from
terrorist attacks and any consequential hostilities or other hostilities

» Changes in environmental and other laws and regulations to which Duke
Energy and its subsidiaries are subject or other external factors over
which Duke Energy has no conErol

» The results of financing efforts, including Duke Energy‘s ability to obtain
financing on favorable terms, which can be affected by various factors,
including Duke Energy's credit ratings and general economic conditions

» Declines in the market prices of equity securities and resultant cash
funding requirements for Duke Energy's defined benefit pension plans

* The level of creditworthiness of counterparties to Duke Energy’s trans-
actions

» The amount of collateral required to be posted from time to time in Duke
Energy's transactions

« Growth in opportunities for Duke Energy’s business units, including the
timing and success of efforts to develop domestic and international
power, pipeline, gathering, processing and other infrastructure projects

* Competition and regulatory limitations affecting the success of Duke
Energy’s divestiture plans, including the prices at which Duke Energy is
able to sell its assets

* The performance of electric generation, pipeline and gas processing
facilities

* The extent of success in connecting natural gas supplies to gathering
and processing systems and in connecting and expanding gas and elec-
tric markets

« The effect of accounting pronouncements issued pericdically by account-
ing standard-setting bodies and

» Conditions of the capital markets and equity markets during the periods
covered by the forward-looking statements

In light of these risks, uncertainties and assumptions, the events described
in the forwarddooking statements might not occur or might occur to a different
extent or at a different time than Duke Energy has described. Duke Energy
undertakes no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking state-
ments, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
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Item 1. Business.

GENERAL

Duke Energy Corporation (collectively with its subsidiaries, Duke Energy) is a leading energy company located in the Americas with a
real estate subsidiary. Duke Energy provides its services through the business units described below.

Duke Energy operates the following business units: Franchised Electric, Natural Gas Transmission, Field Services, Duke Energy
North America (DENA), International Energy and Crescent Resources, LLC (Crescent). Duke Energy's chief operating decision maker regu-
larly reviews financial information about each of these business units in deciding how to allocate resources and evaluate performance. The
entities under each business unit have similar economic characteristics, services, production processes, distribution methods and regu-
latory concerns. All of the Duke Energy business units are considered reportable segments under Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information.”

Franchised Electric generates, transmits, distributes and sells electricity in central and western North Carolina and western South
Carolina. It conducts operations through Duke Power. These electric operations are subject to the rules and regulations of the Federal
Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC), the North Carolina Utilities Commission {NCUC) and the Public Service Commission of South Caro-
lina (PSCSC). ' ‘

Natur'al'Gés Transmission provides transportation and storage of natural gas for customers along the U.S. East Coast, the South-
east, and ‘in Canada. Natural Gas Transmission also provides natural gas sales and distribution service to retail customers in Ontario, and
natural gas processing services to customers in Western Canada. Natural Gas Transmission does business primarily through Duke Energy
Gas Transmission, LLC. Duke Enérgy Gas Transmlssron LLC's natural gas transmission and storage operations in the U.S. are primarily
subject to the FERC’srand the U.S. Department of Transportatron s (DOT's} rules and regulations, while natural gas gathering, processmg,
transmission, distribution and stor’age‘operations in Canada are primarily subject to the rules and regulations of the National Energy
Board (NEB) and the Ontario Energy Board (OEB). Texas Eastern Transmission LP (Texas Eastern) is an indirect subsidiary of Natural Gas
Transmission and was also a Separéte Securities and Exchange Commission {(SEC) reporting entity. On December 15, 2004 Texas East-
ern announced that it filed a Form 15 with the SEC to suspend its reporting obligations under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Texas
Eastern is eligible to suspend its reportmg obhgatlon under the 1934 Act because it has fewer than 300 holders of record of any class of
its securities. :

Field Services gathers, compresses, treats, processes, transports, trades and markets, and stores natural gas, and fractionates,
transports, trades and markets, and stores natural gas liquids (NGLs). It conducts operations primarily through Duke Energy Field Serv-
ices, LLC (DEFS}, Wthh is approximately 30% owned by ConocoPhillips and approxrmately 70% owned by Duke Energy. Field Services
gathers raw natural gas through gathering systems located in eight major natural gas producing regions: ‘Permian Basin, deContment
ArkiaTex, Gulf Coast, South, Central, Rocky Mountains and Western Canada. DEFS, which previously was a separate SEC reporting entity,
announced January 31, 2005 that it filed a Form 15 with the SEC to suspend its reporting obligations under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934. DEFS is eligible to suspend its reporting obligations under the 1934 Act because it has fewer than 300 halders of record of any
class of its securities.

In February 2005, Duke Energy executed an agreement with ConocoPhllhps whereby Duke Energy has agreed to transfer a 19.7
percent interest in DEFS to ConocaPhillips for direct and indirect monetary and non-monetary consideration of approximately $1.1 billion.
Upon completion of this transaction, DEFS will be owned 50% by Duke Energy and 50% by ConocoPhillips. As a result, Duke Energy
expects to account for its investment in DEFS using the equrty method subsequent to closing of the transaction. This transaction, which is
subject to customary U.S. and Canadian regulatory approvals, is expected to close in the latter half of 2005. Additionally, in February
2005, DEFS sold its wholly-owned subsrdrary, Texas Eastern Products Pipeline Company LLC (TEPPCO), the general partner of TEPPCO
Partners L.P., for approximately $1.1 billion and Duke Energy sold its limited partner interest in TEPPCO Partners, L. P. for approximately
$100 million, in each case to Enterprise GP Holdings L.P. {EPCO), an unrelated third party. TEPPCO Partners, L.P. is a publicly traded
master limited partnership which owns one of the largest common-carrier pipelines of refined petroleum products and liquefied petroleum
gases in the United States, as well as natural gas gathering systems, petrochemical and NGL pipelines, and is engaged in crude oil trans-
portation, storage, gathering and marketing. TEPPCO is responsible for the management and operations of TEPPCO Partners, L.P.

DENA operates and manages power plants and markets electric power and natural gas related to these plants and other contractual
positions. DENA conducts business throughout the U.S. and Canada through Duke Energy North America, LLC and its 100% owned affili-
ates Duke Energy Marketing America, LLC and Duke Energy Marketing Canada Corp. DENA also participates in Duke Energy Trading and
Marketing, LLC (DETM). DETM is 40% owned by Exxon Mobil Corporation and 60% owned by Duke Energy.
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International Energy operates and manages power generation facilities, and engages in sales and marketing of electric power and
natural gas outside the U.S. and Canada. It conducts operations primarily through Duke Energy International, LLC (DEI) and its activities
target power generation in Latin America. Additionally, International Energy owns an equity investment in National Methano! Company,
located in Saudi Arabia, which is a leading regional producer of methanol and methyl tertiary butyl ether (MTBE).

Crescent develops and manages high-quality commercial, residential and multi-family real estate projects primarily in the south-
eastern and southwestern United States. Some of these projects are developed and managed through joint ventures. Crescent also
manages “legacy” land holdings in North and South Carolina.

The remainder of Duke Energy's operations is presented as “Other”. While it is not considered a business segment, Other primarily
includes certain unallocated corporate costs, DukeNet Communications, LLC {DukeNet), Duke Energy Merchants, LLC (DEM), Bison
Insurance Company Limited (Bison), Duke Energy's wholly owned, captive insurance subsidiary, and Duke Energy’s 50% interest in Duke/
Fluor Daniel (D/FD). DukeNet develops, owns and operates a fiber optic communications network primarily in the Carolinas, serving wire-
less, local and long-distance communications companies, Internet service providers and other businesses and organizations. During
2003, Duke Energy determined that it would exit the refined products business at DEM in an orderly manner, and continues to unwind its
portfolio of contracts. As of December 31, 2004, DEM had exited the majority of its business. Bison's principle activities, as a captive
insurance entity, include the insurance and reinsurance of various business risks and losses, such as workers compensation, property,
business interruption and general liability of subsidiaries and affiliates of Duke Energy. Bison also participates in reinsurance activities with
certain third parties, on a limited basis. D/FD is a 50/50 partnership between subsidiaries of Duke Energy and Fluor Corporation. During
2003, Duke Energy and Fluor Corporation announced that they would dissolve the D/FD partnership. The D/FD partners adopted a plan
for an orderly wind-down of the business which is expected to be completed by December 2005. Previously, D/FD provided compre-
hensive engineering, procurement, construction, commissioning and operating plant services for fossilfueled electric power generating
facilities worldwide. During 2003, Duke Energy decided to exit the merchant finance business conducted by Duke Capital Partners, LLC
(DCP). DCP had been previously included in Other. At December 31, 2004 Duke Energy had exited the merchant finance business, and all
of the results of operations for DCP have been classified as discontinued operations in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of
Operations.

Duke Energy is a North Carolina corporation. Its principal executive offices are located at 526 South Church Street, Charlotte, North
Carolina 28202-1803. The telephone number is 704-594-6200. Duke Energy electronically files reports with the SEC, including annuat
reports on Form 10K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8K, proxies and amendments to such reports. The public
may read and copy any materials that Duke Energy files with the SEC at the SEC's Public Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, N.W.,
Washington, D.C. 20549. The public may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at
1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC also maintains an internet site that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information
regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC at http.//www.sec.gov. Additionally, information about Duke Energy, including its
reports filed with the SEC, is available through Duke Energy’s web site at http;//www.duke-energy.com. Such reports are accessible at no
charge through Duke Energy's web site and are made available as soon as reasonably practicable after such material is filed with or fur-
nished to the SEC. '

Terms used to describe Duke Energy's business are defined below.

Accrual Model of Accounting {Accrual Model). An accounting term used by Duke Energy to refer to contracts for which there is
generally no recognition in the Consolidated Statements of Operations for any changes in fair value until the service is provided or the
associated delivery period occurs or there is hedge ineffectiveness. As discussed further in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial State-
ments, this term is applied to derivative contracts that are accounted for as cash flow hedges, fair value hedges, and normal purchases
or sales, as well as to non-derivative contracts used for commodity risk management purposes. As this term is not explicitly defined
within U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), Duke Energy’s application of this term could differ from that of other
companies. S o

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction {AFUDC). A non-cash accounting convention of regulatory utilities that repre-
sents the estimated composite interest costs of debt and a return on equity funds used to finance construction. The allowance is cap-
italized in the property accounts and included in income.

British Thermat Unit (Btu). A standard unit for measuring thermal energy or heat commonly used as a gauge for the energy con-
tent of natural gas and other fuels. :

Cubic Foot (cf). The most common unit of measurement of gas volume; the amount of natura! gas required to fill a volume of one
cubic foot under stated conditions of temperature, pressure and water vapor. :
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Decommissioning. The process of closing down a nuclear facility and reducing the residual radioactivity to a level that permits the
release of the property and termination of the license. Nuclear power plants are required by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) to
set aside funds for their decommissioning costs during operation.

Derivative. A financial instrument or contract in which its price is based on the value of underlylng securities, equity indices, debt
instruments, commodities or other benchmarks or variables. Often used to hedge risk, derivatives involve the trading of rights or obliga-
tions, but not the direct transfer of property. Gains or losses on derivatives are often settled on a net basis.

Distribution. The system of lines, transformers, switches and mains that connect electric and natural gas transmission systems to
customers.

Duke Capital LLC {Duke Capital). Duke Capital LLC (formerly known as Duke Capital Corporation), a wholly owned subsidiary of
Duke Energy that provides financing and credit enhancement services for its subsidiaries.

Energy Marketing. dentification and execution of physical energy related transactions, generally with customized provisions to
meet the needs of the customer or supplier, throughout the supply chain.

Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). The U.S. ageﬁcy that is responsible for researching and setting national standards for a
variety of environmental programs, and delegates to states the responsibility for issuing permits and for momtormg and enforcmg com-
pliance.

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission {FERC). The U.S. agency that regulates the transportation of electricity and natural gas
in interstate commerce and authorizes the buying and selling of energy commodities at market-based rates.

Forward Contract. A contract in which the buyer is obligated to take delivery, and the seller is obligated to deliver a specified
amount of a commodity with a predetermined price formula on a specified future date, at which time payment is due in full.

Fractionation/Fractionate. The process of separating liquid hydrocarbons from natural gas into propane, butane, ethane and
other related products. :

Futures Contract. A contract, usually exchange traded, in which the buyer is obligated to take delivery and the seller is obligated to
deliver a fixed amount of a commodity at a predetermined price on a specified future date. .

Gathering System. Pipeline, processing and related facilities that access production and other sources of natural gas supplies for
delivery to mainline transmission systems.

Generation. The process of transforming other forms of energy, such as nuclear or fossil fuels, into electricity. Also, the amount of
electric energy produced, expressed in megawatt-hours.

Independent System Operator (ISO). An entity that acts as the transmission provider for a regional transmission system, provid-
ing customers access to the system and clearing all bilateral contract requests for use of the electric transmission system. An ISO also
shares responsibility for maintaining bulk electric system reliability.

Light-off Fuel. Fuel oil used to light the coal prior to generating electricity.

Liquefied Natural Gas {LNG). Natural gas that has been converted to a liquid by cooling it to minus 260 degrees Fahrenheit.

Liquidity. The ease with which assets or products can be traded without dramatically altering the current market price.

Local Distribution Company (LDC). A company that obtains the major portion of its revenues from the operations of a retail dis-
tribution system for the dehvery of electricity or gas for ultimate consumption.

Logistics & Optlmlzatlon The act of maximizing returns from physical po’sitions through arbitrage, especially on contractual
assets such as storage, transportation, generation and transm|ssuon

Mark-to-Market Model of Accounting (MTM Model). An accounting term used by Duke Energy to refer to derivative contracts
for which an asset or liability is recognized at fair value and the change in the fair value of that asset or liability is recognized in the Con-
solidated Statements of Operations. As discussed further in Note 1 to the Consolidated FinanciaI'Statements, this term is applied to trad-
ing and undesignated nonrading derivative contracts. As this term is not explicitly defined within U.S. GAAP, Duke Energy’s application of
this term could differ from that of other companies.

Natural Gas. A naturally occurring mixture of hydrocarbon and norrhydrocarbon gases found in porous geological formations
beneath the earth’s surface, often in association with petroleum. The principal constituent is methane.

Natural Gas Liquids (NGLs). Liquid hydrocarbons extracted during the processing of natural gas. Principal commercial NGLs
include butanes, propane, natural gasoline and ethane.
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No-notice Bundled Service. A pipeline delivery service which allows customers to receive or deliver gas on demand without mak-
ing prior nominations to meet service needs and without paying daily balancing and scheduling penalties. :

Origination. Identification and execution of physical energy related transactions, generally with customized provisions to meet the
needs of the customer or supplier, throughout the supply chain.

Option. A contract that gives the buyer a right but not the obligation to purchase or sell an underlying asset at a specrfied price ata
specified time. . ‘

Peak Load. The amount of electricity required during periods of highest demand. Peak periods fluctuate by season, generaliy
occurring in the morning hours in winter and in late afternoon during the summer.

Portfolio. A collection of assets, liabilities, transactions, or trades.

Regional Transmission Organization (RTO). An independent entity which is established td have “functional control” over utilities’ ;
transmission systems, in order to expedite transmission of electricity. RTO’s typically operate markets within their territories.

Reliability Must Run. Generation that an ISO determines is required to be ondine to meet applicable reliability criteria requirements.
Residue Gas. ‘Gas remaining after the processing of natural gas.

Spark Spread. The difference between the value of eIectncnty and the value of the gas required to generate the electncnty ata
specified heat rate.

Swap. A contract to exchange cash ﬂows in the future according to a prearranged formula
Throughput. The amount of natural gas or NGLs transported through a pipeline system. A
Tolling. Arrangement whereby a buyer provides fuel to a power generator and receives generated power in return for a specified fee.

Transmission System (Electric). An interconnected group of electric transmission lines and related equipment for moving or
transferring electric energy in bulk between points of supply and points at which it is transformed for delivery over a distribution system to
customers, or for delivery to other electric transmission systems.

Transmission System {Natural Gas}. An interconnected group of natural gas pipelines and associated facﬂrtles for transporting
natural gas in bulk between points of supply and delivery points to industrial customers, LDCs, or for delivery to other natural gas trans-
mission systems.

Volatility. An annualized measure of the fluctuation in the price of an energy contract.
Watt. A measure of power production or usage equal to one joule per second.

The following sections describe the business and operations of each of Duke Energy’s business segments. {(For more information on
the operating outlook of Duke Energy and its segments, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Finan-
cial Condition, Introduction—Overview of Business Strategy and Economic Factors for Duke Energy’s Business”. For financial information
on Duke Energy's business segments, see Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, “Business Segments.”)

FRANCHISED ELECTRIC |

Service Area and Customers

Franchised Electric generates, transmrts distributes and sells electricity. It conducts operations through Duke Power. Its service area
covers about 22,000 square miles with an estimated popuiation of 5.9 million in central and western North Carolina and western South
Carolina. Franchised Electric supplies electric service to approximately 2.2 million residential, commercial and industrial customers over
94,000 miles of distribution lines and a 13,000-mile transmission system. Electricity is also sold wholesale to incorporated municipalities
and to public and private utilities. In addition, munlcrpal and cooperatlve customers who purchased portions of the Catawba Nuclear Station
may also buy power from a variety of suppliers including Franchised Electric, through contractual agreements. (For more information on the
Catawba Nuclear Station joint ownership, see Note 5 to the Consolidated Financia! Statements “Joint Ownership of Generating Facilities.”)

Industrial and commerual development in Franchised Electric’s service area is highly diversified. The textile industry, machinery and
equipment manufacturing, and chemical industries are of major significance to the area’s economy. Other industries operating in the area
include rubber and plastic products, paper and related products, and other manufacturing and service businesses. The textile industry,
while in decline, is the largest industry served by Franchised Electric and accounted for approximately $293 million of Franchised Elec-
tric’s revenues for 2004, representing 6% of total electric revenues and 28% of industrial revenues. In 2004, Franchised Electric
implemented business development strategies to leverage the competitive advantages of North Carolina and South Carolina to attract
pharmaceutical, biotechnology, plastics, medical equipment and other industries.



PART |

Franchised Electric's costs and revenues are influenced by seasonal patterns. Peak sales occur during the summer and winter

months, resulting in higher revenue and cash flows during those periods. By contrast, fewer sales occur during the spring and fall allowing
for scheduled plant maintenance during those periods.

AN
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Energy Capacity and Resources

Electric energy for Franchised Electric’s customers is generated by three nuclear generating stations with a combined net capacity
of 5,020 megawatts (MW) (including Duke Energy's 12.5% ownership in the Catawba Nuclear Station), eight coalfired stations with a
combined capacity of 7,754 MW, 31 hydroelectric stations (including two pumped-storage facilities) with a combined capacity of 2,810
MW and seven combustion turbine stations with a combined capacity of 2,447 MW. Energy and capacity are also supplied through con-
tracts with other generators and purchased on the open market. Franchised Electric has interconnections and arrangements with its
neighboring utilities to facilitate planning, emergency assistance, sale and purchase of capacity and energy, and reliability of power sup-
ply. Franchised Electric expects that current generation capabilities plus additional construction, pur;haséd power contracts and open
market purchases will meet customers’ energy needs in the future. '

Franchised Electric’s generation bortfolio is a balanced mix of energy resources having different operating characteristics and fuel
sources designed to provide energy at the lowest possible cost to meet its obligation to serve nativedoad customers. All options including
owned generation resources and purchased power opportunities are continually evaluated on a reattime basis to select and dispatch the
lowest-cost resources available to meet system load requirements. The vast majority of customer energy needs are met by Franchised
Electric’s large, low-energy-production-cost nuclear and coal-fired generating units that operate almost continuously (or at baseload
levels). In 2004, approximately 98% of the total generated energy came from Franchised Electric’s low-cost, efficient nuclear and coal
units (45.9% nuclear and 52.2% coal). The remainder of energy needs was supplied by hydroelectric and combustion-turbine generation
or economical purchases from the wholesale market.
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Hydroelectric (both conventional and pumped storage) and gas/cil combustion-turbine stations operate during the peak-hour load
periods (at peaking levels) when customer loads are rapidly changing. Combustion turbines produce energy at higher production costs
than either nuclear or coal, but are less expensive to build and maintain, and can be rapidly started or stopped as needed to meet chang-
ing customer loads. Hydroelectric units produce low-cost energy, but their operations are limited by the availability of water flow. Since
hydroelectric units can also be rapidly started or stopped, they are also used in periods of rapidly changing customer loads so that sys-
tem operators can match loads with the appropriate amount of generation.

Franchised Electric’s two major pumped-storage hydroelectric facilities offer the added flexibility of using low-cost off-peak energy to
pump water that will be stored for later generation use during times of higher<ost on-peak generation periods. These plants allow Fran-
chised Electric to maximize the value spreads between different high- and low-cost generation periods.

Fuel Supply

Franchised Electric relies principally on coal and nuclear fuel for its generation of electric energy. The following table lists Franchised
Electric’s sources of power and fuel costs for the three years ended December 31, 2004.

Generation by Source Cost of Delivered Fuel per Net

{Percent) Kilowatt-hour Generated (Cents)
2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002
Coal 52.2 50.7 51.2 1.84 1.59 1.54
Nuclear(a) 459 46.7 48.3 0.41 0.42 0.42
Oil and gas(b) 0.2 0.1 0.1 16.79 15.52 11.89
All fuels (cost based on weighted average)(a) 98.3 97.5 99.6 1.20 1.05 1.01

Hydroelectric(c) 1.7 25 0.4

100.0 100.0 100.0

{a) Statistics related to nuclear generation and all fuels reflect Franchised Electric's 12.5% ownership interest in the Catawba Nuclear Station.
(b} Cost statistics include amaunts for light-off fuel at Franchised Electric's coalfired stations.
(c) Generating figures are net of output required to replenish pumped storage facilities during off-peak periods.

Coal. Franchised Electric meets its coal demand through purchase supply contracts and spot agreements. Large amounts of coal
are obtained under supply contracts with mining operators who mine both underground and at the surface. Franchised Electric has an
adequate supply of coal to fuel its current operations. Expiration dates for its supply contracts, which have price adjustment provisions,
range from 2005 to 2007. Franchised Electric expects to renew these contracts or enter into similar contracts with other suppliers for
the quantities and quality of coal required, though prices will fluctuate over time. The coal purchased under these contracts is produced
from mines in eastern Kentucky, southern West Virginia and southwestern Virginia. Franchised Electric uses spot-market purchases to
meet coal requirements not met by supply contracts. During 2004, Franchised Electric experienced coal delivery difficulties from rail-
roads that deliver coal to its power plants. Coal supplies were sufficient to fuel generation needed to meet the demand of retail custom-
ers but were limited for wholesale sales. Coal deliveries have since improved and Franchised Electric expects to have increased
wholesale opportunities as coal inventories increase.

The average sulfur content of coal purchased by Franchised Electric is approximately 1%. Coupled with the use of available sulfur
dioxide emission allowances on the open market, this satisfies the current emission limitation for sulfur dioxide for existing facilities.

Nuclear. Developing nuclear generating fuel generally involves the mining and milling of uranium ore to produce uranium concen-
trates, the conversion of uranium concentrates to uranium hexafluoride gas, enrichment of that gas, and then the fabrication of the
enriched uranium hexafluoride into usable fuel assemblies.

Franchised Electric has contracted for uranium materials and services required to fuel Oconee, McGuire and Catawba Nuclear Stations.
Uranium concentrates, conversion services and enrichment services are primarily met through a diversified portfolio of long-term supply con-
tracts. The contracts are diversified by supplier, country of origin and pricing. Franchised Electric staggers its contracting so that its portfolio of
longterm contracts covers the majority of its fuel requirements at Oconee, McGuire and Catawba in the near term, but so that its level of
coverage decreases each year into the future. Due to the technical complexities of changing suppliers of fuel fabrication services, Franchised
Electric generally sole sources these services to a single domestic supplier on a plantby-plant basis using multiyear contracts.
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Based on current projections, Franchised Electric’s existing portfolio of contracts will meet the requirements of Oconee, McGuire and
Catawba Nuclear Stations through the following years:

Nuclear Station Uranium Material Conversion Service - Enrichment Service Fabrication Service
Oconee 2007 2007 2007 2006
McGuire 2007 2007 2007 2009
Catawba 2007 2007 2007 2009

After the years indicated above, a portion of the fuel requirements at Oconee, McGuire and Catawba are covered by long-term con-
tracts. For requirements not covered under long-term contracts, Duke Energy believes it will be able to renew contracts as they expire, or
enter into similar contractual arrangements with other suppliers of nuclear fuel materials and services. Nearterm requirements not met by
long-term supply contracts have been and are expected to be fulfilled with uranium spot market purchases.

Duke Power has entered into a contract under which it has agreed to prepare the McGuire and Catawba nuclear reactors for use of
mixed-oxide fuel and to purchase mixed-oxide fuel for use in such reactors. Mixed-oxide fue! will be fabricated by Duke COGEMA Stone &
Webster, LLC from the U.S. government’s excess plutonium from its nuclear weapons programs and is similar to conventional uranium
fuel. Before using the fuel, Duke Power must apply for and obtain amendments to the facilities' operating licenses from the NRC. On
March 3, 2005, the NRC issued amendments to Catawba Nuclear Station’s operating licenses to allow the receipt and use of four mixed
oxide fuel lead assemblies. (See Note 18 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, “Guarantees and Indemnifications,” for additional
information.)

Inventory

Generation of electricity is capitalintensive. Franchised Electric must maintain an adequate stock of fuel, materials and supplies in
order to ensure continuous operation of generating facilities and reliable delivery to customers. As of December 31, 2004, the inventory
balance for Franchised Electric was approximately $405 million. {See Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, “Summary of Sig-
nificant Accounting Policies,” for additional information.)

Insurance and Decommissioning

Duke Energy owns and operates McGuire and Oconee Nuclear Stations and operates and has a partial ownership interest in Catawba
Nuclear Station. McGuire and Catawba have two nuclear reactors each and Oconee has three. Nuclear insurance includes: liability cover-
age; property, decontamination and premature de’commissioning coverage; and business interruption and/or extra expense coverage.
The other joint owners of the Catawba Nuclear Station reimburse Duke Energy for certain expenses associated with nuclear insurance
premiums. The Price-Anderson Act requires Duke Energy to insure against public liability claims resulting from nuclear incidents to the full
limit of liability, approximately $10.8 billion. (See Note 17 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, “Commitments and Contingencies—
Nuclear Insurance,” for more information.)

In October 2004, Duke Power filed the results of a funding study for nuclear decommissioning costs with the NCUC, and in
December 2004, Duke Power notified the PSCSC of the results of the funding study {filing of the study is not required by the PSCSC). The
funding study, which was based on the updated nuclear decommissioning cost estimate and renewal of the nuclear operating licenses,
indicates that an annual cash contribution to the Nuclear Decommissioning Trust Funds (NDTF) of $48 million (compared to a current level
of approximately $70 million), which are invested in debt and equity securities as discussed in Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, “Asset Retirement Obligations,” is now required to fully cover the estimated nuclear decommissioning costs. Duke Power
anticipates that the NCUC will rule later in 2005 on whether any change in Duke Power’s decommissioning expense is necessary.

Estimated site-specific nuclear decommissioning costs, including the cost of decommissioning plant companents not subject to
radioactive contamination, total approximately $2.3 billion in 2003 dollars, based on a decommissioning study completed in 2004. This
includes costs related to Duke Energy's 12.5% ownership in Catawba Nuclear Station. The other joint owners of Catawba Nuclear Station
are responsible for decommissioning costs related to their ownership interests in the station. The previous study, conducted in 1999,
estimated a decommissioning cost of $1.9 billion ($2.2 billion in 2003 dollars at 3% inflation). The estimated increase is due primarily to
inflation and cost increases for the size of the organization needed to manage the decommissioning project (based on current industry
experience at facilities undergoing decommissioning). Both the NCUC and the PSCSC have allowed Duke Energy to recover estimated
decommissioning costs through retail rates over the expected remaining service periods of Duke Energy’s nuclear stations. Management
believes that the decommissioning costs being recovered through rates, when coupled with expected fund earnings, are sufficient to
provide for the cost of decommissioning.
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After spent fuel is removed from a nuclear reactor, it is cooled in a spent-fuel pool at the nuclear station. Under provisions of the
Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982, Duke Energy has contracted with the U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) for the disposal of spent
nuclear fuel. The DOE failed to begin accepting spent nuclear fuel on January 31, 1998, the date specified by the Nuclear Waste Policy
Act and in Duke Energy’s contract with the DOE. In 1998, Duke Energy filed a claim with the U.S. Court of Federal Claims against the DOE
related to the DOE's failure to accept commercial spent nuclear fuel by the required date. Damages claimed in the lawsuit are based upon
Duke Energy's costs incurred as a result of the DOE's partial material breach of its contract, includinlg the cost of securing additional
spent fuel storage capacity. Duke Energy will continue to safely manage its spent nuclear fuel until the DOE accepts it. Payments made to
the DOE for disposal costs are based on nuclear output and are included in the Consolidated Statements of Operations as Fuel Used in
Electric Generation and Purchased Power.

Duke Energy has experienced numerous claims relating to damages for personal injuries alleged to have arisen from the exposure to
or use of ashestos in connection with construction and maintenance activities conducted by Duke Power on its electric generation plants
during the 1960s and 1970s. Duke Energy has third-party insurance to cover losses related to these asbestos-related injuries and dam-
ages above a certain aggregate deductible. This insurance policy, including the policy deductible, provides for coverage to Duke Energy
up to an aggregate of $1.6 billion. Probable insurance recoveries related to this policy are classified in the Consolidated Balance Sheets
as Other within noncurrent assets. Amounts recognized as reserves in the Consolidated Balance Sheets are classified in Other Deferred
Credits and Other Liabilities and Other Current Liabilities and are based upon Duke Energy’s best estimate of the probable liability for
future asbestos claims. These reserves are based upon current estimates and are subject to uncertainty. Factors such as the frequency
and magnitude of future claims could change the current estimates of the related reserves and claims for recoveries reflected in the
accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements. However, management of Duke Energy does not currently anticipate that any changes
to these estimates will have any material adverse effect on Duke Energy's consolidated results of operations, cash flows or financial posi-
tion.

Competition
Duke Energy continues to monitor electric industry restructuring; however, movement toward retail deregulation has virtually stopped.

Franchised Electric competes in some areas with government-owned power systems, municipally owned electric systems, rural elec-
tric cooperatives and other private utilities. By statute, the NCUC and the PSCSC assign all service areas outside municipalities in North
Carolina and South Carolina to regulated electric utilities and rural electric cooperatives. Substantially all of the territory comprising Fran-
chised Electric’s service area has been assigned in this manner. In unassigned areas, Franchised Electric’s business remains subject to
competition. A decision of the North Carolina Supreme Court limits, in some instances, the right of North Carolina municipalities to serve
customers outside their corporate limits. In South Carolina, competition continues between municipalities and other electric suppliers ‘
outside the municipalities’ corporate limits, subject to the regulation of the PSCSC. Franchised Electric also competes with other utilities
and marketers in the wholesale electric business. In addition, Franchised Electric continues to compete with natural gas providers.

Regulation

The NCUC and the PSCSC approve rates for retail electric sales within their respective states. The FERC approves Franchised Elec-
tric’s rates for electric sales to regulated wholesale customers. (For more information on rate matters, see Note 4 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements, “Regulatory Matters—Franchised Electric.”) The FERC, the NCUC and the PSCSC also have authority over the con-
struction and operation of Franchised Electric’s facilities. Certificates of public jconvenience and necessity issued by the FERC, the NCUC
and the PSCSC authorize Franchised Electric to construct and operate its electric facilities, and to sell electricity to retail and wholesale
customers. Prior approval from the NCUC and the PSCSC is required for Duke Energy to issue securities.

NCUC, PSCSC and FERC regulations govern access to regulated electric customer and other data by non-regulated entities, and
services provided between regulated and non-regulated energy affiliates. These regulations affect the activities of non-regulated affiliates
with Franchised Electric.

The Energy Policy Act of 1992 and subsequent rulemaking by FERC initiated an opening of wholesale energy market to competition.
Open-access transmission for wholesale customers, as defined by FERC rules, provides energy suppliers, including Franchised Electric,
with opportunities to sell and deliver capacity and energy at marketbased prices. Franchised Electric is also able to purchase at market
rates a portion of its capacity and energy requirements resulting in lower overall costs to customers. Open access also provides whole-
sale customers geographically located in Franchised Electric's control area with competitive opportunities to seek other suppfiers for their
capacity and energy requirements. ' '



PART |

The FERC continues to advocate for iridependent functioning of transmission grids, including through a variety of rulemakings and
policy proposals, and has supported the development of Regional Transmission Organizations (RT0s) across the U.S. As a result of these
rulemakings, Duke Power and the franchised electric units of Carolina Power & Light Company (now Progress Energy Carolinas) and
South Carolina Electric & Gas Company, planned to establish GridSouth Transco, LLC (GridSouth), as an RTO responsible for the func-
tional control of the companies’ combined transmission systems. As of December 31, 2003, Duke Energy had invested $41 million in
GridSouth, including carrying costs calculated through December 31, 2002. This amount is included in Other Regulatory Assets and
Deferred Debits on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Due to regulatory uncertainty, development of the GridSouth implementation project
was suspended in 2002. Duke Energy continues to examine options in support of the FERC's transmission policy goals. Management
expects it will recover its investment in GridSouth.

Franchised Electric is subject to the NRC jurisdiction for the design, construction and operation of its nuclear generating facilities. In -
2000, the NRC renewed the operating license for Duke Energy’s three Oconee nuclear units through 2033 and 2034. In 2003, the NRC
renewed the operating licenses for all units at Duke Energy's McGuire and Catawba stations. The two McGuire units are licensed through
2041 and 2043, while the two Catawba units are licensed through 2043. Franchised Electric’s hydroelectric generating facilities are
licensed by the FERC under Part | of the Federal Power Act, with license terms expiring from 2005 to 2036. The FERC has authority to
extend hydroelectric generating licenses. Other hydroelectric facilities whose licenses expire between 2005 and 2008 are in various
stages of relicensing.

Franchised Electric is subject to the jurisdiction of the EPA and state environmental agencies. (For a discussion of environmental
regulation, see “Environmental Matters” in this section.)

NATURAL GAS TRANSMISSION

Natural Gas Transmission provides transportation and storage of natural gas for customers along the U.S. East Coast, the South-
east, and in Canada. Natural Gas Transmission also provides natural gas sales and distribution service to retail customers in Ontario, and
gas processing services to customers in western Canada. Natural Gas Transmission does business primarily through Duke Energy Gas
Transmission LLC. '

For 2004, Natural Gas Transmission's proportional throughput for its pipelines totaled 3,332 trillion British thermal units (TBtu},
compared to 3,362 TBtu in 2003. This includes throughput on Natural Gas Transmission’s wholly owned U.S. and Canadian pipelines and
its proportional share of throughput on pipelines that are not wholly owned. A majority of Natural Gas Transmission's contracted trans-
portation volumes are under long-term firm service agreements with LDC customers in the pipelines’ market areas. Firm transportation
services are also provided to gas marketers, producers, other pipelines, electric power generators and a variety of end-users. In addition,
the pipelines provide both firm and interruptible transportation to various customers on a short-term or seasonal basis. Demand on Natu-
ral Gas Transmission’s pipeline systems is seasonal, with the highest throughput occurring during colder periods in the first and fourth -
calendar quarters. Natural Gas Transmission’s pipeline systems consist of more than 17,500 miles of transmission pipelines. The pipeline
systems receive natural gas from major North American producing regions for delivery to markets primarily in the Mid-Atlantic, New Eng-
land and Southeastern states, Ontario, Alberta, and British Columbia. (For detailed descriptions of Natural Gas Transmission’s pipeline
systems, see “Properties—Natural Gas Transmission”.)

Natural Gas Transmission, through Market Hub Partners (MHP), wholly owns natural gas salt cavern storage facilities in southeast
Texas and Louisiana, MHP markets natural gas storage services to pipelines, LDCs, producers, end users and natural gas marketers.
Texas Eastern and East Tennessee Natural Gas, LLC (ETNG) also provide firm and interruptible open-access storage services. Storage is
offered as a stand-alone unbundled service or as part of a no-notice bundled service with transportation.

_ Natural Gas Transmission provides retail distribution services through its subsidiary, Union Gas Limited (Union Gas). Union Gas awns
and operates natural gas transmission, distribution and storage facilities in Ontario. Union Gas distributes natural gas to approximately
1.2 million residential, commercial and industrial customers in northern, southwestern and eastern Ontario and provides storage, trans-
portation and related services to utilities and other industry participants in the gas markets of Ontario, Quebec and the central and east-
ern United States.

- Natural Gas Transmission’s processing plants in western Canada provide services primarily to natural gas producers to remove
impurities from the raw gas stream including water, carbon dioxide, hydrogen sulphide and other substances. In addition, where required
the facilities remove liquid hydrocarbons including propane, butane and pentanes plus. Natural Gas Transmission receives a volume based
fee for these processing services under contracts that have an average duration of one to three years.

In February 2005, Duke Energy executed an agreement with ConocoPhillips whereby Duke Energy has agreed to transfer a 19.7%
interest in DEFS to ConocoPhillips for direct and indirect monetary and non-monetary consideration of approximately $1.1 billion. Upon

closing of
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this transaction, Natural Gas Transmission expects to receive Canadian assets being transferred from DEFS and assets in Alberta and
Saskatchewan, Canada from ConocoPhillips, which will allow Natural Gas Transmission to continue building scope, scale and diversity
within its Canadian asset portfolio.
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Competition

Natural Gas Transmission’s transportation, storage and gas gathering and processing businesses compete with other pipeline and
storage facilities that serve its market areas in the transportation, processing and storage of natural gas. The principal elements of
competition are rates, terms of service, and flexibility and reliability of service.

Natura! gas competes with other forms of energy available to Natural Gas Transmission's customers and end-users, including elec-
tricity, coal and fuel oils. The primary competitive factor is price. Changes in the availability or price of natural gas and other forms of
energy, the level of business activity, conservation, legislation, governmental regulations, the ability to convert to alternative fuels,
weather and other factors affect the demand for natural gas in the areas served by Natural Gas Transmission.

Union Gas' distribution sales to industrial customers are affected by weather, economic conditions and the price of competitive
energy sources. Most of Union Gas' industrial and commercial customers, and a portion of residential customers, purchase their natural
gas supply directly from suppliers or marketers. Because Union Gas earns income from the distribution of natural gas and not the sale of
the natural gas commodity, the gas distribution margin is not affected by the source of the customer’s gas supply. ‘

Regulation

Most of Natural Gas Transmission’s pipeline and storage operations in the U.S. are regulated by the FERC. The FERC has authority to
regulate rates and charges for natural gas transported or stored for U.S. interstate commerce or sold by a natural gas company via
interstate commerce for resale. {For more information on rate matters, see Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, “Regulatory
Matters—Natural Gas Transmission.”) The FERC also has authority over the construction and operation of U.S. pipelines and related facili-
ties used in the transportation, storage and sale of natural gas in interstate commerce, including the extension, enlargement or abandon-
ment of such facilities. In addition, certain operations are subject to state regulatory commissions.
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FERC regulations restrict access to U.S. interstate pipeline natural gas transmission customer data by marketing and other energy
affiliates, and place certain conditions on services provided by the U.S. interstate pipelines to their affiliated gas marketing entities. These
regulations affect the activities of nonregulated affiliates with Natural Gas Transmission.

The FERC is continually proposing and implementing new rules and regulations affecting those segments of the natural gas industry,
most notably interstate natural gas transmission companies, which remain subject to the FERC’s jurisdiction. These initiatives may also
affect the intrastate transportation of gas under certain circumstances. The stated purpose of these regulatory changes is to promote '
competition among the various sectors of the natural gas industry.

Natural Gas Transmission’s U.S. operations are subject to the jurisdiction of the EPA and state environmental agencies. (For a dis-
cussion of environmental regulation, see “Environmental Matters” in this section.) Natural Gas Transmission’s interstate natural gas pipe-
lines are subject to the regulations of the DOT concerning pipeline safety. DOT regulations have incorporated certain provisions of the
Natural Gas Pipeline Safety Act of 1968 (and subsequent acts). The DOT developed new regulations, effective February 14, 2004, that
establish mandatory inspections for all natural gas transmission pipelines in high-consequence areas within 10 years. These regulations
require pipeline operators to implement integrity management programs, including more frequent inspections, and other safety pro-
tections in areas where the consequences of potential pipeline accidents pose the greatest risk to life and property. Management
believes that compliance with these DOT regulations for Natural Gas Transmission will not have a material adverse effect on the con-
solidated results of operations, cash flows or financial position of Duke Energy.

The natural gas gathering, processing, transmission, storage and distribution operations in Canada are subject to regulation by the
NEB and provincial agencies in Canada, such as the OEB. These agencies have authorization similar to the FERC for regulating rates,
regulating the operations of facilities and construction of any additional facilities.

FIELD SERVICES

Field Services gathers, compresses, treats, processes, transports, trades and markets, and stores natural gas; and fractionates,
transports, trades and markets, and stores NGLs. It conducts operations primarily through DEFS, which is approximately 30% owned by .
ConocoPhillips and approximately 70% owned by Duke Energy. In February 2005, Duke Energy executed an agreement with Con-
ocoPhillips whereby Duke Energy has agreed to transfer a 19.7% interest in DEFS to ConocoPhillips for direct and indirect monetary and
non-monetary consideration of approximately $1.1 billion. Upon closing of this transaction, DEFS expects to transfer its Canadian assets
to Duke Energy’s Natural Gas Transmission segment and receive certain U.S. Midstream assets or cash from ConocoPhillips. Upon com-
pletion of this transaction, DEFS will be owned 50% by Duke Energy and 50% by ConocoPhillips. As a result, Duke Energy expects to
account for its investment in DEFS using the equity method subsequent to closing of the transaction. This transaction, which is subject to ‘
customary U.S. and Canadian regulatory approvals, is expected to close in the latter half of 2005. Additionally, in February 2005, DEFS
sold its wholly-owned subsidiary, TEPPCO, the general partner of TEPPCO Partners L.P., for approximately $1.1 billion and Duke Energy
sold its limited partner interest in TEPPCO Partners, L.P. for approximately $100 million, in each case to EPCO, an unrelated third party.

Field Services gathers raw natural gas through gathering systems located in eight major natural gas producing regions: Permian
Basin, Mid-Continent, ArklaTex, Gulf Coast, South, Central, Rocky Mountains and Western Canada. Field Services owns and operates
approximately 59,000 miles of gathering and transmission pipe, with approximately 34,000 active receipt points.

Field Services’ natural gas processing operations separate raw natural gas that has been gathered on its own systems and third-
party systems into condensate, NGLs and residue gas. Field Services processes the raw natural gas at 57 natural gas processing facnh-
ties that it owns and operates and at nine third-party operated facilities in which it has an equity interest.

The NGLs separated from the raw natural gas are either sold and transported as NGL raw mix, or further separated through a fractio-
nation process into their individual components {ethane, propane, butanes and natural gasoline) and then sold as components. Field Serv-
ices fractionates NGL raw mix at ten processing facilities that it owns and operates and at four third-party-operated facilities in which it
has an equity interest. In addition, Field Services operates a propane wholesale marketing business. Field Services sells NGLs to a variety
of customers ranging from large, multinational petrochemical and refining companies to small regional retail propane distributors. Sub-
stantially all of its NGL sales are at market-based prices.

The residue gas separated from the raw natural gas is sold at market-based prices to marketers and end-users, including farge
industrial customers and natural gas and electric utilities serving individual consumers. Field Services markets residue gas directly or
through its wholly owned gas marketing company and its affiliates. Field Services also stores residue gas at its 6 billion-cubic-foot (Bcf)
natural gas storage facility. ‘
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Field Services uses NGL trading and storage at the Mont Belvieu, Texas and Conway, Kansas NGL market centers to manage its
price risk and to provide additiona! services to its customers. Asset-based gas trading and marketing activities are supported by owner-
ship of the Spindletop storage facility and various intrastate pipelines which provide access to market centers/hubs such as Katy, Texas,
and the Houston Ship Channel. Field Services undertakes these NGL and gas trading activities through the use of fixed forward sales,
basis and spread trades, storage opportunities, put/call options, term contracts and spot market trading. Field Services believes there
are additional opportunities to grow its services with its customer base.

The following map includes Field Services' natural gas gathering systems, intrastate pipelines, regional offices and supply areas. The
map also shows Natural Gas Transmission's interstate pipeline systems.
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Field Services' operating results are significantly impacted by changes in average NGL prices, which increased approximately 28% in
2004 compared to 2003. Field Services closely monitors the risks associated with these price changes, using NGL and crude forward
contracts to mitigate the effect of such fluctuations on operating results. (See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of
Operations and Financial Condition, Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk” for a discussion of Field Services’
exposure to changes in commodity prices.)

Competition ' ‘

In gathering and processing natural gas and in marketing and transporting natural gas and NGLs, Field Services competes with
major integrated oil companies, major interstate and intrastate pipelines, national and local natural gas gatherers, and brokers, marketers
and distributors of natural gas supplies. Competition for natural gas supplies is based primarily on the reputation, efficiency and reliability
of operations, the availability of gathering and transportation to high-demand markets, the pricing arrangement offered by the gatherer/
processor and the ability of the gatherer/processor to obtain a satisfactory price for the producer’s residue gas and extracted NGLs.
Competition for sales to customers is based primarily upon reliability, services offered, and price of delivered natural gas and NGLs.
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Regulation

The intrastate natural gas and NGL pipelines owned by Field Services are subject to state regulation. To the extent that the natural
gas intrastate pipelines provide services under Section 311 of the Natural Gas Policy Act of 1978, they are also subject to FERC regu-
lation. The interstate natural gas pipefine owned and operated by Field Services is subject to FERC regulation, but its natural gas gather-
ing and processing activities are not subject to FERC regulation.

Field Services is subject to the jurisdiction of the EPA and state environmental agencies. (For more information, see “Environmental
Matters” in this section.) Field Services’ natural gas transmission pipelines and some gathering pipelines are subject to the regulations of
the DOT, and in some cases, state agencies, concerning pipeline safety. DOT regulations have incorporated certain provisions of the
Natural Gas Pipeline Safety Act of 1968 (and subsequent acts). The DOT has developed new regulations, effective February 14, 2004,
that establish mandatory inspections for all natural gas transmission pipelines in high-consequence areas within ten years, with reassess-
ments at prescribed intervals thereafter. The new regulations require pipefine operators to implement integrity management programs,
including more frequent inspections, and other safety protections in areas where the consequences of potential pipeline accidents pose
the greatest risk to life and property, Management believes that compliance with these new DOT regulations will not have a material
adverse effect on the consolidated results of operations, cash flows or financial position of Duke Energy.

Field Services' Canadian assets are regulated by the Alberta Energy and Utilities Board and the NEB.

DENA

DENA operates and manages power plants and markets electric power and natural gas related to these plants and other contractual
positions. DENA conducts business throughout the U.S. and Canada through Duke Energy North America, LLC and its 100% owned affili-
ates Duke Energy Marketing America, LLC and Duke Energy Marketing Canada Corp. DENA also participates in DETM. DETM is 40%
owned by Exxon Mobil Corporation and 60% owned by Duke Energy. The following summarizes certain key events from 2004,

* Sold eight natural gas-fired merchant power plants: Hot Spring (Arkansas); Murray and Sandersville (Georgia); Marshall (Kentucky);
Hinds, Southaven, Enterprise and New Albany (Mississippi) in the southeastern United States; and certain other power and gas
contracts (collectively, the Southeast Plants)

« Sold partially completed pawer plants in Nevada (Moapa) and New Mexico (Luna)

* Signed an agreement for the sale of the partially completed Grays Harbor power plant in Washington state

» Settled its Enron Corporation (Enron) bankruptcy proceedings and the majority of its California and Western U.S. energy markets
issues, and

« Executed re-organization efforts, resulting in significant staff and annual cost reductions.

Generation Assets

DENA currently owns or operates approximately 9,890 net MW of operating generation. In August 2004, DENA completed the sale
of the Southeast Plants. DENA also completed the sales of its partially completed power plants in Moapa, Nevada in October 2004 and
Luna, New Mexico in November 2004. DENA also entered into an agreement in December 2004 to divest of its interests in the partially
completed Grays Harbor (Washington} power plant and associated contracts. (See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements,
“Acquisitions and Dispositions” for further discussion.)

On September 21, 2004 DENA signed a purchase and sale agreemenf to sell DENA's 75% interests in Bayside Power L.P. (Bayside).
(See Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, “Discontinued Operations and Assets Held for Sale,” for further discussion.)
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The following map shows DENA’s power generation facilities.
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Marketing Portfolio

Much of DENA's portfolio of purchase and sales agreements incorporate market-sensitive pricing terms. To minimize the impact of
changing market conditions to DENA, physical purchases and sales are generally hedged with financial derivatives. Additionally, DENA
continues to sell fixed capacity contracts in addition to volume based sales and purchases. (For information concerning DENA's risk-
management activities, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition, Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk” and Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, “Risk Management and Hedging Activ-
ities, Credit Risk, and Financia! Instruments.”)

DENA is active in the Western (California and Southwest), Northeast and Midwest power markets including the associated gas sup-
ply, transport and storage in those markets. DENA has a strong focus on increasing its percentage of contracted energy ($/MWh) and
capacity {$/kW/month) versus energy/capacity sold into the spot/non-contracted markets. Additionally, DENA continues to sell fixed
capacity contracts in addition to volume based sales and purchases.

Competition

The price of commodities and services, along with the quality and reliability of services provided, drive competition in the energy
marketing business. DENA's competitors include the following: utilities, financial institutions and hedge funds engaged in commodity trad-
ing, major interstate pipelines and their marketing affiliates, marketers and distributors, major integrated oil companies, other merchant
electric generation companies in North America, brokers, and other domestic and international electric power and natural gas marketers.
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Regulation

DENA's energy marketing activities are subject to the jurisdiction of the FERC in some circumstances. Current FERC policies permit
DENA's trading and marketing entities to market natural gas, electricity and other energy-related commodities at market-based rates.
Ongoing regulatory initiatives at both state and federal levels addressing market design,such as the development of capacity markets and
realtime electricity markets, impact financial results from DENA's marketing and generation activities.

Litigation at the state level is ongoing related to DENA's activities in California during the electricity supply situation in 2000 and
2001. (See Note 17 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, “Commitments and Contingencies—Litigation,” for further discussion.)

The operation and maintenance of DENA's power plants in California are now subject to regulation pursuant to guidelines recently
promulgated by state authorities. The new guidelines are intended to increase the reliability of the generation supply in California by set-
ting operating and maintenance standards and regulating when plants may be taken out of service for routine maintenance. Duke Energy
does not believe that the new guidelines will have a material impact on the operation of its power plants in California.

DENA is subject to the jurisdiction of the EPA and state environmental agencies. (For a discussion of environmental regulation, see
“Environmental Matters™ in this section.)

INTERNATIONAL ENERGY

International Energy operates and manages power generation facilities, and engages in sales and marketing of electric power and
natural gas outside the U.S. and Canada. It conducts operations primarily through DEl and its activities target power generation in Latin
America. Additionally, International Energy owns an equity investment in National Methanol Company, located in Saudi Arabia, which is a
leading regional producer of methanol and MTBE.

lnterriational Energy's customers include retail distributors, electric utilities, independent power producers, marketers and large
industrial companies. International Energy is committed to building integrated regional businesses that provide customers with a full range
of innovative and competitively priced energy services.

International Energy's current strategy is focused on maximizing the returns and cash flow from its current portfolio of energy busi-
nesses by creating organic growth through its sales and marketing efforts in all regions in which it currently does business, optimizing the
output and efficiency of its various facilities and controlling and reducing costs.

International Energy owns, operates or has substantial interests in approximately 4,139 net MW of generation facilities. The following
map shows the locations of International Energy’s facilities, including projects under construction and non-generation facilities in Mexico
and Saudi Arabia. The capacities shown in the map are gross MW values (for net MW values see “Properties—International Energy”).

During 2004, Duke Energy completed the sale of the Asia-Pacific power generation and natural gas transmission business {the Asia-
Pacific Business) to Alinta Ltd. All gains related to this transaction and the results of operations for these assets are included in Dis-
continued Operations, net of tax, in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. (See Note 13 to the Consolidated Financia! Statements,
“Discontinued Operations and Assets Held for Sale,” for further discussion.)
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Also in 2004, International Energy completed the sale of its 30% equity interest in Compaiiia de Nitrogeno de Cantarell, S.A. de C.V.’

(Cantarell) a nitrogen production and delivery facility in the Bay of Campeche, Gulf of Mexico. (See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, “Acquisitions and Dispasitions,” for further discussion.)
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Competition and Regulation

International Energy's sales and marketing of electric power and natural gas competes directly with other generators and marketers
serving its market areas. Competitors are country and region-specific but include government owned electric generating companies,
LDC’s with self-generation capability and other privately owned electric generating companies. The principal elements of competition are
price and availability, terms of service, flexibility and reliability of service.

A high percentage of International Energy's portfolio consists of base-load hydro electric generation facilities which compete with
other forms of electric generation available to International Energy’s customers and end-users, including natural gas and fuel oils.

Economic activity, conservation, legislation, governmental regulations, weather and other factors affect the supply and demand for elec-
tricity in the regions served by International Energy.

International Energy’s operations are subject to both country-specific and international laws and regulations. (See “Environmental
Matters” in this section.)

CRESCENT

Crescent develops and manages high-quality commercial, residential and multifamily real estate projects, and manages land hold-
ings, primarily in the Southeastern and Southwestern U.S. As of December 31, 2004, Crescent owned 0.5 million square feet of
commercial, industrial and retail space, with an additional 1.2 million square feet under construction. This partfolio included 0.9 million
square feet of office space, 0.5 million square feet of warehouse space and 0.3 million square feet of retail space. Crescent's residential
developments include high-end country club and golf course communities, with individual lots sold to custom builders and tract develop-
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ments sold to national builders: Crescent had three multi-family communities at December 31, 2004, including one operating property
and two properties under development. As of December 31, 2004, Crescent also managed approximately 132,000 acres of land.

Competition and Regulation

Crescent competes with multiple regional and national real estate developers across its various busrness lines in the southeastern
and southwestern U.S. Crescent's residential division sells devel0ped lots to regional and national home builders and retail buyers com-
peting with other developers and home builders who have inventories of developed lots. Crescent’s commercial division leases office,
rndustnal and retail space, competing with other public and private developers and owners of commercral property, including national real
estate investment trusts (REITs). Similarly, Crescent's multifamily division leases apartment units primarily to individuals, competing with
other private developers and mult-family RE{Ts. -

Crescent is subject to the jurisdiction of the EPA and state and local environmental agencies. (For a discussion of environmental
regulation, see “Environmental Matters” in this section.)

OTHER

During 2004, Other primarily included certain unallocated corporate costs, DukeNet, DEM, Duke Energy’s 50% interest in D/FD, and
Bison. DCP had been previously included in Other, however at December 31, 2004 Duke Energy had exited the merchant finance busi-
ness, and all of the results of operations for DCP for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 have been classified as dis-
continued operations.

DukeNet develops, owns and operates a fiber optic communications network primarily in the Carollnas serving wireless, local and
long-distance communications companies, Internet service providers and other businesses and organizations.

DEM engages in commodity buying and selling, and risk management and financial services in non regulated energy commodrty
markets other than physical natural gas and power (such as petroleum products). DEM's activities can fluctuate in response to seasonal
demand for other energy-related commodities. During 2003, Duke Energy determined that it would exit the refined products business at
DEM in an orderly manner, and continues to unwind its portfolio of contracts. As of December 31, 2004, DEM had exited the majarity of
its business.

D/FD is a 50/50 partnership between subsidiaries of Duke Energy and Fluor Corporation. Durlng 2003 Duke Energy and Fluor
Corporation announced that they would dissolve the D/FD partnership. The D/FD partners adopted a plan for an orderly wind-down of the
business which is expected to be completed by December 2005. Prevrously, D/fD provrded comprehensrve engineering, procurement,
construction, commissioning and operating plant services for fossifueled electnc power generating facilities worldwide.

Bison's principle activities, as a captive insurance entrty, include the insurance and reinsurance of various business risks and losses
such as workers compensation, property, business interruption, and general liability of subsidiaries and affiliates of Duke Energy Bison
also participates in reinsurance activities with certain third parties, on a limited basis. -

Competition and Regulation

. The entities within Other are subject to the le’ISdlCthﬂ of the EPA and state and local envrronmental agencres {For a discussion of
envrronmental regulation, see “Environmental Matters” in this section.}

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

Duke Energy is subject to international, federal, state and local laws and regulations with regard to air and water qualrty hazardous and
solid waste drsposal and other envrronrnental matters. Envrronmental laws and regulatlons affecting Duke Energy include, but are not limited to:
«The Clean Air Act and the 1990 amendments to the Act as well as state laws and regulations impacting air emissions, Jincluding
State Implementation Plans related to exrstmg and new natlonal ambient air quality standards for ozone and partrculate matter. .
Owners and/or operators of air emrssron sources are responsrble for obtalnrng permits and for annual compliance and reportrng

*The Federal Water Pollutlon Control Act whrch requrres permits for facrlmes that dlscharge wastewaters mto the envrronment

* The Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, which can require any individual or entity that cur-
rently owns or in the past may have owned or operated a disposal site, as well as transporters or generators of hazardous sub-
stances sent fo a drsposal site, to share in remedlatron costs

* The Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, which requires certaln solrd wastes,
including hazardous wastes, to be managed pursuant to a comprehensive regulatory regime.
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 The National Environmental Policy Act, which requires federal agencies to consider potential environmental impacts in their deci
sions, including siting approvals.

(For more information on environmental matters involving Duke Energy, including possible liability and capltal costs, see Note 17 to
the Consolidated Financia! Statements, “Commitments and Contingencies—Environmental.”) :

Except to the extent discussed in Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, “Regulatory Matters,” and Note 17 to the Con-
solidated Financial Statements, “Commitments and Contingencies,” compliance with international, federal, state and local provisions regu-
lating the discharge of materials into the environment, or otherwise protecting the environment, is not expected to have a material
adverse effect on the competitive position, consolidated results of operations, cash flows or financial position of Duke Energy.

GEOGRAPHIC REGIONS

For a discussion of Duke Energy's foreign operations and the risks associated with them, see “Management’s Discussion and Analy-
sis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition, Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk—Foreign Currency Risk,”
and Notes 3 and 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, “Business Segments” and “Risk Management and Hedging Activities, Credlt
Risk, and Financial Instruments.”

EMPLOYEES

On December 31, 2004, Duke Energy had approximately 21,500 employees. A total of 3,238 operating and maintenance employ-
ees were represented by unions. This amount consists of the following:

* 1,339 employees represented by the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers

» 1,108 employees represented by the Communications, Energy and Paperworkers of Canada

e 211 employees represented by the United Steelworkers of America

208 employees represented by the Canadian Pipeline Employees Association

* 79 employees represented by Sindicato de Trabajadores del Sector Electrico

« 75 employees represented by the Internationa!l Union of Operating Engineers

» 70 employees represented by Sindicato dos Trabalhadores na Industria da Energia Hidroeletrica de Ipaussu
*» 38 employees represented by Sindicato Unico de Centrales de Generacion Electrica—Canon del Pato

¢ 29 employees represented by Asociacion del Personal Jerarquico del Agua y la Energia'

« 24 employees represented by Sindicato dos Trabalhadores na Industria de Energia Eletrica de Campinas
* 20 embloyees represented by Sindicato Corani ‘

* 15 employees represented by Sindicato Unico de Generacion Electrica—Carhuaquero

» 13 employees represented by Federacion Argentina de Trabajadores de Luz y Fuerza

» 7 employees represented by Sindicato dos Trabalhadores nas Industrias de Energia Eletrica de Sao Paulo

» 2 employees represented by the United Association of Journeymen and Apprentices of the Plljmbing and Pipe Fitting Industries of
the U.S. and Canada ‘

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF DUKE ENERGY

PauL M. ANDERSON, 59, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Anderson was named to his current position in
November 2003. Mr. Anderson most recently served as Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of BHP Billiton Ltd and BHP Billiton
PLC, from which he retired in July 2002. Prior to joining BHP, Mr. Anderson had a career that spanned more than 20 years at Duke
Energy and its predecessor companies, including serving as Chief Executive Officer of PanEnergy Corp (PanEnergy).

Kerrh G. BuTLER, 44, Vice President and Controller. Mr. Butler was named Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Duke
Energy Global and its affiliated companies in February 1998, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of DENA in July 1998, and
Chief Operating Officer of DukeSolutions, Inc. in September 1999 before he assumed his current position in August 2001.

MvroN L. CALDWELL, 47, Vice President and Treasurer. Mr. Caldwell was named to his current position in December 2003. He pre-
viously served as Vice President of Carporate Finance since October 2000, and Managing Director of Corporate Finance since Sep-
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tember 1999. Mr. Caldwell held various other positions since joining Duke Energy in 1981, including Controller of Duke Power and Senior
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Duke Engineering & Services, Inc.

Frep J. FowLer, 59, President and Chief Operating Officer. Mr. Fowler assumed his current position in November 2002. Mr. Fowler
served as Group Vice President of PanEnergy from 1996 until the PanEnergy merger in 1997, when he was named Group President,
Energy Transmission.

Davip L. Hauser, 53, Group Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Hauser assumed his current position in March 2004, but
served as Acting Chief Financial Officer since December 2003. He previously served as Senior Vice President and Treasurer. Mr. Hauser -
held various positions, including Controller of Duke Power before being named Senior Vice President, Global Asset Development in 1997,

Jm W. Moag, 56, Group Vice President and Chief Development Officer. Mr. Mogg assumed his current position in January 2004. He
previously served as President and Chief Executive Officer of DEFS since December 1994 and Chairman, President and Chief Executive
Officer of DEFS since 1999,

A.R. MuLuinax, 50, Group Vice President and Chief Information Officer. Mr, Mullinax assumed his current position in October 2004.
He previously served as Vice President of Business Services. Mr. Mullinax has held various positions including Senior Vice President of
- Shared Services, Global Sourcing, and Duke Ventures as well as President and Chief Executive Officer of DukeNet.

THomas C. O'Connor, 49, Group Vice President {(Executive Officer effective March 1, 2005). Mr. O'Connor assumed his current posi-
tion in March 2005. He previously served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Duke Energy Gas Transmission since December
2002. He has also served in leadership positions with Duke Energy’s pipeline operations since 1994. Mr. O’Connor joined Duke Energy in
1987 as Supervisor of Environmental Compliance for Algonquin Gas Transmission LLC {Algonquin) in New England.

RicHARD J. OsBORNE, 54, Group Vice President, Public and Regulatory Policy. Mr. Osborne assumed his current position in January
2004. He previously served as Executive Vice President and Chief Risk Officer. He also served as Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer since 1997 and Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since 1994.

RutH G. SHaw, 57, President and Chief Executive Officer, Duke Power. Dr. Shaw assumed her current position in February 2003. Dr.
Shaw served as Senior Vice President, Corporate Resources, from 1994 until the PanEnergy merger in 1997, when she was named
Executive Vice President and Chief Administrative Officer.

B. Kert Tren, 45, Group Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary, in an acting capacity (Executive Officer effective March 1,
2005). Mr. Trent assumed his current position in March 2005. He previously served as General Counsel, Litigation since May 2002 when
he joined Duke Energy. He previously served as a partner in the law firm Snell, Brannian & Trent since October 1991.

MAaRTHA B. WyrscH, 47, President and Chief Executive Officer of Duke Energy Gas Transmission {(Executive Officer untit March 1,
2005). Ms. Wyrsch assumed her current position in March 2005. She previously served as Group Vice President, General Counsel and
Secretary since January 2004, She also served as Senior Vice President of Legal Affairs. Ms. Wyrsch joined Duke Energy in September
1999 as Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary for DEFS.

Executive officers are elected annually by the Board of Directors. They serve until the first meeting of the Board of Directars follow-
ing the annual meeting of shareholders and until their successors are duly elected.

There are no family relationships between any of the executive officers, nor any arrangement or understanding between any execu-
tive officer and any other person involved in officer selection.
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Item 2. Properties.

FRANCHISED ELECTRIC

As of December 31, 2004, Franchised Electric operated three nuclear generating stations with a combined net capacity of 5,020
MW (including a 12.5% ownership in the Catawba Nuclear Station), eight coalfired stations with a combined capacity of 7,754 MW, 31
hydroelectric stations (including two pumped-storage facilities) with a combined capacity of 2,810 MW and seven combustion turbine sta-
tions with a combined tapacity of 2,447 MW. All of the stations are located in North Carolina or South Carolina.

. : Ownership

Gross Net Interest
Name : MW MW : Fuel Location (percentage}
Oconee S 2,538 2,538 Nuclear sC 100%
Catawba 2,258 282 Nuclear sSC 125
Belews Creek 2,270 2,270 Coal NC 100
McGuire o 2,200 2,200 Nuclear ) NC 100
Marshall . 2,110 2,110 Coal NC 100
Lincoln CT ' . 1,267 - 1,267 "Natural gas/Fuel Oil NC 100
Alfen : 1,145 1,145 Coal NC 100
Bad Creek .- 1,065 1,065 Hydro , SC ~ 100
Cliffside 760 760 Coal NC 100
Jocassee ' 610 610 Hydro SC 100
Riverbend - o : 454 454 Coal NC 100
Lee : . 370 370 Coal ' . SC 100
Buck 369 369 Coal NC 100
Cowans Ford : 325 325 Hydro NC 100
Mill Creek CT - .B% 596 Natural gas/Fuel Qi - sC 100
Dan River 276 . 276 Coal : NC 100
Buzzard Roost CT 196 - 196 Natural gas/Fuel Ol SC 100
Keowee : . 160 - - 160 Hydro SC 100
Riverbend CT c 120 120 Natural gas/Fuel Oil NC 100
Buck CT ' ' 93 93 Natural gas/Fuel Oil. NC 100
Lee CT a0 90 Natural gas/Fuel Oil SC ‘ 100
Dan River CT g , .. 85 ] 85 Natural gas/Fuel Oil NC - . 100
Other small hydro (27 plants) . 650 650 Hydro NC/SC 100
Total 20,007 18,031

In addition, as of December 31, 2004, Franchised Electric awned approximately 13,000 conductor miles of electric transmission
lines, including 600 miles of 525 kilovolts, 2,600 miles of 230 kilovolts, 6,600 miles of 100 to 161 kilovolts, and 3,200 miles of 13to -
66 kilovolts. Franchised Electric also owned approximately 94,000 conductor miles of electric distribution lines, including 49,800 miles of
rural overhead lines, 16,100 miles of urban overhead lines, 15,400 miles of rural underground lines and 12,700 miles of urban under-
ground lines. As of December 31, 2004, the electric transmission and distribution systems had approximately 1,600 substations.

Substantially all of Franchised Electric’s electric plant in service is mortgaged under the indenture relating to Duke Energy’s various
series of First and Refunding Mortgage Bonds. : ' :

(For a map showing Franchised Electric's properties, see “Business—Franchised Electric” earlier in this section.)

NATURAL GAS TRANSMISSION

Texas Eastern’s gas transmission system extends approximately 1,700 miles from producing fields in the Gulf Coast region of Texas
and Louisiana to Ohio, Pennsylvania, New Jersey and New York. It consists of two parallel systems, one with three large-diameter parallel
pipelines and the other with one to three large-diameter pipelines. Texas Eastern’s onshore system consists of approximately 8,600 miles
of pipeline and 73 compressor stations.

Texas Eastern also owns and operates two offshore Louisiana pipeline systems, which extend approximately 100 miles into the Gulf
of Mexico and include approximately 500 miles of Texas Eastern's pipeline system.

Texas Eastern has two joint-venture storage facilities in Pennsylvania and one wholly owned and operated storage field in Maryland.
Texas Eastern's total working capacity in these three fields is 75 Bcf.

Algonquin transmission system connects with Texas Eastern’s facilities in New Jersey, and extends approximately 250 miles through
New Jersey, New York, Connecticut, Rhode Island and Massachusetts. The system consists of approximately 1,100 miles of pipeline with
six compressor stations,
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ETNG's transmission system crosses Texas Eastern’s system at two points in Tennessee and consists of two mainline systems total-
ing approximately 1,400 miles of pipeline in Tennessee, Georgia, North Carolina and Virginia, with 18 compressor stations.

ETNG has an LNG storage facility in Tennessee with a total working capacity of 1.2 Bcf.

Maritimes & Northeast Pipeline, LLC and Maritimes & Northeast Pipeline, LP {collectively, Maritimes & Northeast) transmission sys-
tem (approximately 78% owned by Duke Energy) extends approximately 900 miles from producing fields in Nova Scotia through New
Brunswick, Maine, New Hampshire and Massachusetts, connecting to-AIgonquin in Beverly, Massachusetts. It has two compressor sta-
tions on the system. ‘ A

The British Columbia Pipeline System consists of two divisions. The field services division operates more than 1,840 miles of gather-
ing pipelines in British Columbia, Alberta, the Yukon Territory and the Northwest Territories, as well as 22 field compressor stations; four
gas processing plants located in British Columbia near Fort Nelson, Taylor, Chetwynd and in the Sikanni area northwest of Fort St. John,
and three elemental sulphur recovery plants located at Fort Nelson, Taylor and Chetwynd. Total contractible capacity is approximately 1.8
Bef of residue gas per day. The pipeline division has approximately 1,740 miles of transmission pipelines in British Columbia and Alberta,
as well as 18 mainline compressor stations.

Union Gas owns and operates natural gas transmission, distribution and storage facilities in Ontario. Union Gas' distribution system
consists of approximately 22,000 miles of distribution pipelines. Union Gas’ underground natural gas storage facilities have a working
capacity of approximately 150 Bcf in 20 underground facilities located in depleted gas fields. Its transmission system consists of approx-
imately 3,000 miles of pipeline and six mainline compressor stations.

MHP owns and operates two natural gas storage facilities, Moss Bluff and Egan, with a total storage capacity of approximately 31
Bef. The Moss Bluff facility consists of three storage caverns located in southeast Texas and has access to five pipeline systems. The
Egan facility consists of three storage caverns located in south central Louisiana and has access to eight pipeline systems.

" Natural Gas Transmission also has an investment in Gulfstream National Gas System, LLC (Gulfstream), a 691-mile interstate natural
gas pipeline system owned and operated jointly by Duke Energy and The Williams Company, Inc. The Gulfstream gas pipeline has a
capacity of 1.1 Bcf of natural gas per day and transports gas from the Mobile Bay area, across the Gulf of Mexico, to growing gas mar-
kets in south and central Florida. Guifstream began initial service in May 2002.

(For a map showing natural gas transmission and storage properties, see “Business—Natural Gas Transmission” earlier in this
section.)

FIELD SERVICES

(For information and a map showing Field Services’ properties, see “Business—Field Services” earlier in this section.)

DENA
The following table provides information about DENA’s generation portfolio in continuing operations as of December 31, 2004,

Approximate
‘ ‘ Ownership
Gross Net o Interest
Name MW MW Plant Type Primary Fuel Location {percentage)
Moss Landing 2,538 2,538 Combined Cycle Natural Gas CA , 100%
Hanging Rock 11,240 1,240 Combined Cycle Natural Gas - OH . 100
Morro Bay 1,002 1,002 Combined Cycle Natural Gas CA 100
South Bay - 700 . 700 °© Combined Cycle Natural Gas CA 100
Lee . 640 640 Simple Cycle Natural Gas IL 100
Vermillion 640 480 Simple Cycle Natural Gas IN ' 75
Fayette 620 620 °© Combined Cycle Natural Gas PA ' 100
Washington 620 620 Combined Cycle Natural Gas OH 100
Griffith Energy 600 300 Combined Cycle Natural Gas AZ 50
Arlington Valley 570 - 570 Combined Cycle Natural Gas AZ 100
Maine Independence 520 520 Combined Cycle Natural Gas ME 100
Bridgeport 490 326 Combined Cycle Natural Gas CcT 67
Oakland 165 165 Simple Cycle il CA 100
McMahon 117 59 Cogen Natural Gas BC 50
Ft. Frances 110 110 Cogen Natural Gas ON 100
Total 10,572 9,890

{For a map showing DENA’s properties, see “Business—DENA" earlier in this section.}
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INTERNATIONAL ENERGY

The foilowing table provides information about International Energy’s generation portfolio in continuing operations as of December
31, 2004.

Approximate

Ownership

Gross Net Interest
Name MW MW Fuel Location {percentage)
Paranapanema 2,307 2,185 Hydro Brazil 95%
Hidroelectrica Cerros Colorados 576 523 Hydro/Natural gas Argentina 91
Egenor 540 538 " Hydro/Diesel /0l Peru 100
DEI Guatemala 328 328 Orimulsion/Qil/Diesel Guatemala 100
Acajutla 324 293 Oil/Diesel El Salvador 90
Electroquil 180 136 Diesel Ecuador 75
Aguaytia 169 64 Natural Gas Peru 38
Empressa Electrica Corani lti _7_2 Hydro Balivia 50

Total 4,568 4,139

In addition to those generating facilities, International Energy owns a 25% equity interest in National Methanol Company (NMC),
located in Saudi Arabia, which is a leading producer of methanol and MTBE. In 2004, the NMC produced approxirhately 900 thousand
metric tons of methanol and one million metric tons of MTBE. International Energy also owns a 50% equity interest in Compatia de Servi-
cios de Compresion de Campeche, S.A. de C.V. (Campeche), located in the Cantarell oil field in the Bay of Campeche, Mexico, which
compresses and dehydrates natural gas and extracts NGLs. Campeche has an instalied processing capacity of 270 Mmcf/d. (For addi-
tional information and a map showing International Energy’s properties, see “Business—International Energy” earlier in this section.)

CRESCENT
(For information regarding Crescent's properties, see “Business—Crescent” earlier in this section.)

OTHER

{For information regarding the properties of the business unit now known as Other, see “Business—Other” earlier in this section.)

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

In July 2003, a fire occurred at the Moss Landing Power Plant in California, operated by Duke Energy Moss Landing LLC (DEML), a
subsidiary of DENA, when fuel oil was ignited by a contractor performing tank clean out and dismantling activities. The Monterey County
District Attorney initiated civil enforcement action against DEML alleging violations of the California Health and Safety Code and the Busi-
ness and Professions Code. The alleged violations concerned the handling of hazardous materials at the site and unlawful release of
hazardous materials into the environment. DEML denied the allegations but agreed to settle the civil enforcement action by committing to
expend a total of $752,287, the majority of which entails reimbursement of costs to the county and expenditures for safety/
environmenta! training efforts by the company, but also includes a $100,000 civil penalty payment. The district attorney also settled a
related action against DEML's contractor for alleged violations in the incident. Both settlements were announced on September 22, 2004.

(For information regarding legal proceedings, including regulatory and environmental matters, see Note 4 to the Consolidated Finan-
cial Statements, “Regulatory Matters” and Note 17 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, “Commitments and Contingencies—
Litigation” and “Commitments and Contingencies—Environmental.”)

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.
No matters were submitted to a vote of Duke Energy’s security holders during the fourth quarter of 2004,
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Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters.

Duke Energy’s common stock is listed for trading on the New York Stock Exchange. As of February 28, 2005, there were approx-
imately 143,800 common s’;ockholders of record.

Common Stock Data by Quarter

2004 2003
Stock Price Stock Price
Rangelal Rangela

Dividends Dividends

Per Share High Low Per Share High Low
First Quarter $0.275 $22.70 $19.90 180.275° $21.57 S12.21
Second Quarter 0.550 2290 18.85 0.550 20.75 1351
Third Quarter — 23.00 1984 — 19.70 16.75
Fourth Quarter 0.275 26.16 2285 0.275 2089 17.08

(a) Stock prices represent the intra-day high and low stock price.

On December 17, 1998, Duke Energy's Board of Directors adopted a shareholder rights plan. Under the terms of the plan, one
preference stack purchase right was distributed for each share of common stock outstanding on February 12, 1999, and for each share
issued thereafter, subject to adjustment as specified. The NCUC and the PSCSC appraved this distribution. The plan is intended ta ensure
the fair treatment of all shareholders in the event of a hostile takeover attempt and to encourage a potential acquirer to negatiate with the
Board of Directors a fair price for all shareholders before attempting a takeover. The adoption of the plan was not in response to any
takeover offer or threat. The Corporate Governance Committee of the Board of Directors evaluates the plan at least once every three
years, and most recently evaluated the plan in October 2004,

23



PART 1

Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

2004 . 2003v

2002

2001

2000

Statement of Operations
Operating revenues

(in millions, except per share amounts)

$22,503 $22,080 $15,860 $17,889 $15,800

Operating expenses 19,456 22,818 13,258 14,311 12,775
Gains on sales of investments in commercial and multi-family real estate 192 84 106 106 75
(Losses) gains on sales of other assets, net (225) (199) 32 238 214
Operating income (loss) 3,014 (853) 2,740 3,922 3,314
Other income and expenses, net 302 584 379 311 707
Interest expense 1,349 1,380 1,097 760 887
Minority interest expense 195 61 116 326 302
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes 1,772 (1,710 1,906 3,147 2,832
Income tax expense {benefit) from continuing operations 540 (707) 611 1,149 1,032
Income (loss) from continuing operations 1,232 {1,003) 1,295 1,998 1,800
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax 258 (158) (261) (4) (24)
Income {loss) before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 1,490 {1,161) 1,034 1,994 1,776
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax and minority v
interest — {162} — (96) —

Net income (loss) 1,490  (1,323) 1,034 1,898 1,776
Dividends and premiums on redemption of preferred and preference stock 9 15 13 14 19
Earnings (loss) available for common stockholders $1,481 S(1,338) $ 1,021 $1,884 §$ 1,757
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges 23 —a 2.2 3.9 3.7
Common Stock Datata}
Shares of common stock outstanding

Year-end 957 911 895 777 739

Weighted average 931 903 836 767 736
Earnings (loss) per share (from continuing operations)

Basic $ 131 $(113) $ 153 S 259 § 242

Diluted 1.27 {1.13) 1.53 2.57 2.41
Earnings {loss) per share {from discontinued operations)

Basic $ 028 S (0179 $ (0.31) $ (0.01) S (0.03)

Diluted 0.27 0.17) (0.31) (0.01) (0.03)
Earnings (loss) per share {before cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle}

Basic S 159 S (1300 S 122 $ 258 S 239

Diluted 1.54 (1.30) 1.22 2.56 2.38
Earnings (loss) per share

Basic $ 159 S (148 §$§ 122 $ 245 § 239

Diluted 1.54 (1.48) 1.22 2.44 2.38
Dividends per share 1.10 1.10 1.10 1.10 1.10
Balance Sheet
Total assets $55,470 $57,225  $60,122 $49,624 $59,276
Long-term debt including capital leases, less current maturities $16,932 $20,622 $20,221 S$12,321 $10,717

(a) Amounts prior to 2001 were restated to reflect the two-for-one common stock split effective January 26, 2001.

{b) As of January 1, 2003, Duke Energy adopted the remaining provisions of Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF} Issue No. 02-03, “Issues Involved in Accounting for
Derivative Contracts Held for Trading Purposes and for Contracts Involved in Energy Trading and Risk Management Activities” and SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for
Asset Retirement Obligations.” In accordance with the transition guidance for these standards, Duke Energy recorded a net-of-tax and minority interest cumulative
effect adjustment for change in accounting principles. (See Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies,” for

further discussion.)

{c) Earnings were inadequate to cover fixed charges by 51,707 million for the year ended December 31, 2003.
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analys:s of Results of Operations and Financial Condition.

INTRODUCTION
Management’s Discussion and Analysis should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Overview of Business Strategy. Duke Energy’s business strategy is to create value for customers, employees, communities and
shareholders through the production, conversion, delivery and sale of energy and energy services. Duke Energy’s plan is to emphaSIZe
income for its shareholders, with modest growth.

" For the past few years, the energy industry including Duke Energy experienced a number of challenges, including the substantial
imbalance between supply and demand for electricity, the pace of economic recovery, and regulatory and legal uncertainties. In response
to these challenges, Duke Energy's focus for 2004 was to reduce risks and restructure its business. By selling assets such as Duke
Energy North America’s {DENA's) eight natural gas-fired merchant power plants: Hot Spring (Arkansas); Murray and Sandersville (Gebrgia);
Marshall (Kentucky); Hinds, Southaven, Enterprise and New Albany (Mississippi) in the southeastern United States; (collectively, the South-
east Plants) and International Energy's Asia-Pacific power generation and natural gas transmission business (the Asia-Pacific Business),
Duke Energy eliminated some of its lowest return assets. These asset sales provided cash proceeds allowing Duke Energy to pay down
debt and strengthen its balance sheet. Progress was also made in 2004 in resolving some critical legal and regulatory issues.

As aresult of the efforts in 2004, Duke Energy’s objectives for 2005 include establishing industry-leading positions in core busi-
nesses and identifying new energy-related growth strategies, focused in the Americas. Increased demand for natural gas supplies in the
United States and changing logistics among source of supply are providing opportunities for growth. To capitalize on this market dynam-
ic, Natural Gas Transmission is evaluating longer-term opportunities to provide pipeline capacity and storage facilities for the expected
expansion of the liquefied natural gas (LNG) market. Additionally, the strength of the natural gas market provides incentives for producers
to increase exploration and production, which in turn, provides business sustainability and growth opportunities for Field Services. Duke
Power and International Energy are expected to grow organically for the near term. :

In February 2005, Duke Energy Field Services LLC (DEFS) sold Texas Eastern Products Pipeline Company LLC {TEPPCO) for approx-
imately $1.1 billion and Duke Energy sold its limited partner interest in TEPPCO Partners, L.P. for approx:mately $100 miltion, in each
case to EPCO, an unrelated third party. These transactions closed in the first quarter of 2005.

In February 2005, Duke Energy executed an agreement with ConocoPhnhps whereby Duke Energy has agreed to transfer a 19.7%
interest in DEFS to ConocoPhillips for direct and indirect monetary and non- monetary consideration of approximately $1.1 billion. Upon
completion of this transaction, DEFS will be owned 50% by Duke Energy and 50% by ConocoPhillips. As a result, Duke Energy expects to
account for its investment in DEFS using the equity method subsequent to closing of the transaction, which is expected to occur in the
latter half of 2005. - ‘ :

Duke Energy believes merchant energy will play a vital role in meeting the United States’ energy demand. Another key objective for
2005 is to position DENA to be a successful merchant operator. During 2004, DENA's business model changed to focus on selling fixed
capacity contracts in addition to volume based sales and purchases. Duke Energy is pursuing various options to create 